
           

City of Lubbock, Texas
Regular City Council Meeting

October 22, 2024
Mark W. McBrayer, Mayor
Christy Martinez-Garcia, Mayor Pro Tem, District 1
Gordon Harris, Councilman, District 2
David Glasheen, Councilman, District 3
Brayden Rose, Councilman, District 4
Dr. Jennifer Wilson, Councilwoman, District 5
Tim Collins, Councilman, District 6

    W. Jarrett Atkinson, City Manager
Matt Wade, City Attorney

Courtney Paz, City Secretary

http://www.mylubbock.us

City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

City of Lubbock City Council Meetings are available to all persons regardless of disability. If you require special assistance,
please contact the City Secretary's Office at (806)775-2061 or write to Post Office Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas 79457 at least 48
hours in advance of the meeting. 

Executive Session Disclosure Statement: The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into executive session at any time during
the course of the meeting to discuss any item listed on this agenda as authorized by Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code,
including but not necessarily limited to §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney), §551.072 (Deliberations regarding Real
Property), §551.073 (Deliberations regarding Gifts and Donations), §551.074 (Personnel Matters), §551.076 (Deliberations
regarding Security Devices), §551.086 (Public Power Utilities: Competitive Matters), §551.087 (Deliberations regarding
Economic Development Negotiations). 

A quorum of the City Council will be physically present in City Council Chambers located in Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K,
Lubbock, Texas, as it is the intent of the City Council to have a quorum physically present at this location. One or more members
of the City Council, however, may participate in the meeting by video-conference call as permitted under Section 551.127 of the
Texas Government Code. 

Note: On occasion the City Council may consider agenda items out of order. 

 

3:00 p.m. - City Council convenes in City Council Chambers and immediately recesses into
Executive Session.
           
1. Executive Session   

 

1. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.071,
with legal counsel for advice about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement
agreement and on matters in which the duty of the attorney under the Texas Disciplinary
Rules of Professional Conduct conflicts with Chapter 551.

  

 

1. 1. 1. Central Business District   

 

1. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Section
551.072, to deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real property.

  

 

http://www.mylubbock.us


 

1. 2. 1. Central Business District   

 

1. 2. 2. Uptown West, Tract A   

 

1. 3. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.074, to
discuss personnel matters, regarding the duties, responsibilities, and/or appointments to the
Planning & Zoning Commission.

 

1. 4. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.087,
to discuss or deliberate regarding commercial or financial information that the
governmental body has received from a business prospect that the governmental body
seeks to have locate, stay, or expand in or near the territory of the governmental body and
with which the governmental body is conducting economic development negotiations or to
deliberate an offer of a financial or other incentive to such business prospect.

  

 

1. 4. 1. Central Business District   

 

Adjourn from Executive Session
 

Immediately following Executive Session, the City Council reconvenes in Open Session in City
Council Chambers.
 

2. Ceremonial Items   

 

2. 1. Invocation   

 

2. 2. Pledges of Allegiance   

 

Call to Order
 

3. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to
appear in-person before a regular meeting of the City Council, regarding any matter
posted on the City Council Agenda below, shall complete the sign-up form provided
at the meeting, no later than 3:00 p.m. on October 22, 2024.  Citizen Comments
provide an opportunity for citizens to make comments and express a position on
agenda items. 

  

 

4. Minutes   



 

4. 1. September 24, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting
September 26, 2024 Special City Council Meeting - Joint Planning and Zoning
Commission Meeting 

 

5. Consent Agenda - Items considered to be routine are enacted by one motion without
separate discussion. If the City Council desires to discuss an item, the item is removed
from the Consent Agenda and considered separately.

  

 

5. 1. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance
Amendment 1, amending the FY 2024-25 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Grant Fund, regarding Public Health Services, providing for filing; and providing for a
savings clause.

 

5. 2. Resolution - Finance: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an
Interlocal Agreement between the City of Lubbock and the Lubbock Central Appraisal
District, for the collection of assessments levied on property within the Cypress Ranch
Public Improvement District.

 

5. 3. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider Ordinance No.
2024-O0134, abandoning and closing portions of a private utility easement located in
Section 6, Block E-2, Lubbock County, Texas, in the Ranchland Terrace Subdivision, at
the northeast corner of 40th Street and Chicago Avenue.

 

5. 4. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a
Pipeline Easement Agreement, and all related documents, by and between the City of
Lubbock and Atmos Energy Corporation, for an existing natural gas pipeline on Tract 1,
north of Municipal Drive and east of I-17, Tract 2, south of Municipal Drive, between I-27
and Cesar Chavez Drive, Tract 3, north of Marsh Sharp Freeway and east of I-27, Tract 4,
north of 19th Street and east of Southeast Drive, Tract 6, north of 82nd Street, between
Guava Avenue and Olive Avenue.

 

5. 5. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for
and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, one (1) Street Use, and Right-of-Way Deed, and all
related documents, in connection with certain real property located in Section 7, Block E,
of the GC & SF R.R. Co. Survey, Lubbock County, Texas, (Parcel 30), south of 82nd
Street and west of Martin Luther King (MLK), Jr. Boulevard, to be utilized for the 82nd
Street and MLK Jr. Boulevard Project, which is a portion of the 2022 Street Bond Project.

 

5. 6. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for
and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, two (2) Street, Public Use, and Right-of-Way
Deeds, and all related documents, in connection with certain real property located in
Section 8, Block E, of the GC & SF R.R. Co. Survey, Lubbock County, Texas, (Parcels 16
and 17), at 82nd Street and Avenue D and 82nd Street and Avenue F, to be utilized for the
82nd Street and Martin Luther King, Jr. Boulevard Project, which is a portion of the 2022



Street Bond Project.
 

5. 7. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for
and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, a Street, Public Use, and Right-of-Way Deed, and
all related documents, in connection with certain real property located in Tract A of Nelson
Electric Addition to the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas (Parcel 34), east of the
Martin Luther King (MLK), Jr. Boulevard between 74th Street and 76th Street, to be
utilized for the 82nd Street and MLK, Jr. Boulevard Project, which is a portion of the 2022
Street Bond Project.

 

5. 8. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for
and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, a Street, Public Use, and Right-of-Way Deed, and
all related documents, in connection with certain real property located in Lot 2, Block 16,
of the Trigg Heights Addition to the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas (Parcel 9),
north of 82nd Street between King Avenue and Ivory Avenue, to be utilized for the 82nd
Street and Martin Luther King, Jr. Boulevard Project, which is a portion of the 2022 Street
Bond Project.

 

5. 9. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution rejecting any and all bids received for
the purchase of Tract B of Fire Station #1, pursuant to Invitation to Bid
(ITB)-24-18043-MA, and orders that no contract be entered into pursuant to said ITB.

 

5. 10. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for
and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, a Sewer Line Easement Deed, and all related
documents, in connection with certain real property located in Section 19, Block AK,
Lubbock County, Texas, on the west side of Milwaukee Avenue, south of 114th Street.

 

5. 11. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for
and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, a Drainage Easement Deed, and all related
documents, in connection with certain real property located in Tract “A-1-A” of Abbey
Commercial Addition to the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, on the west side of
Slide Road, between 109th Street and 111th Street.

 

5. 12. Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement Contract No. 17752, with Parkhill,
Inc., for engineering services for the Southeast Water Reclamation Plant 4 - Primary
Clarifier Rehabilitation.

 

5. 13. Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to approve the
Annual Progress Report on the Floodplain Management Plan, and updates to the
Mitigation Actions listed in the Lubbock County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation
Plan.

 

5. 14. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0137, accepting the



5. 14. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0137, accepting the
City of Lubbock Planning and Zoning Commission's final report of October 3, 2024, to the
Lubbock City Council, on proposed amendments to the Unified Development Code
(Ordinance No. 2023-O0054) recommended for adoption, limited to the following:

1. Section 39.03.015.e – Ground cover Requirements
2. Table 39.03.016-2 – Bufferyard Classifications and Division 3.4 Trees, Landscaping,
and Buffering
3. Table 39.03.015-1 Landscape Points System
4. Section 39.10.002 Definitions
5. Table 39.03.015-1 Landscape Points System
6. Section 39.03.019.a.6.B - Installation & Maintenance
7. Section 39.10.002 - Definitions
8. Appendix A Plant List and Chapter 39 – Unified Development Code
9. Section 39.03.019.a.2 – Installation and Maintenance
10. Section 39.03.016.e.1 – Bufferyard Standards
11. Section 39.03.014.b General Provisions and Table 39.03.014-1 Required Landscaping
Types Summary
12. Table 39.03.015-1 Landscape Points System
13. Table 39.03.015-1 Landscape Points System
14. Section 39.03.016.e.3.B – Parking Bufferyard Standards
15. Section 39.03.019.e.6 - Installation and Maintenance
16. Table 39.03.014-1 – Required Landscaping Types Summary
17. Table 39.03.015-1 – Landscape Points System
18. Table 39.03.015-1 – Landscape Points System - Other
19. Section 39.03.016.e.4 – Street Bufferyard
20. Table 39.03.016-3 – Street Bufferyard Requirements
21. Section 39.03.016.e.3.A – Parking Bufferyard Standards
22. Section 39.03.016.e.3.B.i – Parking Bufferyard Standards - Composition
23. Section 39.03.019.d.6 - Installation and Maintenance
24. Section 39.03.015 – Development Landscaping
25. Section 39.03.015 – Development Landscaping
26. Figure 39.03.015-2 – Illustrative Parking Lot Planting Requirements
27. Section 39.03.016.d.1 - Composition of Bufferyards
28. Table 39.03.016-1 – District Bufferyard Standards

 

5. 15. Resolution - Planning: Consider a resolution approving the Rules of Procedure for the
Zoning Board of Adjustment, as required by Section 211.008(e) of the Texas Local
Government Code.

 

5. 16. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Public Works Water Utilities: Consider Ordinance No.
2024-O0138, amending Section 22.03.083 of the City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances,
regarding deposit requirements and related exceptions for utility service.

 

5. 17. Resolution - Public Works Water Utilities: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor
to execute the Sixth Amendment to the Raw Water Lease, between the City of Lubbock
and the Lake Alan Henry Water District.

 



5. 18. Resolution - Public Health Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Department of State Health Service Grant Agreement Contract No.
HHS001326300014, and all related documents, by and between the City of Lubbock and
the State of Texas Department of State Health Services, under the HIV Prevention
Services Grant Program.

 

5. 19. Resolution - Public Health Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute a StarCare Specialty Health System Memorandum of Understanding, and all
related documents, by and between the City of Lubbock, on behalf of its Health
Department, and StarCare Specialty Health System, to participate in an inter-agency
collaborative effort and serve as an essential link for medication-assisted treatment services
within the community.

 

5. 20. Resolution - Public Health Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute a StarCare Specialty Health System Memorandum of Understanding, and all
related documents, by and between the City of Lubbock, on behalf of its Health
Department, and StarCare Specialty Health System, related to Outreach, Screening,
Assessment, and Referral, to participate in an inter-agency collaborative effort and serve as
an essential link between prevention, intervention, and treatment services within the
community.

 

5. 21. Resolution - Public Health Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute a StarCare Specialty Health System Memorandum of Understanding, and all
related documents, by and between the City of Lubbock, on behalf of its Health
Department, and StarCare Specialty Health System, related to Substance Use Disorder
Treatment for Adults.

 

5. 22. Resolution - Public Health Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute a StarCare Specialty Health System Memorandum of Understanding, and all
related documents, by and between the City of Lubbock, on behalf of its Health
Department, and StarCare Specialty Health System, related to Substance Use Disorder
Treatment for Youth.

 

5. 23. Resolution - Human Resources Health Benefits: Consider a resolution authorizing the
City Manager, for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, to purchase and renew a reduced
premium for specific stop loss insurance coverage, renegotiated increased prescription
rebates, and an administration credit from BlueCrossBlueShield of Texas, to reduce health
benefit costs while maintaining essential services.

 

5. 24. Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Amendment No. 1 to Memorandum of Understanding, Contract No. 17603,
between the Central Business District Tax Increment Financing Zone and HTG Lubbock,
LLC, for utility and storm water infrastructure construction and relocation, for the Inn
Town Lofts Project at 1202 Main Street in Downtown, Lubbock, Texas. 

 

5. 25. Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to



5. 25. Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute a Memorandum of Understanding between the Central Business District Tax
Increment Financing Zone Advisory Board and SIMFLO, LLC, for funding a portion of
overhead utility relocation at 619 Broadway and adjacent properties in Downtown,
Lubbock, Texas. 

 

5. 26. Resolution - Police Department: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Purchase Order 10027892, with Flock Group, Inc., for equipment and software to enable
the Police Department to identify and track vehicles affiliated with acts of violence and/or
criminal acts.

 

6. Regular Agenda   

 

6. 1. Board Appointments - City Secretary: Consider appointments to the Planning & Zoning
Commission.

 

6. 2. Public Hearing - Business Development: Hold a public hearing to consider the creation
of a Public Improvement District for Highland Oaks, which covers a portion of an area in
Lubbock County, Texas, generally bounded by 146th Street to the north, Slide Road to the
east, Woodrow Road to the south, and Frankford Avenue to the west. 

 

6. 3. Public Hearing - Planning (District 1): Consider a request for Zone Case 3508, a request
of 1585 & Frankford/Discount RV, for a zone change from Low Density Single-Family
District (SF-2) to Light Industrial District (LI), at 12109 Frankford Avenue, located north
of 122nd Street and east of Frankford Avenue, Abbe Addition, Lot 1, and consider an
ordinance.

 

6. 4. Public Hearing - Planning (District 1): Consider a request for Zone Case 3487, a request
of DLC Designs, LLC for Children's Home of Lubbock, for a zone change from Low
Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to Residential Estates District (RE), at 4602 Idalou
Road, located north of East Erskine Street and east of Idalou Road, on 170.98 acres of
unplatted land out of Block A, Section 25, and consider an ordinance.

 

6. 5. Public Hearing - Planning (District 2): Consider a request for Zone Case 2565-H, a
request of Indira and Vipul Patel, for a zone change from Heavy Commercial District (HC)
to Medium Density Residential District (MDR), at 5930 Avenue Q South Drive and 5903
Avenue L, located east of Avenue L and south of 58th Street, Carlton Heights Addition,
Block A and approximately 8.16 acres of unplatted land out of Block E, Section 2, and
consider an ordinance.

 

6. 6. Public Hearing - Planning (District 4): Consider a request for Zone Case 1542-V, a



6. 6. Public Hearing - Planning (District 4): Consider a request for Zone Case 1542-V, a
request of Lubbock Smoke Shop, LLC for Lubbock Commercial Buildings, Inc., for a
zone change from Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) to Neighborhood Commercial
District (NC) Specific Use for a smoke shop, at 7310 Quaker Avenue located west of
Quaker Avenue and north of 74th Street, Furr Wolf Addition, Block 2, Lot 2-A-1-B, and
consider an ordinance.

 

6. 7. Public Hearing - Planning (District 5): Consider a request for Zone Case 2651-B, a
request of Westar Commercial Realty for SPSM, LTD, for a zone change from Industrial
Park District (IP) to Heavy Commercial District (HC), at 5044 Frankford Avenue, located
west of Frankford Avenue and north of 57th Street, Frankford Business Park Addition, Lot
6-B, and consider an ordinance.

 



 AI# 12955 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 1. 3. 
10/22/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.074, to discuss
personnel matters, regarding the duties, responsibilities, and/or appointments to the Planning & Zoning
Commission.

Item Summary
Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.074, to discuss
personnel matters, regarding the duties, responsibilities, and/or appointments to the Planning & Zoning
Commission.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Courtney Paz, City Secretary

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



 AI# 12937 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 4. 1. 
10/22/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
September 24, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting
September 26, 2024 Special City Council Meeting - Joint Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting 

Item Summary
September 24, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting
September 26, 2024 Special City Council Meeting - Joint Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting 

Fiscal Impact
None 

Staff/Board Recommending
Courtney Paz, City Secretary 

Attachments
9.24.2024 
9.26.2024 S Joint P&Z Meeting 



CITY OF LUBBOCK
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING

September 24, 2024
11:00 A. M.

 
The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in regular session on the 24th of September, 2024,
in City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas at 11:00 a.m.

  
11:00 A.M. CITY COUNCIL CONVENED

City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

Present:  Mayor Mark W. McBrayer; Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia; Council Member Tim
Collins; Council Member David Glasheen; Council Member Gordon Harris; Council Member
Brayden Rose; Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson; City Manager W. Jarrett Atkinson; City
Secretary Courtney Paz; City Attorney Matt Wade 

 

Note:       City Council addressed agenda items in the following order:
Executive Session; 2.1-2.2; Citizen Comments 3; 4.1; 5.1-5.27; and 6.1-6.8.
Item No. 6.3 was deleted.

               
1. Executive Session

 
The meeting recessed at 11:01 p.m. and reconvened in Executive Session under the
provisions of Section 551, Texas Government Code. City Council reconvened in open
session at 2:07 p.m., and the meeting was called to order at 2:12 p.m.

 
1. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.071, with

legal counsel for advice about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement agreement and on
matters in which the duty of the attorney under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional
Conduct conflicts with Chapter 551.

 
1. 1. 1. DC-2023-CV-0500 Fransisa Reyes v. City of Lubbock
 
1. 1. 2. Article 22.03 of the Lubbock City Code and Chapter 13 of the Texas Water Code
 
1. 1. 3. Lake 7
 
1. 1. 4. Loop 88 Land Acquisition
 
1. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Section 551.072, to

deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real property.
 
1. 2. 1. Central Business District



 
1. 2. 2. Lake 7
 
1. 2. 3. Loop 88 Land Acquisition 
 
1. 3. Hold an executive session in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Section 551.074, to

discuss personnel matters, the appointment, employment, evaluation or reassignment of the
following: 

 
1. 3. 1. City Attorney
 
1. 3. 2. City Manager
 
1. 3. 3. City Secretary
 
1. 4. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.074, to

discuss personnel matters, regarding the duties, responsibilities, and/or appointments to
the Electric Utility Board, Health/Educational Facilities Development Corporation Board,
Lubbock Central Appraisal District Board of Directors, Lubbock Emergency Communications
District Board of Managers, Planning & Zoning Commission, and the Zoning Board of
Adjustment.

  

 
1. 5. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.087, to

discuss or deliberate regarding commercial or financial information that the governmental body
has received from a business prospect that the governmental body seeks to have locate, stay, or
expand in or near the territory of the governmental body and with which the governmental body
is conducting economic development negotiations or to deliberate an offer of a financial or other
incentive to such business prospect.

 
 
 
2:00 p.m. - City Council reconvenes in Open Session in City Council Chambers.
 
City Council reconvened at 2:07 p.m.
 
2. Ceremonial Items
 
2. 1. Invocation

 
Deacon Jose Rubio, Our Lady of Guadalupe Catholic Church, led the invocation.

 
2. 2. Pledges of Allegiance

 
Pledges of Allegiance, to the United States and Texas Flags, were led by Mayor Pro Tem Christy
Martinez-Garcia.

 
Call to Order

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 24, 2024 Page 2 of 9



Call to Order
 
The meeting was called to order at 2:12 p.m.
 
3. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to

appear in-person before a regular meeting of the City Council, regarding any matter
posted on the City Council Agenda below, shall complete the sign-up form provided at the
meeting, no later than 2:00 p.m. on September 24, 2024. Citizen Comments provide an
opportunity for citizens to make comments and express a position on agenda items. 
 
Sign ups:

Tim Goebel, secretary of Highland Oaks Homeowners Association, appeared before City
Council to speak in favor of item 6.7 (a resolution finding that the Highland Oaks PID
meets requirements; accepting the Highland Oaks PID petition; and calling a public hearing
for the formation of a PID). 

 
4. Minutes
 
4. 1. August 27, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting

September 3, 2024 Special City Council Meeting 
  

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member Dr.

Jennifer Wilson, to approve the August 27, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting minutes
and the September 3, 2024 Special City Council Meeting minutes. 

  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
5. Consent Agenda - Items considered to be routine are enacted by one motion without

separate discussion. If the City Council desires to discuss an item, the item is removed from
the Consent Agenda and considered separately.

 
  Motion by Council Member Brayden Rose, seconded by Council Member Dr. Jennifer

Wilson, to approve items 5.1-5.27. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
5. 1. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Resolution No. 2024-R0426 authorizing the Mayor to execute a

Street Use License Agreement, and related documents, by and between the City of Lubbock and
Cavender Real Estate of Lubbock V, in the right-of-way on the east side of Avenue F between
17th Street and 18th Street. 

  

 
5. 2. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Resolution No. 2024-R0427 authorizing the Mayor to execute a

Street Use License Agreement, and related documents, by and between the City of Lubbock and
Chris and Jinna Norman, for right-of-way on the north side of 21st Street between Aberdeen
Avenue and Slide Road. 

  

 

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 24, 2024 Page 3 of 9



5. 3. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Resolution No. 2024-R0428 authorizing the Mayor to execute a
Real Estate Sales Contract, for the purchase of real property located in Lots 3A and 3B, Block 1,
Tech Gardens Addition to the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, by and between the City of
Lubbock and Jaime De La Cruz, of Lubbock, Texas. 

  

 
5. 4. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Resolution No. 2024-R0429 authorizing the Mayor to accept, for

and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, one (1) Street, Public Use, and Right-of-Way Deed, and
all related documents, in connection with certain real property located in Section 10, Block JS,
Lubbock County, Texas (Parcel 17), East of Upland Avenue, North of 7th Street, to be utilized
for the Upland Avenue, 4th Street to 19th Street, 22B Capital Improvements Project, which is a
portion of the 2022 Street Bond Project. 

  

 
5. 5. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Resolution No. 2024-R0430 authorizing the Mayor to accept, for

and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, one (1) Street, Public Use, and Right-of-Way Deed, and
all related documents, in connection with certain real property (Parcel 16) located in Section 38,
Block AK, of the GC R.R. Co. Survey, Lubbock County, Texas, to be utilized for the Upland
Avenue, 34th Street to 50th Street, 22B Capital Improvements Project, which is a portion of the
2022 Street Bond Project. 

  

 
5. 6. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Resolution No. 2024-R0431 authorizing the Mayor to accept, for

and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, one (1) Street Use and Right-of-Way Deed, and all related
documents, in connection with certain real property located in Section 6, Block E, of the GC &
SF R.R. Co. Survey, Lubbock County, Texas (Parcel 10), on the north side of East 82nd Street,
and west of King Avenue, to be utilized for the 82nd Street, I-27 to Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd -
22B Capital Improvements Project, which is a portion of the 2022 Street Bond Project.   

  

 
5. 7. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2024-R0432 receiving the Semi-Annual Report from

the Capital Improvements Advisory Committee, regarding the progress and implementation of
the Impact Fee Program. 

  

 
5. 8. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2024-R0433 authorizing the Mayor to execute Public

Works Contract 18263, and all related documents, with Deerwood Construction, Inc., for
waterline construction along East 4th Street. 

  

 
5. 9. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2024-R0434 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Public Works Contract 18195, with Trifecta Services Company, for the demolition and removal
of a water tower at 74th Street and Genoa Avenue. 

  

 
5. 10. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning:

Ordinance No. 2024-O0130, action on the City of Lubbock Planning and Zoning Commission's
final report of September 5, 2024, to the Lubbock City Council on proposed amendments to the
Unified Development Code (Ordinance No. 2023-O0054) recommended for adoption, limited to
the following: 

Table 39.03.023-2 (related to Base Public and Nonresidential Districts Sign Standards)1.
Section 39.02.004.a.7, Section 39.02.004.b.7, Section 39.02.004.c.7, Section 39.02.004.d.7,
Section 39.02.004.e.7 (related to Signs in Residential Districts for Non-Residential Uses)

2.

Section 39.03.023.b.8 (related to Monument Signs)3.

  

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 24, 2024 Page 4 of 9



Section 39.03.023.b.8 (related to Monument Signs)3.
 
5. 11. Resolution - Planning: Resolution No. 2024-R0435 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Professional Services Contract 17872, with SAFEbuilt, LLC, for the completion of a Zoning
Map Analysis. 

  

 
5. 12. Resolution - Water Utilities: Resolution No. 2024-R0436 authorizing the Mayor to execute an

Interlocal Contract with the City of Shallowater for the continued purchase of wholesale water
from the City’s potable water system. 

  

 
5. 13. Resolution - Facilities Management: Resolution No.'s 2024-R0437 and 2024-R0438

authorizing the Mayor to execute a Lease Agreement Extension with Wilkerson Investment
Company for 401 and 405 34th Street, and 530 36th Street, currently being used by several City
departments for operations. 

  

 
5. 14. Resolution - Public Health Services: Resolution No. 2024-R0439 authorizing the Mayor to

execute an Interlocal Agreement, and all related documents, by and between the City of Lubbock
Public Health Department and StarCare Specialty Health System, to assist in a behavioral health
response to a disaster or emergency event. 

  

 
5. 15. Resolution - Public Health Services: Resolution No. 2024-R0440 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Amendment No. 1 to the Department of State Health Services (DSHS) Contract No.
HHS001439500038, and all related documents, under the Center for Health Emergency
Preparedness and Response Grant Program, by and between the City of Lubbock and the State of
Texas, acting by and through DSHS. 

  

 
5. 16. Resolution - Public Transit Services: Resolution No. 2024-R0441 authorizing the Mayor to

execute a Consultant Contract for Transit Services, by and between the Lubbock Metropolitan
Planning Organization (LMPO) and the City of Lubbock/Citibus, to produce reports
for LMPO that satisfy standards required by federal agencies. 

  

 
5. 17. Resolution - Public Transit Services: Resolution No. 2024-R0442 authorizing the Mayor to

execute an amendment to the Memorandum of Understanding among the Lubbock Metropolitan
Planning Organization, the Texas Department of Transportation, and Citibus, to add reference to
the Transit Asset Management Plan and the Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan to satisfy
Federal Transit Administration guidance. 

  

 
5. 18. Resolution - Public Transit Services: Resolution No. 2024-R0443 authorizing the Mayor to

execute a Transportation Development Credit Agreement, TxDOT Project # TDC 2501 (05),
with the Texas Department of Transportation, to reallocate Transportation Development Credits
(TDCs), and to extend the grant time period the TDCs can be used as a local match. 

  

 
5. 19. Resolution - Public Transit Services: Resolution No. 2024-R0444 authorizing the Mayor to

execute a FY 2025 Section 5304 Planning Grant, TxDOT PLN 2504 (05) 039_22, Project ID
51008040525, with the Texas Department of Transportation, for preliminary engineering, initial
design and environmental work for the administrative/maintenance facility, downtown transfer
facility, and mobility hubs.  

  

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 24, 2024 Page 5 of 9



 
5. 19. 1. Resolution - Public Transit Services: Resolution No. 2024-R0445 authorizing the Mayor to

execute a Professional Services Agreement, Contract 17678, with HDR Architecture, Inc., for
Architectural and Engineering Services for the Citibus Administrative and Bus Fleet
Maintenance Facility.  

  

 
5. 20. Resolution - Public Transit Services: Resolution No. 2024-R0446 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Amendment No. 2 to Contract 16537, with Swiftly, Inc., to add Operator Reports,
Onboard Application, and the Automatic Passenger Counter Connector modules, to provide
real-time updates on schedule adherence, routing, and detours along each route. 

  

 
5. 21. Resolution - Parks & Recreation: Resolution No. 2024-R0447 authorizing the Mayor to

execute a Subrecipient Agreement, and all related documents, with the South Plains Association
of Governments, related to funds passed through the U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services to the Texas Department on Aging and Disability Services, for an Area Agency on
Aging Direct Purchase of Services Program, to provide meals and transportation services for the
City of Lubbock Senior Program. 

  

 
5. 22. Resolution - Information Technology: Resolution No. 2024-R0448 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Purchase Order 33001896, with Microsoft Corporation, for a 3-year renewal of the
Microsoft Enterprise Support Services Agreement. 

  

 
5. 23. Resolution - GIS and Data Services: Resolution No. 2024-R0449 authorizing the Mayor to

execute a Consultant Contract between the City of Lubbock and the Lubbock Metropolitan
Planning Organization (LMPO), to provide Geographic Information System services to LMPO,
for FY 2024-25 and FY 2025-26. 

  

 
5. 24. Resolution - Fleet Services: Resolution No. 2024-R0450 authorizing the Mayor to execute a

Lease and Maintenance Agreement, and all related documents, with Wild West
Harley-Davidson, for Police Motorcycles for the Lubbock Police Department. 

  

 
5. 25. Resolution - Police: Resolution No. 2024-R0451 authorizing the Mayor to execute Purchase

Order 10027796, with North American Rescue, LLC, for the purchase of Medical Supply Kits
for the Lubbock Police Department. 

  

 
5. 26. Resolution - City Manager: Resolution No. 2024-R0452 authorizing the Mayor to execute an

agreement, by and between the City of Lubbock and the State of Texas, acting through the Texas
Department of Transportation, for the temporary closure of state right-of-way during the 2024
United Supermarkets Lubbock Marathon. 

  

 
5. 27. Resolution - City Council: Resolution No. 2024-R0453 approving a contract amendment to

American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Agreement No. 17174, between the City of Lubbock and
YWCA of Lubbock, for job training services. 

  

 
6. Regular Agenda
 

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 24, 2024 Page 6 of 9



6. 1. Resolution - City Secretary: Resolution No. 2024-R0454 to nominate board members to serve
as Appraisal District Directors for the Lubbock Central Appraisal District.
 
Courtney Paz, city secretary, gave comments and answered questions from City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member

Brayden Rose, to approve Resolution No. 2024-R0454, nominating Sonny Garza, Greg
Jones, Bobby McQueen, Brady Goen, and Noe Reynolds as candidates for positions on the
Lubbock Central Appraisal District Board of Directors. 

  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
6. 2. Resolution - Finance: Resolution No. 2024-R0455 amending the Gateway Street Projects Fund

to define the scope of revenues from franchise fees to be included in the Fund.
 
Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave comments and answered questions from City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson,  seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Christy

Martinez-Garcia, to approve Resolution No. 2024-R0455. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
6. 3. Public Hearing - Planning (District 2): Consider a request for Zone Case 1531-B, a request of

Judith Struggs for a Historic Preservation Overlay District (HPO) to designate a property with a
Local Historic Designation, on property zoned Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) per
Sections 39.02.009 and 2.03.662, at 2002 Cedar Avenue, located south of East 20th Street and
west of Cedar Avenue, T.E. Wheelock’s Second Addition, Block 15, Lots 11 and 12, and
consider an ordinance.
 
This item was deleted (withdrawn by the applicant). 

  

 
6. 4. Public Hearing - Planning (District 4): Ordinance No. 2024-O0131, for Zone Case 2161-M, a

request of HFA for Lubbock Commercial Buildings, for a zone change from Neighborhood
Commercial District (NC) to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC), at 2731 82nd Street,
located south of 82nd Street and east of Elgin Avenue, on approximately 1.25 acres of unplatted
land out of Block E-2, Section 13.
 
Kristen Sager, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.
 
Mayor McBrayer opened the public hearing at 2:22 p.m.
 
No one appeared to speak in favor or opposition.
 
Mayor McBrayer closed the public hearing at 2:23 p.m.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Brayden Rose, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Christy

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 24, 2024 Page 7 of 9



  Motion by Council Member Brayden Rose, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Christy
Martinez-Garcia, to approve Ordinance No. 2024-O0131. 

  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
6. 5. Public Hearing - Planning (District 4): Ordinance No. 2024-O0132, for Zone Case 3267-A, a

request of Spindlebock Properties, LLC for a zone change from Neighborhood Commercial
District (NC) to Heavy Commercial District (HC), at 3202, 3204, 3206, 3208, 3210, and 3212
118th Street and 3215, and 3217 116th Street, located between 116th Street and 118th Street and
east of Indiana Avenue, Triple C Business Park Addition, Tracts A through H.
 
Kristen Sager, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.
 
Mayor McBrayer opened the public hearing at 2:22 p.m.
 
No one appeared to speak in favor or opposition.
 
Mayor McBrayer closed the public hearing at 2:23 p.m.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Brayden Rose, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Christy

Martinez-Garcia, to approve Ordinance No. 2024-O0132. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
6. 6. Ordinance 1st Reading - Wastewater Utility: Ordinance No. 2024-O0133 amending the City

of Lubbock Code of Ordinances, Chapter 22, "UTILITIES", to provide for establishing new
definitions, delineating sewer line repair and maintenance responsibilities, amending the
regulation for City-participation for large mains, and repealing certain inapplicable provisions. 
 
Wood Franklin, division director of public works, gave a presentation and answered questions
from City Council. Matt Wade, city attorney, gave comments and answered questions from City
Council.

  

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member Tim

Collins, to approve Ordinance No. 2024-O0133. 
  Vote: 6 - 1 Motion carried

  NAY:  Council Member David Glasheen 

 
6. 7. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2024-R0456 making findings that the

Highland Oaks Public Improvement District (PID) meets the requirements of Chapter 372 of the
Texas Local Government Code; accepting the Highland Oaks PID petition, which covers a
portion of an area in Lubbock County, Texas, generally bounded by 146th Street to the north,
Slide Road to the east, Woodrow Road to the south, and Frankford Avenue to the west; and
calling for a public hearing to receive public comment on the formation of a public improvement
district in the area depicted and described. 

  

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 24, 2024 Page 8 of 9



Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave a presentation and answered questions from City Council.

Motion by Council Member Brayden Rose, seconded by Council Member Dr. Jennifer
Wilson, to approve Resolution No. 2024-R0456. 

Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

6. 8. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2024-R0457 accepting a petition to create
a tax increment reinvestment zone pursuant to Texas Tax Code Sec.311.005(a)(4) to be called
Tax Increment Financing District No. 4, located in the North Park Development area,
approximately described as the area east of Frankford Avenue, south of Erskine Street, north of
West Loop 289 and west of N. Winston Avenue and set a public hearing regarding same. 

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave a presentation and answered questions from City Council.

Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member Tim
Collins, to approve Resolution No. 2024-R0457. 

Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

Other:  Council Member David Glasheen (RECUSE) 

2:47 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED

There being no further business to come before Council, Mayor McBrayer adjourned the meeting.

The September 24, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the
22nd day of October, 2024.

____________________________________
MARK W. McBRAYER, MAYOR

ATTEST:

___________________________________
Courtney Paz, City Secretary

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 24, 2024 Page 9 of 9



CITY OF LUBBOCK
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING

September 26, 2024
6:00 P.M.

The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in special session on the 26th of September, 2024,
in City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas at 6:00 p.m.

6:01 P.M. CITY COUNCIL CONVENED
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

Present:  Mayor Mark W. McBrayer; Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia; Council Member Tim
Collins; Council Member David Glasheen; Council Member Brayden Rose; City Manager W.
Jarrett Atkinson; City Attorney Matt Wade; Deputy City Secretary Jimmy Maynard 

Absent:  Council Member Gordon Harris; Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson 

Note: This was a joint meeting with the Planning and Zoning Commission. Members of the Commission, in
attendance, were: Chair James Bell, Vice Chair Brandon Hardaway, Tanner Noble, Susan Tomlinson, and
Terri Morris.

Note:      City Council addressed agenda items in the following order: 
1-1.3

1. Call to Order - Welcome and Introductions

The meeting was called to order at 6:01 p.m.

Mayor McBrayer introduced James Bell, chair of the Planning and Zoning Commission, and
welcomed those in attendance.

1. 1. Introductory remarks and Presentation by the City of Lubbock Planning Staff on the proposed
Amendments to the Unified Development Code.

Kristen Sager, director of planning, gave a presentation on the proposed Amendments to the
Unified Development Code and answered questions from City Council. Matt Wade, city
attorney, gave comments and answered questions.

1. 2. Hold a Joint Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting and Public Hearing with the City
Council to discuss and take action to amend the Unified Development Code (Ordinance No.
2023-O0054) including but not limited to proposed amendments to Division 3.4, related to
Trees, Landscaping, and Buffering, including, but not limited to, Section 39.03.014.b
regarding General Provisions, Table 39.03.014-1 regarding Required Landscape Types,



Sections 39.03.015 and 39.03.015.e regarding Development Landscaping and Groundcover
Requirements, Tables 39.03.015-1&2 regarding Landscape Point System and Parking Lot
Planting Requirements, Sections 39.03.016.d.1, 39.03.016.e.1, 39.03.016.e.3.A,
39.03.016.e.3.B.i, 39.03.016.e.4&6, and Tables 39.03.016-1 through 39.03.016-3 regarding
Bufferyard Landscaping, Sections 39.03.019.a.2, 39.03.019.a.6.B, and 39.03.019.d.6 regarding
Installation and Maintenance, Appendix A related to Plant List, Division 2.2, Tables
39.02.004.a-4, 39.02.004.b-4, 39.02.004.c-4, 39.02.004.d-4, 39.02.004.e-4, 39.02.006.a-4,
39.02.006.b-4, 39.02.006.c-4, 39.02.006.d-4, 39.02.006.e-4, 39.02.006.f-4, and 39.02.006.g-4
related to Zoning Districts and Standards, specifically Required Landscaping Types Summary,
and Section 39.10.002, related to Definitions.
 
Mayor McBrayer opened the public hearing at 6:10 p.m.
 
Terry Holeman, with Hugo Reed and Associates and the Developers Council of the West
Texas Home Builders Association; and Alex Scarborough, with Tom's Tree Place and
Lubbock Alliance of Landscape Architects, appeared before City Council to speak in favor.
 
Zyanya Ramirez; and Dora Cortez, with North and East Lubbock Coalition, appeared before
City Council to speak on this item. 
 
Dustin Wright, with New West Workshop, appeared before City Council to speak in favor of
all proposed Amendments, except proposed Amendments 9, 17, and 23, in which he spoke in
opposition of.  
 
Mayor McBrayer closed the public hearing at 6:40 p.m.
 
During the public hearing, the following individuals gave comments and answered questions
from City Council: Kristen Sager, director of planning; Zyanya Ramirez; Alex Scarborough,
with Tom's Tree Place and Lubbock Alliance of Landscape Architects; and Dustin Wright,
with New West Workshop.

 
1. 3. Discussion regarding timeline and procedures regarding adoption of amendments to the

Unified Development Code (Ordinance No. 2023-O0054).
 
Mayor McBrayer gave comments on the timeline and procedures regarding adoption
of amendments to the Unified Development Code (Ordinance No. 2023-O0054).

 

6:42 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED
 

There being no further business to come before Council, Mayor McBrayer adjourned the meeting.

 
The September 26, 2024 Special City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the
22nd day of October, 2024.

  

Special City Council Meeting 
September 26, 2024 Page 2 of 3



  ____________________________________
MARK W. McBRAYER, MAYOR

ATTEST:
 

 

___________________________________
Courtney Paz, City Secretary

 

Special City Council Meeting 
September 26, 2024 Page 3 of 3



 AI# 12946 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 1. 
10/22/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance Amendment 1,
amending the FY 2024-25 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Grant Fund, regarding Public
Health Services, providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

Item Summary
I. Accept and appropriate $345,283 from the Texas Department of State Health Services (DSHS)
for the Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV) Prevention Services Grant.

This grant is to support HIV prevention staff, testing supplies, advertising, and promotion. This funding
expands access to HIV treatment and prevention services in a clinical setting, as well as increases our
capacity to provide sexually transmitted infection (STI) services, through the creation of an express
clinic model. This grant provides funding for one Pre-Exposure Prophylaxis (PrEP) Navigator, one
Nurse, and one Health Promotion Worker, to prevent layoffs and maintain the total number of full-time
employees at 52.

Fiscal Impact
The funding of $345,283 is for the HIV Prevention Services Grant.

Staff/Board Recommending
Cheryl Brock, Interim Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Budget Amendment 1 







 AI# 12938 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 2. 
10/22/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Finance: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an Interlocal Agreement
between the City of Lubbock and the Lubbock Central Appraisal District, for the collection of
assessments levied on property within the Cypress Ranch Public Improvement District.

Item Summary
This agreement is between the City of Lubbock and the Lubbock Central Appraisal District (LCAD). It
will allow LCAD to collect the assessments levied by the City Council on property in the Cypress
Ranch Public Improvement District.

Fiscal Impact
The cost of the collection services will be an amount equal to the cost per parcel for all other cities and
independent school districts, as calculated in the Agreement for Assessment and Collection of Taxes,
between the City of Lubbock and LCAD, or one quarter (1/4) of one percent (1%), of the annual
collection budget of the Appraisal District, whichever is greater.

Staff/Board Recommending
Cheryl Brock, Interim Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Resolution 
LCAD Interlocal Agreement 
Exhibit A 
Exhibit B 
LCAD Board Resolution 













EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



First Reading
January 9, 2024
Item No. 7. 3

ORDINANCE NO. 2024- 00009

Second Reading
January 23, 2024
Item No. 6. 6

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING A SERVICE PLAN FOR THE CYPRESS RANCH

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, WITH SUCH SERVICE PLAN

INCLUDING AN ASSESSMENT PLAN FOR SAID PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT

DISTRICT; ESTABLISHING REASONABLE CLASSIFICATIONS AND

FORMULAS FOR THE APPORTIONMENT OF THE COST BETWEEN THE

CITY OF LUBBOCK, TEXAS AND THE CYPRESS RANCH PUBLIC

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, AND THE METHODS OF ASSESSING SPECIAL

BENEFITS FOR VARIOUS CLASSES OF IMPROVEMENTS OF PROPERTY

WITHIN THE CYPRESS RANCH PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT; 

APPROVING, ADOPTING, AND FILING WITH THE CITY SECRETARY OF

THE CITY OF LUBBOCK, TEXAS AN ASSESSMENT ROLL FOR THE

CYPRESS RANCH PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT; AND, LEVYING THE

ASSESSMENT FOR THE CYPRESS RANCH PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT

DISTRICT AS A SPECIAL ASSESSMENT, SPECIFYING THE METHOD OF

PAYMENT OF THE ASSESSMENT, AND FIXING CHARGES AND LIENS

AGAINST THE PROPERTY IN THE CYPRESS RANCH PUBLIC

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT AND AGAINST THE OWNERS OF PROPERTY

WITHIN THE CYPRESS RANCH PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT. 

WHEREAS, Chapter 372 of the Texas Local Government Code ( the " Act") provides the

process by which the City of Lubbock, Texas ( the " City") may create a public improvement
district; and

WHEI2EAS, through Resolution No. 2023- R0589 the City Council of the City ( the

Council") authorized the Cypress Ranch Public Improvement District ( the " PID"); 

established the boundaries of the PID; approved the estimated costs, method of assessment, 

and apportionment of costs for the PID; and, created the initial advisory board for the PID; 
and

WHEREAS, through Resolution No. 2023- R0601, the Council directed City staff to: 

1) prepare a Service Plan for the PID according to the Act with such Service Plan covering
a period of at least five ( 5) years, defining the annual indebtedness of the PID, 
projecting the costs for improvements in the PID, and including an assessment plan for
the PID; 

2) prepare an assessment roll for the PID that states the assessment against each parcel of
land in the PID, with such proposed assessment roll to be filed with the municipal
secretary and being made available for public inspection; 

3) send and publish notice of a public hearing according to the Act concerning the Service
Plan; and

EXHIBIT B



WHEREAS, City staff has prepared a Service Plan for the PID according to the Act, 
prepared an assessment roll for the PID, and has sent and published notice of a public
hearing to be held at two o' clock in the afternoon ( 2: 00 PM), Tuesday, January 9, 2024, in
the City Council Chambers, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas, to consider the proposed
apportionment and assessment for the PID; and

WHEREAS, at the adjournment of the public hearing the Council desires to hear and pass
on any objections to the proposed assessment for the PID and, through this Ordinance, to
establish reasonable classifications and formulas for the apportionment of the costs for the

services and improvements of the PID between the City and the PID, to approve, adopt, 
and file with the City Secretary the Service Plan for the PID that includes an assessment
plan and assessment roll for the PID, and to levy an assessment as a special assessment on
the property within the PID; and NOW, THEREFORE; 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUBBOCK: 

SECTION 1: THAT the facts and recitations contained in the preamble of this ordinance
are hereby found and declared to be true and correct. 

SECTION 2: THAT the Council has reviewed the Service Plan for the PID, which is

attached to this Ordinance as " Exhibit 1", and finds that it: covers a period of at least five
5) years; defines the annual indebtedness of the PID; estimates the costs for improvements

in the PID; and, includes an assessment plan for the PID. 

SECTION 3: THAT the Council hereby finds that the assessment rate provided in the
Service Plan for the PID is feasible and sound and will serve the needs and desires of the

property owners within the PID, and the Council hereby adopts the assessment rate of
fifteen cents ($ 0. 15) per one hundred dollars ($ 100) of net taxable value for tax year 2024, 
as determined by the Lubbock Central Appraisal District, of the property or improvements
to the property located in the PID. 

SECTION 4: THAT the Council finds that the assessment plan included in the Service
Plan for the PID provides for the apportionment of the cost of improvements to be assessed
against the property within the PID on the basis of special benefits accruing to the property
within the PID because of the improvements, and the Council hereby establishes the
reasonable classifications and formulas for the apportionment of the costs between the City
and the PID and the methods of assessment of the special benefits for the various classes

of improvements within the PID as such classifications, formulas, and methods are

provided for in the assessment plan. 

SECTION 5: THAT the Council hereby approves, adopts, and files with the City
Secretary the assessment roll that is attached to this Ordinance as " Exhibit 2", with such

assessment roll stating an estimate of the assessment to be levied against the property
within the PID, and with the City Secretary filing the assessment roll in the official records
of the City and being subject to public inspection. 

EXHIBIT B



SECTION 6: THAT the Council finds that the assessments should be made and levied

against the property within the PID and against the owners thereof, and that such
assessments are in proportion to the benefits to the property by means of the services and
improvements in the PID for which such assessments are levied, and further finds that in

each case the property assessed is specially benefited by means of the said services and
improvements of the District, and further finds that the apportionment of costs of the

services and improvements is in accordance with the Act. 

SECTION 7: THAT there is hereby levied and assessed against the parcels of property
within the PID, and against the real and true owners thereof, whether such owners be

correctly named or not, the sums of money calculated by applying the assessment rate to
in the manner described in the assessment plan and assessment roll. 

SECTION 8: THAT the several sums above mentioned and assessed against the said

parcels of property and the owners thereof, and interest thereon at the rate per annum
established herein, together with reasonable attorney' s fees and costs of collection, if
incurred, are hereby declared to be and are made a first and prior lien against the property
assessed, superior to all other liens and claims except liens and claims for ad valorem taxes

and is a personal liability of and charge against the owners of the property regardless of
whether the owners are named; and, with such lien being attached on January 1 of each
year to the property to secure the payment of all assessments, penalties, and interest
ultimately imposed for the year on the property, whether or not the assessments are
imposed in the year the lien attaches and shall be effective until the assessment is paid; 
and, with such lien being perfected on attachment requiring no further action by the
Council. 

SECTION 9: THAT the assessments levied herein shall be due and payable in full on
receipt of the assessment bill and are delinquent if not paid by January 31, 2025 except as
provided in Sections 31. 02( b), 31. 03, and 31. 04 of the Texas Property Tax Code. A
delinquent assessment incurs a penalty of six percent ( 6%) of the amount of the assessment

for the first ( ls`) calendar month it is delinquent plus one percent ( 1%) for each additional

month or portion of a month the assessment remains unpaid prior to July 1 of the year in
which it becomes delinquent. However, an assessment delinquent on July 1 incurs a total
penalty of twelve percent ( 12%) of the amount of the delinquent assessment without regard

to the number of months the assessment has been delinquent. A delinquent assessment

continues to incur the penalty provided by this Section as long as the assessment remains
unpaid, regardless of whether a judgment for the delinquent assessment has been rendered. 
That if default be made in the payment of any of the said sums hereby assessed against said
property owners and their property, collection thereof, including costs and attorney' s fees, 
shall be enforced by the governing body in the same manner that an ad valorem tax lien
against real property may be enforced by the governing body under Chapters 31, 32 and 33
of the Texas Property Tax Code. The owner of the assessed property may pay at any time
the entire assessment on any lot or parcel, along with any interest and penalty that has
accrued on the assessment. 

EXHIBIT B



SECTION 10: THAT all assessments herein levied are a personal liability and charge
against the real and true owners of the premises described, notwithstanding such owners
may not be named, or may be incorrectly named. 

AND IT IS SO ORDERED. 

Passed by the City Council on first reading on January 9 , 2024. 

Passed by the City Council on second reading on January 23 , 2024. 

ATTEST: 

Courtney Paz, ity Secre ary

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 

Blu Koste ich, Chief inancial Officer

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

elli Leisure, Senior Assistant City Attorney

ccdocslORD. Economic Development Cypress Ranch P1D — Service Plan, Assessment Role, and Levy
O l -09- 24

EXHIBIT B



Exhibit 1

Cypress Ra nch

Public Improvement District

2024 SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN

December 5, 2023

u
City Of

C
TEXAS

EXHIBIT B



City of Lubbock, Texas
Finance Department

Cypress Ranch Public Improvement District

Service and Assessment Plan

December 5, 2023

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Tableof Contents .................................................................................................................................. 1

Section I: Plan Description and Defined Terms ...................................................................................... 2

Section II: Property Included in the PID ................................................................................................. 4

Section 111: Description of the Improvement Project .............................................................................. 4

Section IV: Service Plan/ Sources and Uses of Funds ............................................................................... 5

SectionV: Assessment Plan ................................................................................................................................ 6

Section VI: Terms of the Assessments ................................................................................................................ 7

Listof Exhibits ....................................................................................................................................... 7

Exhibit A- PID Legal Description and Map ........................................................................................................ 8

Exhibit B— Service Plan — Five Year Plan .............................................................................................. 11

ExhibitC- Assessment Roll ............................................................................................................................ 12

Exhibit D— Notice of Obligations Related to Public Improvement District .................................................. 13

EXHIBIT B



City of Lubbock, Texas
Finance Department

Cypress Ranch Public Improvement District

Service and Assessment Plan

December 5, 2023

Plan Description and Defined Terms

A. Introduction

Chapter 372 of the Texas Local Government Code, Improvement Districts in Municipalities and

Counties" ( as amended, the " PID Act"), governs the creation of public improvement districts
within the State of Texas. The City of Lubbock created the Cypress Ranch Public Improvement
District ( the " PID") to maintain the public improvements associated with the Cypress Ranch
planned development and for the benefit of certain property in the PID, all of which is located
within the City. ( Capitalized terms used herein shall have the meanings ascribed to them in

Section I. B of this Service and Assessment Plan.) 

This Service and Assessment Plan has been prepared pursuant to Sections 372. 013, 372. 014, 

372. 015 and 372. 016 of the PID Act. According to Section 372.013 of the PID Act, a service plan

must cover a period of at least five years and must also define the annual indebtedness and the
projected costs for improvements. The plan shall be reviewed and updated annually for the

purpose of determining the annual budget for improvements." The service plan is included in
Section IV of this Service and Assessment Plan. 

Section 372. 014 of the PID Act states that " an assessment plan must be included in the annual
service plan." The assessment plan is described in Section V of this Service and Assessment Plan. 

Section 372. 015 of the PID Act states that "the governing body of the municipality or county shall
apportion the cost of an improvement to be assessed against property in an improvement
district." The method of assessing the Costs of the improvements to the property in the PID is
included in Sections V and VI of this Service and Assessment Plan. 

Section 372. 016 of the PID Act states that " after the total cost of an improvement is determined, 

the governing body of the municipality or county shall prepare a proposed assessment roll. The
roll must state the assessment against each parcel of land in the district, as determined by the
method of assessment chosen by the municipality or county under this subchapter." The

Assessment Roll for the PID is included as Exhibit C of this Service and Assessment Plan. The

Assessments as shown on the Assessment Roll are based on the method of assessment described

in Section V of this Service and Assessment Plan. 

The City Council shall make all determinations necessary herein. 

The City Council intends for the obligations, covenants and burdens on the owner of the Assessed
Property, including without limitation such owner' s obligations related to the payment of the
Assessments, to constitute a covenant running with the land. The Assessments levied hereby

2

EXHIBIT B



City of Lubbock, Texas
Finance Department

Cypress Ranch Public Improvement District

Service and Assessment Plan

December 5, 2023

shall be binding upon the owners of Assessed Property, and their respective transferees, legal
representatives, heirs, devisees, successors and assigns. The Assessments shall have lien priority
as specified in the PID Act. 

This Service and Assessment Plan provides for maintenance of improvements benefiting the
entire area of the Cypress Ranch PID. 

B. Definitions

The terms used herein shall have the following meanings. 

Annual Service Plan Amendment" has the meaning set forth in the first paragraph of Section IV
of this Service and Assessment Plan. 

Assessed Property" means, for any year, parcels within the PID. 

Assessment" means, with respect to each Parcel, the assessment imposed against such Parcel

pursuant to the Assessment Ordinance and the provisions therein, as shown on the Assessment
Roll, subject to reallocation among Parcels and reduction according to the provisions herein and
the PID Act. 

Assessment Ordinance" means the Assessment Ordinance approved by the City Council
approving and adopting this Service and Assessment Plan. 

Assessment Roll" means the document included in this Service and Assessment Plan as Exhibit

C, as updated, modified, or amended annually in accordance with the procedures set forth herein
and in the PID Act. 

City" means City of Lubbock, Texas. 

City Council" means the duly elected governing body of the City. 

Costs" mean the actual or budgeted costs, as applicable, of all or any portion of the maintenance

of the public improvements, operation, and other supplemental services, as described in Exhibit
8 of this Service and Assessment Plan. 

Developer" means Betenbough Homes, Inc. 

Legal Description" means the metes and bounds legal description of the PID area included as

ExhibitA to the Service and Assessment Plan. 

EXHIBIT B



City of Lubbock, Texas
Finance Department

Cypress Ranch Public Improvement District

Service and Assessment Plan

December 5, 2023

Improvement Project" means the maintenance of the public improvements that will provide a
special benefit to the property in the PID and described in Exhibit e of this Service and
Assessment Plan and Section 372. 003 of the PID Act. 

Parcel" means a parcel identifed by either a tax map identification number assigned by the
Lubbock County Appraisal District for real property tax purposes or by Iot and block number in a
final subdivision plat recorded in the real property records of Lubbock County, Texas or identified
by any other reasonable means determined by the City Council. 

PID" has the meaning set forth in the second paragraph of Section I. A of this Service and
Assessment Plan. 

PID Act" means Texas Local Government Code Chapter 372, Improvement Districts in

Municipalities and Counties, Subchapter A, Public Improvement Districts, as amended. 

PID Map" means the map included as ExhibitA to the Service and Assessment Plan identifying
the property included in the PID. 

Service and Assessment Plan" means this Service and Assessment Plan prepared for the PID

pursuant to Section 372. 013, 372, 014, 372. 015, and 372. 016 of the PID Act. 

Section II

Property Included in the PID

The PID is located in the City of Lubbock, Texas. A map of the property included in the PID and a
legal description is shown on Exhibit A to this Service and Assessment Plan. 

The 99.5854 acre development is expected to consist of approximately 563 residential units, 
parks and associated rights of way, landscaping, and infrastructure. 

An explanation of the method of assessing property is included in Section V. 

Section III

Description of the Improvement Project

The general nature of the proposed public improvements is: ( i) acquisition, contruction, of

drainage facilities or improvements, ( ii) the design, construction, and maintenance of Parks and

green spaces together with any ancillary structures, features or amenities such as playgrounds, 
splash pads, pool( s), athletic facilities, pavilions, community facilities, irrigation, walkways, 
lighting, benches, trash receptacles and any similar items located therein along with all necessary
grading, drainage, and similar infrastructure involved in the maintenance of such parks and green

4

EXHIBIT B



City of Lubbock, Texas
Finance Department

Cypress Ranch Public Improvement District

Service and Assessment Plan

December 5, 2023

spaces; landscaping, hardscape and irrigation; and ( iii) payment of costs associated with

developing and financing the public improvements listed in subdivision including costs of
establishing, administering and operating the District. The District is to supplement and enhance
services within the District. 

The public improvements will be constructed by the Developer with no reimbursement from the
PID. After analyzing the maintenance, operation, and other supplemental services related to the
Public Improvements, the City has determined that the maintenance of the public improvements
authorized by the PID Act, shown in Exhibit B, should be performed by the City and has further
determined that these maintenance activities will be of special benefit to all the Assessed

Property within the PID. 

A. Maintenance of Public Improvements

The cost of the maintenance, operation and other supplemental services to be funded through

assessments on Assessed Property is estimated at $ 12, 000 in the first year and increases to
84, 290 in the 5th year, with 3 percent annual growth thereafter. The budget for the

maintenance, operation, and other supplemental services will be determined annually by the City

and will be included in a Service Plan Amendment along with amendments to the Assessment
Roll reflecting assessments ( the " Maintenance Assessment") based on such budget for

maintenance, operation and necessary supplemental services. 

Section IV

Service Plan/ Sources and Uses of Funds

Section 372.013 of the PID Act requires this Service and Assessment Plan to "cover a period of at
least five years and must also define the annual indebtedness and the projected costs for
improvements. The Developer plans to make improvements at a cost of $500,000. The PID will
not reimburse the Developer for those improvements. The PID will maintain the public

improvements. The plan shall be reviewed and updated annually for the purpose of determining
the annual budget for maintenance." Such annual update to this Service and Assessment Plan is

herein referred to as the " Annual Service Plan Amendment." The Cypress Ranch PID will have no

indebtedness and the PID assessments will fund the maintenance of the public improvements, 
operation, and other supplemental services. The table below shows estimated sources and uses

of funds including the projected cost of maintaining the public improvements. 

S

EXHIBIT B



City of Lubbock, Texas
Finance Department

Cypress Ranch Public Improvement District

Service and Assessment Plan

December 5, 2023

Service Plan

TAX YEAR

PROPERTY VALUES

Property Values' ( Taxable Value) 

Discounted Property Values - 90% 

FISCAL VEAR REVENUES

I nteres t

Assessment @ 50. 15
Total

FISCAL YEAR EXPENSES

Tra ct A

Tract B

Tract C

Entry Signs

Public Improvement Projects

Repa i rs

Electric Cost

Administretive Costs

Mnual Operation Cost

Developer Reimbursement

Total

Cash Reserves

Properry Va lue grow[ h rate = 2% annually

Expense growth rate = 3% annua I ly

Pro ected

2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 Totals

0

180, 173 180, 173 8,933,776 35, 362,452 71, 069, 701 101,016,095 101,016,095

171, 164 171, 164 8, 487, 088 33, 594, 329 67, 516, 216 95, 965, 290 95, 965, 290

FY 2023- 24 FY 2024- 25 FY 2025- 26 FV 2026- 27 FY 2027- 28 FY 2028- 29

0) 26 138 1, 163 $ 1, 326

257 12 731 50 391 101, 274 143, 948 308 601

257 12 731 50 417 301 412 145 111 $ 309 927

FY 2023- 24 FY 2024-25 FV 2025- 26 FY 2026- 27 FV 2027- 28 FY 2028-29 Totals

10, 000 10, 300 10, 609 $ 30, 909

20, 000 20, 600 21, 218 61, 818

10, 000 10, 300 20, 300

1, 000 1, 030 2, 030

10, 000 10, 000

10, 000 10, 300 20, 300

2, 500 2, 575 5, 075

5, 000 5, 000 30,000 10, 300 10, 609 40, 909

7, 000 7, 000 7, 210 7, 426 7, 649 36, 285

11, 743 11, 743

257 12, 000 4, 210 72, 126 84, 290 $ 215, 883

0 730 3 937 33 223 94 044 5 94 044

The sources and uses of funds table is subject to revision each year. 

Section V

Assessment Plan

The PID was created and the assessment is being levied pursuant to Section 372. 015 of the PID
Act, " Determination of Assessment." 

A. Allocation of assessment

Properties will be assessed based on the City' s 2024 " net taxable value" as established by
the Lubbock Central Appraisal District and submitted to the City under Tax Code Section
26. 04. 

Assessment will be $ 0. 15 per $ 100 valuation
All property will be assessed based on the final 2024 " net taxable value". 

EXHIBIT B



City of Lubbock, Texas
Finance Department

Cypress Ranch Public Improvement District

Service and Assessment Plan

December 5, 2023

Section VI

Terms of the Assessments

The annual assessment for each parcel within the PID shall be shown on the assessment roll. The
amount of the assessment could change each year when the Service and Assessment Plan are
adopted due to increased value on a parcel or the estimated cost of maintaining the public
improvements, repair or replacement costs, and operational or administrative costs. 

List of Exhibits

Exhibit A PID Legal Description and Map

Exhibit B Service Plan — Five Year Plan

Exhibit C Assessment Roll

Exhibit D Notice of Obligations Related to Public Improvement Districts

CI

EXHIBIT B



EXHIBIT A

DESCRIPTION EOR A

99.584 ACRE TRACT LOCATED iN
SECTION 41, BLOCK AK, 

E.L. & R.R. RR. CO. SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 185, 
LUBBOCK COUNTY, TEXAS

A 99. 584 acre tract located in Section 4l, Block AK, E. L. & R.R. RR. Co. Survcy, Abstract No. 
185, Lubbock County, Texas, being that certain tract of lartd conveyed to Betenbough Homes, 
LLC described in a General Warranty Deed and recorded in County Clerk' s File Number (CCFN) 
2022057736 of the Official Public Records of Lubbock County, Texas ( OPRLCT), said 99. 584

acre tract being further described by metes and bounds as follows: 

1) BEGINNING at a point in the south line of that certain tract of land conveyed to James A. Foy, 
Jr. and wife, Ann Smith Foy as described in a Warranty Deed with Vender' s Lien recorded in
Volume 4973, Page 192 of the Real Property Records of Lubbock County, Texas, and the nocth
line of that certain 34. 101 acre tract of land conveyed to Don and Jason Sturgeon described as
Tract 5 in a Special Warranty Deed recorded in CCFN 2014001469 of the OPRLCT, for the most

western northwest corner of said 99.584 acre tract, having coordinates of Northing: 7,272,570.01
and Easting 900,236. 37 of the Texas Coordinate System of 1983 ( 2011), Texas North Central
Zone, whence the calculated northwest corner of said Section 41, bears N. 88° 08' S4" W. a

distance of 360.45 feet and N. O l° S l' 15" E. a distance of 2222.83 feet said section corner having
coordinates of Northing: 7,274,802.80 and Easting: 899,948.09 of the Texas Coordinate System
of 1983 ( 2011), Texas North Central Zone; 

2) THENCE S. 88° 08' S4" E., along the south line of said Foy Tract, a distance of 907.91 feet to
a 1/ 2" iron rod with cap marked " PSC RPLS 6453", found at the southeast corner of said Foy Tract
and an ell corner of said 99.584 acre tract; 

3) THENCE N. O1 ° 53' 03" E., along the east line of said Foy Tract, a distance of 913. 96 feet to
a 1/ 2" iron rod, found at the southwest corner of that certain tract of land conveyed to Texas Green, 

a Limited Partnership as described in a Warranty Deed with Vendor' s Lien recorded in Volume
1866, Page 515 of the Deed Records of Lubbock County, Texas, and the the most northern
northwest corner of said 99. 584 acre tract; 

4} THENCE S. 88° 04' 18" E., along the south line of said Texas Green Tract, a distance of
1266. 11 feet to a l/ 2" iron rod with cap marked " HUGO REED & ASSOC.", found in the west

line of that certain tract of land conveyed to Szu Han Ho as described in a Warranty Deed with
Vendor' s Lien recorded in CCFN 2007018821, for the southeast corner of said Texas Green Tract
and the northeast corner of said 99. 584 acre tract; 

5) THENCE S. 01 ° 55' 39" W., along the west line of said Ho Tract, a distance of 2726.73 feet
to a 1" iron pipe, found in the north line of that certain tract of land conveyed to Lubbock and
Western Railway L. L. C., as described in a Texas Special Warranty Deed recorded in CCFIV
20l5029381 of the OPRLCT, being the south common corner of said Ho tract and said 99.584
acre tract, having coordinates of Northing: 7,270,686.80 and Easting 902,347.04 of the Texas
Coordinate System of 1983 ( 2011), Texas North Central Zone; 

8

EXHIBIT B



EXHIBIT A

6) THENCE N. 70° 17' 26" W. along the north line of said Lubbock and Western Railway Tact, 
a distance of 2280. 94 feet to a I/ 2" iron rod with cap marked " PSC RPLS 6453", found for the

southeast corner of said Sturgeon Tract and the southwest corner of said 99.584 acre tract; 

7) THENCE N. O1  51' 26" E. a distance of ! I 15. 00 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING. 
Bearings and coordinates are relative to the Texas Coordinate System of 1983 ( 2011), Texas North

Central Zone, as determinecf by a point of origin located at Northing: 7, 277, 349.7! and Easting: 
902, 664. 753. The convergence angle to True North is {- 1 54' 32.90" and a combined scale factor

of 0.9997611. Distances are at surface, in U.S. Survey feet. 

I, Landon Merritt, Registered Professional Land Surveyor, do hereby certify that this description
was prepared from an actual survey of the property and that the information hereon represents the
findings of this survey to the best of my knowledge and belief. 

Surveyed February 21, 2023

Landon Merritt

Registered Professional Land Surveyor, 

State of Texas, Registration No. 6466

220340 - Cypress Ranch Metes and Bounds

9

EXHIBIT B



N
O
N

m

H
H

N

O lL
n

F 

i 

7 

a} 
d. 

i. 

c

i 

ZQ

o 

J

YUO
m

O
J

U

f6

0

U 
O

V 

EXHIBIT B



C
f0

a

C
NC
GN

4! N
Q

x
r  

r  d du
m  

f0a vi
m   

J  d

W O   a

p O

a` 
li  

N

N
tu
10

NNN
a
v

c10
a

c
W

E
N
N
Q

G17
f0

O1

XNY
N
C

N0N

C  O  w
Y  

L

O  O  N
N  

C

O N
N

N  

3  
N — 

0 3

cai
E n
N

v c_ 

a a

O

lDN

1 O lD .- I P Ol a0 O O O O u1 01 U1 M M  
01 O N O N O.-- i O M O O I O 00  OO
O N M O 01 01 00 M O O M O O N 1 0p O

t0 V1 .-- 00 01 = O.-- i O N O O v1 O O .-- / f tY
0 -- I lD O O  M l0 N r1 N  M e- 1 rl 01

O O t+1 M  `-' N

1 V1  
O G 

L! N Vf V iA

l/ 1 O M 00 rl 01 00 O O O O/ 1 O) Ol ' O  
Q O O D cf .- I 01 O.-- i O M O O I O 01
O N N.-- Ol .- I N l0 N M O O M u'1 lD 10 N O

00 t0 V1 pp .-- i M V1 pp O.-- O O O N O I   
N .-- 1 t0 N  t7 N e l N a- I .-- 1 a-- 1 a-- I 01
O O O O   
N ._ j  N N

O O1

LL YiL

r tD 00  N O O O O ' O O O O ' tC M
O r- I 00 M I rl 00 O O O O O O O N N N
I N N N N M tO O O O l/ 1 M tt .- 1 N

1 01 l0 n - I ri O O O.-- 1 O N O f N M
N t0 - 1 N O O N " N a- I .-- i a- 1 1 M

O O v1 O  r+ O
N ,.. j ^ N N

I G } > 
LL LL

N O t0  1 O O ' ' ' ' ' O O ' O I 
tf1 N 1 N 01 - 1 1 O O O a-- rl M

M N M N O O O N N 01

t0 N tt p O O G O O O I 1 M
N t0 01 N Vl IA N r1 N .- i a

N

m  

N N
lf1 M

M M Y y
lL LL

QI
l0 00 O-- r1 ' ' ' ' ' ' ' O O O O

a`  o tO
v  ° 

o 0
1

0  N N

N M 01 0 N ,- Ni  N
L! 1 I 

e i 

Q1  

N pp pp N N
LL LL

e^-I e- I N N N N ' ' ' ' , O O n N
O

N 0 0 I N N ^" 
N   N N

LL

nt 0            
I a-- N ' N

N 0 0 I N N
N   N N

y } LL LL

O
7 p 
19  

i  
w  

m > 

f0 T

W ~  
J N L]. 
Q j

O

a
m

T  

a ° 1 ' o
O vui

f- a n. 0

cf0
a

u

HW

Z  
W  

O
W  

o 

W N
y« E
J  

N
N

Vf `• , O
LL  Q 1- 

N

C

0 0/ 

W d vYf  

V1 , n O N
Z C +' U  
W  

O C  

X  U O  

W
0/  a+ 

v
at o  ;. 

v  
a '^ Q O  C.  

on  v N O p_ 

gamv„ :
c oo

p a+ 7 yu u u'  Q u E c> 
H

LL  --  W d  W Q Q 0

o

0

c , c — m  
N CC
II fp

Y 0
m

L n
Y

O  L
L

3GJ7
00

N ' N
v

c

a. a
w

f0 n. iE

v. + 

O

n

w

E
0
x

000
O

OrlN
da
c

0

w
C

CW

N

Q

l" 

e l

EXHIBIT B



EXHIBIT C

Cypress Ranch PID Projected Assessment Role

LCAD Roll: 10. 30.2023

Property Land Market Taxable Estimated

ID Owner Name OwnerAddress Legal Description Size Value Value Assessment

6305 82ND ST

R347512 BETENBOUGH HOMES LLC LUBBOCK, TX 79424- 3681 BLK AK SEC 41 AB 185 TR C2 & OlA AC: 99. 5854 99. 59 180,173 180, 173 $ 270. 26

12

EXHIBIT B



EXHIBIT D

NOTICE OF OBLIGATIONS RELATED TO PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT

DISTRICT

Sec. 5. 014. NOTICE OF OBLIGATIONS RELATED TO PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT. ( a) A person who

proposes to sell or otherwise convey real property that is located in a public improvement district established under

Subchapter A, Chapter 372, Local Government Code, or Chapter 382, Local Government Code, shall first give to the

purchaser of the property the [ a] written notice prescribed by Subsection ( a- 1) or ( a- 2), as applicable. 

a- 1) Except for the notice prescribed by Subsection ( a- 2), the notice required by Subsection ( a) shall be

executed by the seller and must, except as provided by Subsection ( b), read as follows: 

NOTICE OF OBLIGATION TO PAY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT ASSESSMENT TO ( insert name of municipality or county

levying assessment), TEXAS CONCERNING THE FOLLOWING PROPERTY

insert property address) 

As the [ a] purchaser of the real property described above, you are obligated to pay assessments [ a 

to ( insert name of [a] municipality or county, as applicable), Texas, for the costs of a portion of a public

a] improvement or services project ( the " Authorized Improvements") undertaken for the benefit of the property

within ( insert name of public improvement district) ( the " District") created under ( insert Subchapter A, Chapter 372, 

Local Government Code, or Chapter 382, Local Government Code, as applicable). 

AN ASSESSMENT HAS BEEN LEVIED AGAINST YOUR PROPERTY FOR THE AUTHORIZED IMPROVEMENTS, 

WHICH MAY BE PAID IN FULLATANYTIME. IF THE ASSESSMENT IS NOT PAID IN FULL, IT WILL BE DUE AND PAYABLE

IN ANNUAL INSTALLMENTS THAT WILL VARY FROM YEAR TO YEAR DEPENDING ON THE AMOUNT OF INTEREST PAID, 

COLLECTION COSTS, ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS, AND DELINQUENCY COSTS. 

The exact amount of the assessment may be obtained from ( insert name of municipality or county, as

applicable). The exact amount of each annual installment will be approved each year by ( insert name of city council

or county commissioners court, as applicable) in the annual service plan update for the district. More information

about the assessments, including the amounts and due dates, may be obtained from ( insert name of [ t e] 

municipality or county, as applicable). 

Your failure to pay any assessment or any annual installment may result in penalties and interest being

added to what you owe or in a lien on and the foreclosure of your property. 

The undersigned purchaser acknowledges receipt of this notice before the effective date of a binding

contract for the purchase of the real property at the address described above. 

Date: 

Signature of Purchaser

a- 2) For a district described by Section 372. 0035, Local Government Code, the notice required by

Subsection ( a) shall be executed by the seller and must, except as provided by Subsection ( b), read as follows: 

NOTICE OF OBLIGATION TO PAY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICTASSESSMENTTO ( insert name of municipality levying

assessment), TEXAS CONCERNING THE FOLLOWING HOTEL PROPERTY

insert property address) 

As the purchaser of the real property described above, you are obligated to pay assessments to ( insert

name of municipality), Texas, for the costs of a portion of a public improvement or services project ( the " Authorized

Services") undertaken for the benefit of the property within ( insert name of public improvement district) ( the

District") created under Subchapter A, Chapter 372, Local Government Code. 

AN ASSESSMENT HAS BEEN LEVIED AGAINST YOUR PROPERTY FOR THE AUTHORIZED SERVICES, WHICH

MUST BE PAID IN FULL WITH EVERY PAYMENT BY THE HOTEL OF LOCAL HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX REMITTANCES TO

THE MUNICIPALITY. YOUR FAILURE TO PAY THE ASSESSMENT MAY RESULT IN PENALTIES AND INTEREST BEING

ADDED TO WHATYOU OWE, AND MAY INCLUDE THE PURSUIT OF ANY OTHER REMEDYTHAT IS AUTHORIZED UNDER

SECTION 372. 0035( d), LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE. 

13

EXHIBIT B



EXHIBIT D

Information about the calculation of the assessment may be obtained from ( insert name of the

municipality). The exact assessment rate will be approved each year by ( insert name of city council) in the annual

service plan update for the district. More information about the assessments, including the assessment rate and due

dates, may be obtained from ( insert name of municipality). 

The undersigned purchaser acknowledges receipt of this notice before the effective date of a binding

contract for the purchase of the real property at the address described above. 

Date: 

Signature of Purchaser

b) The seller or the municipality or county that created the public improvement district may provide

additional information regarding the district in the notice prescribed by Subsection ( a- 1) or (a- 2), including whether

an assessment has been levied, the amount of the assessment, and the payment schedule for assessments. 

c) This section does not apply to a transfer: 

1) under a court order or foreclosure sale; 

2) by a trustee in bankruptcy; 

3) to a mortgagee by a mortgagor or successor in interest or to a beneficiary of a deed of trust by

a trustor or successor in interest; 

4) by a mortgagee or a beneficiary under a deed of trust who has acquired the land at a sale

conducted under a power of sale under a deed of trust or a sale under a court- ordered foreclosure or has acquired

the land by a deed in lieu of foreclosure; 

5) by a fiduciary in the course of the administration of a decedent' s estate, guardianship, 

conservatorship, or trust; 

6) from one co- owner to another co- owner of an undivided interest in the real property; 

7) to a spouse or a person in the lineal line of consanguinity of the seller; 

8) to or from a governmental entity; or

9) of only a mineral interest, leasehold interest, or security interest. 

d) For the purposes of this section, a contract for the purchase and sale of real property having a

performance period of less than six months is considered a sale requiring notice. 

14

EXHIBIT B



EXHIBIT 2

Cypress Ranch PID Projected Assessment Role

LCAD Roll: 30.30. 2023

Property Land Market Taxable Estimated

ID Owner Name Owner Address Legal Description Size Value Value Assessment

6305 82ND ST

R347512 BETENBOUGH HOMES LLC LUBBOCK, TX 794243681 BLK AK SEC 41 AB 185 TR Q& D1A AC: 99. 5854 99. 59 180,17 180, 173 $ 270.26

EXHIBIT B





 AI# 12892 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 3. 
10/22/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0134, abandoning and
closing portions of a private utility easement located in Section 6, Block E-2, Lubbock County, Texas, in
the Ranchland Terrace Subdivision, at the northeast corner of 40th Street and Chicago Avenue.

Item Summary
On October 8, 2024, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

The City of Lubbock is in receipt of a request to abandon and close a private utility easement located in
the Ranchland Terrace Subdivision, at the northeast corner of 40th Street and Chicago Avenue.
 
The total area of the easements being closed is 2,062 square feet. There is no charge to close easements.
The proponent desires to close the easement, to eliminate this encumbrance from future title searches.
The easement, which is not currently in use, is no longer needed.
 
All City departments and franchise utility companies are in agreement with the closure.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Bailey Ratcliffe, P.E., Interim Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
Ordinance - Ranchland Terrace,TrB 
Easement Doc., V938, P451 
Location Exhibit 















 AI# 12917 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 4. 
10/22/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a Pipeline
Easement Agreement, and all related documents, by and between the City of Lubbock and Atmos
Energy Corporation, for an existing natural gas pipeline on Tract 1, north of Municipal Drive and east of
I-17, Tract 2, south of Municipal Drive, between I-27 and Cesar Chavez Drive, Tract 3, north of Marsh
Sharp Freeway and east of I-27, Tract 4, north of 19th Street and east of Southeast Drive, Tract 6, north
of 82nd Street, between Guava Avenue and Olive Avenue.

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock is proposing to dedicate a pipeline easement to Atmos Energy to be utilized for the
existing natural gas pipeline in the vicinity of Municipal Hill and Mackenzie Park, as shown on the
attached GIS maps. The easements are on the following tracts.
  

• Tract 1 – North of Municipal Drive and east of I-17
• Tract 2 – South of Municipal Drive, between I-27 and Cesar Chavez Drive
• Tract 3 – North of Marsh Sharp Freeway and east of I-27
• Tract 4 – North of 19th Street and east of Southeast Drive
• Tract 6 – North of 82nd Street, between Guava Avenue and Olive Avenue
 

The proposed easement dedication is a 353,240 square foot pipeline easement to Atmos Energy, a
private company, for the pipeline it acquired from Lubbock Power & Light.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Bailey Ratcliffe, Interim Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer 

Attachments
Resolution - Atmos Easement 
Pipeline Easement.100124 
Exhibit A - Atmos Pipeline Easement 
GIS Maps - Atmos Pipeline Easement 





Pipeline Easement

Page 1

NOTICE OF CONFIDENTIALITY RIGHTS: IF YOU ARE A NATURAL PERSON, YOU
MAY REMOVE OR STRIKE ANY OR ALL OF THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION
FROM ANY DOCUMENT THAT TRANSFERS AN INTEREST IN REAL PROPERTY
BEFORE IT IS FILED FOR RECORD IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS: YOUR SOCIAL
SECURITY NUMBER OR YOUR DRIVER’S LICENSE NUMBER.

Line:  560-000

PIPELINE EASEMENT

THE STATE OF TEXAS §
§                      KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

COUNTY OF LUBBOCK §

That for and in consideration of the sum of TEN DOLLARS ($10.00), and other good and
valuable consideration paid by Atmos Energy Corporation, a Texas and Virginia corporation with
its principal office at 5420 LBJ Freeway, Suite 1800, Dallas, Texas 75240,  together with its
successors and assigns (said entity and its successors and assigns are herein collectively called
“Grantee”) to the undersigned, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the undersigned
(herein called “Grantor” whether one or more) hereby grants, sells and conveys unto Grantee, a
free and unobstructed right of way and exclusive easement for the purpose of laying, constructing,
operating, maintaining, inspecting, repairing, replacing, changing the size of, relocating and
changing the route or routes of, abandoning in place and removing at will, in whole or in part, a
pipeline, and the appurtenances thereto, for the transportation of natural gas, including
renewable/biogas and other products necessary for the testing, inspection, maintenance, and
operation of the pipeline(s), and with such above or below ground drips, valves, fittings, taps,
saddles, meters, pressure relief facilities, communication devices, odorization equipment, aerial
and pipeline markers, electrical service, anodes, rectifier poles, and other devices for the control
of pipeline corrosion, and bull guards or similar physical protection, as may be necessary or
desirable in the operation of said lines, over, across, under and upon the area described on Exhibit
“A” attached hereto and made a part hereof (the “Easement Area”).

It is further agreed as follows:

1. Grantee shall have the right to select the exact location of each pipeline and appurtenances
within the Easement Area, and to do whatever may be requisite for the use and enjoyment
of the rights herein granted, including the right of ingress and egress over Grantor’s
adjacent or additional lands to or from said Easement Area in the event Grantee cannot,
within its sole discretion, reasonably access the Easement Area by staying within the
boundaries of the same.  Further if Grantee determines it is necessary to use Grantor’s
adjacent or additional lands for access, then Grantee shall exercise such ingress and egress
rights as follows:



Pipeline Easement

Page 2

a.  Grantee shall first use those existing interior roadways as designated by Grantor
which provide reasonable access from a public right-of-way to the Easement Area;

b. If no such interior roadways exist, Grantee shall use such route as is most
reasonably direct to get from a public right-of-way to the Easement Area, taking
into account Grantor’s existing uses of the adjacent or additional lands and avoiding
damages to such existing uses to the extent reasonably possible;

c. In the event there is an impediment to access within the Easement Area which
requires Grantee to get onto Grantor’s adjacent or additional lands in order to get
around such impediment to access, then Grantee shall only use such portion of
Grantor’s adjacent or additional lands as is reasonably necessary to get around such
impediment and back onto the Easement Area as soon as is reasonably practical.

A width of twenty feet (20’) shall be considered reasonable for any routes of ingress and
egress unless a greater width is necessary to accommodate turning radiuses of Grantee’s
construction equipment and vehicles.

2. Grantor further agrees not to change the grade, remove dirt from the surface of the
Easement Area or impound water over the Easement Area without the prior written
approval of Grantee.

3. The aforesaid consideration includes any and all damages that may be sustained by the
construction and installation of each pipeline and appurtenance permitted under this
Pipeline Easement, as well as damages arising from the repair, maintenance, inspection,
replacement, operation, or removal of each pipeline and appurtenance to be installed under
the instrument, including without limitation, cutting trees and damages to land, trees,
buildings, growing crops and grasses.  Grantee shall, at its option, repair or replace any
damage caused to gates and fences by Grantee’s removal, cutting, or use thereof.  Grantee
agrees that after it completes the original installation of each pipeline and appurtenance
permitted under this Pipeline Easement, it will restore the original contour of the surface of
the Easement Area and any remaining property used for construction, as nearly as
practicable, to its pre-construction condition within a reasonable period of time reflective
of and dependent upon the construction and property’s characteristics, including but not
limited to seasonal growing periods and weather patterns.  Grantee will also maintain the
Easement Area in a manner consistent with the purposes stated herein.  Grantee shall have
the right to remove, cut, and use any gates or fences crossing the Easement Area, including
the right to install gates in such fences within the Easement Area.  Grantor shall have the
right to install and maintain fences provided that such use does not interfere with Grantee’s
permitted use of the Easement Area or Grantee’s access for the purposes described herein
and Grantee shall at all times have access through any such fence by means of a gate.

4. Grantor shall not construct, and Grantee shall have the right to prevent and/or remove, any
improvements, structures, buildings, reservoirs, or obstructions within the Easement Area. 
Further, Grantee has the right to trim, cut down, or eliminate trees or shrubbery, and to
prevent or remove possible present or future hazards and/or activities, any of which, in the
sole judgment of the Grantee may presently or in the future endanger or interfere with the



Pipeline Easement

Page 3

efficient, safe, and/or convenient exercise of Grantee’s rights hereunder within the
Easement. Further, in addition to the rights stated herein, Grantor specifically
acknowledges and agrees that pursuant to this paragraph Grantee has the right to remove
any type of tree, including pecan, olive, or other crop-bearing tree, from, and to prevent any
future encumbrance over, said Easement Area by any tree or any other crop exceeding three
feet (3’) in height or otherwise interfering with the construction, maintenance, and/or
operation of the pipelines permitted under this Pipeline Easement without any
compensation whatsoever to Grantor or its successors and assigns, which rights are
included in the aforesaid consideration. .

5. If a complete assignment of this Pipeline Easement occurs outside of an assignment to an
affiliate or to a successor thorough merger, consolidation, or other sale or transfer of all or
substantially all of its assets and businesses, Grantee shall provide written notice to the
property owner at the last known address of the person in whose name the property is listed
on the most recent tax roll of any taxing unit authorized to levy property taxes against the
property.  Provided however that such notice shall not have any effect on the validity or
legal effect on the assignment.

6. Grantee shall only grant third-party access to the Easement Area for a purpose that is
related to the construction, safety, repair, maintenance, inspection, replacement, operation,
or removal of each pipeline or pipeline appurtenances installed under this Pipeline
Easement.

7. If Grantee should abandon the rights granted herein and if such abandonment should
continue for a continuous period of ten years, all rights of Grantee herein shall ipso facto
terminate and revert to Grantor, his heirs, legal representatives, and assigns.

8. Grantor and Grantee agree that the failure to assert any right under this Pipeline Easement
shall not constitute a waiver of any other right hereunder.  Further, it is hereby agreed that
any delay by Grantee in asserting any right granted it in this Pipeline Easement, regardless
of the length of any such delay, shall not prevent Grantee from later asserting or otherwise
enforcing that same right, including but not limited to the right to prevent or remove any
encroachments within the Easement Area as provided in Paragraph 4 above.

9. This Pipeline Easement shall not be construed as a written agreement between Grantor and
Grantee for purposes of Section 756.123 of the Texas Health and Safety Code (or any
successor statute). Further, as used within this easement agreement, the word “structure” is
intended to be interpreted broadly so as to include all manner of man-made items of any
type, including but not limited to paving, parking lots, and terracing.

10. Except for the rights conveyed by this instrument, Grantee may not exercise any right over
Grantor’s property without express written consent from Grantor. However, the preceding
sentence is not intended to and does not alter, modify, restrict, amend, or otherwise
diminish any right Grantee has to use Grantor’s property independent of this agreement,
whether through a separate agreement, by law, or otherwise.



Pipeline Easement

Page 4

11. Both Grantor and Grantee hereby represent and warrant that they have read and have fully
understood the terms of this Pipeline Easement, that they have had the opportunity to have
same reviewed by an attorney, and that in entering into this Pipeline Easement they are
relying solely upon their independent review and the advice of their respective counsel.
Further, Grantor and Grantee acknowledge that this Pipeline Easement has been negotiated
by the parties, and this Pipeline Easement shall be construed as one prepared by the joint
efforts of Grantor and Grantee and shall not be construed against either party as the drafter.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the above described easements and rights unto the said
Grantee, and Grantee’s successors and assigns, until abandoned as provided for herein.

This instrument and covenants and agreements herein contained shall constitute covenants
running with the land, binding upon Grantor, his heirs, legal representatives, successors and
assigns, for the benefit of Grantee, and Grantee’s successors and assigns.

Grantor hereby binds himself, his heirs, legal representatives and assigns to warrant and
forever defend all and singular the above described easements and rights, unto the said Grantee,
and Grantee’s successors and assigns, against every person whomsoever lawfully claiming or to
claim the same, or any part thereof.

It is hereby understood that the party securing this grant on behalf of Grantee is without
authority to make any covenant or agreement not herein expressed.

<Signature pages to follow>



Pipeline Easement

Page 5

EXECUTED this ________ day of _________________, 2024.

GRANTOR:

_________________________________
MARK W. MCBRAYER, MAYOR

City of Lubbock
1314 Avenue K
Lubbock, Texas 79401

STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTY OF LUBBOCK

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared Mark W.
McBrayer, Mayor of the City of Lubbock known to me to be the person whose name is
subscribed to the foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that he executed the same for
the purposes and consideration therein expressed and in the capacity therein stated.

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE this _____ day of _______, 2024.

___________________________________
Notary Public in and for the State of Texas

____________________________________
   (Print Name of Notary Public Here)

My Commission Expires:  __________

































 AI# 12928 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 5. 
10/22/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for and on behalf of
the City of Lubbock, one (1) Street Use, and Right-of-Way Deed, and all related documents, in
connection with certain real property located in Section 7, Block E, of the GC & SF R.R. Co. Survey,
Lubbock County, Texas, (Parcel 30), south of 82nd Street and west of Martin Luther King (MLK), Jr.
Boulevard, to be utilized for the 82nd Street and MLK Jr. Boulevard Project, which is a portion of the
2022 Street Bond Project.

Item Summary
With the widening of 82nd Street from I-27 to Martin Luther King (MLK) Jr. Blvd., the following street
dedication will allow for the construction of the arterial. Double Slash Ranch, LLC is dedicating
right-of-way to the City of Lubbock.
 
The proponents will dedicate 45,728 square feet of land for street right-of-way purposes, for
$128,540.44 plus $38,000 as compensation for the improvements within the proposed acquisition area,
for a total cost of $166,540.44 plus closing costs.

Fiscal Impact
The cost of the land acquisition is $166,540.44 plus closing costs, and is funded in Capital
Improvements Project 92825, Street Bond 82nd and MLK – 22 B.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Bailey Ratcliffe, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer 

Attachments
Resolution - 82nd St. Parcel 30 
P30 Deed signed 
GIS map - 82nd St. Parcel 30 
CIP Budget Detail 
CIP Project Detail 















As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed Street Deed Dedication
Located in Section 7, Block E

Digital Orthophotography - May 2023

M
A

RT
IN

 L
U

TH
ER

 K
IN

G
 J

R.
 B

LV
D

E 82ND ST
M

A
G

N
O

LI
A

 A
V

E

O
A

K
 A

V
E

K
IN

G
 A

V
E

Proposed Street Deed Dedication
45,728 sq ft

0 250 500125
Feet

82ND ST

TRIG
G HEIG

HTS

E 80TH ST

M
LK

 J
R 

BL
V

D
   

C
R 

25
00



City of Lubbock, TX
Capital Project

Project Cost Detail
October 22, 2024

Capital Project Number: 92825
Capital Project Name: 82nd Street and MLK Blvd - 22B

Encumbered/Expended Budget
City of Lubbock Staff Time  $                                 14,364
Contract 17088 with LAN for Design Services on 82nd and MLK                                3,424,877
Playa Lake 82 Land Purchase                                   700,000
Previous Project Land Purchase's                                       1,892

Agenda Items, October 22 2024
Parcel 9, 16, 17, 30, & 34 Land Purchase                                   231,969

Encumbered/Expended To Date                                4,373,101

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation
Purchase of Land and Roadway Construction                                1,326,899

Remaining Appropriation                                1,326,899

Total Appropriation  $                            5,700,000



Project Scope

82nd Street from I -27 to MLK Blvd and MLK BLVD from 74th Street to 82nd Street are  currently  a two-lane paved road and
are  designated in the  2018 Thoroughfare  Master Plan to become a seven-lane Principal Arterial and a five - land Principal
Arterial (Modified).  Continued growth in east Lubbock has increased traffic demands along the  82nd Street and MLK BLVD
corridors.  This thoroughfare  will include the  ult imate  design of a seven-lane and five - lane undiv ided thoroughfares with
curb and gutter,  drainage ,  streetlights,  sidewalk improvements,  ut ility  adjustment and right of way  acquisit ion services.

Project Justi�cation

On November 8, 2022, Lubbock voters approved issuance of a $200 million street improvements bond
package for the purpose of providing permanent public improvements. The funding will acquire,
construct and reconstruct street improvements, including but not limited to sidewalks, utility line
relocations and traffic signalization, necessary and related storm drainage facilities, and the
acquisition of land and rights-of-way for the full width dedication.

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed:
Public Safety
Community Improvement
Growth and Development

FY 2022-23 $5,700,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2022-O0169

Project Dates Project Location

Design Start Date: 01/2023
Design Completion: 01/2025
Bid for Constuction: 09/2025
Award Construction: 11/2025
Project Completion: 04/2029

82nd St and Martin Luther King Boulevard

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Construction $5,700,000 $0 $14,100,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $5,700,000 $0 $14,100,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

General Obligation Bonds $5,700,000 $0 $14,100,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $5,700,000 $0 $14,100,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

CIP 92825 82nd Street and MLK Blvd- 22B
New Roadway Infrastructure

Project Manager: Bailey Ratcliffe - Engineering

FY 2024-25 Operating Budget and Capital Program - 300



 AI# 12929 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 6. 
10/22/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for and on behalf of
the City of Lubbock, two (2) Street, Public Use, and Right-of-Way Deeds, and all related documents, in
connection with certain real property located in Section 8, Block E, of the GC & SF R.R. Co. Survey,
Lubbock County, Texas, (Parcels 16 and 17), at 82nd Street and Avenue D and 82nd Street and Avenue
F, to be utilized for the 82nd Street and Martin Luther King, Jr. Boulevard Project, which is a portion of
the 2022 Street Bond Project.

Item Summary
With the widening of 82nd Street from I-27 to Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd., the following street
dedication will allow for the construction of the arterial. Kenneth Scott Huffaker is dedicating
right-of-way to the City of Lubbock.
 
The proponent will dedicate 135 square feet of land for street right-of-way purposes, for $1,000 plus
closing costs.

Fiscal Impact
The cost of the land acquisition is $1,000, plus closing costs and is funded in Capital Improvements
Project 92825, Street Bond 82nd and MLK – 22 B.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Bailey Ratcliffe, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer 

Attachments
Resolution 82nd St Parcel 16 & 17 
Parcel 16 - Deed 
Parcel 17 - Deed 
GIS Map 82nd St Parcel 16 & 17 
CIP Budget Detail 
CIP Project Detail 

























17

93
1

2 4 6 87

26

5

1233

12 201615 191811 1413 1211 13

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed Street Deed Dedication
Located in Section 8, Block E

Digital Orthophotography - May 2023

A
V

E 
D

82ND ST

A
V

E 
F

H
W

Y
 8

7 
 IH

 2
7 

 U
S 

87

Proposed Street Deed Dedication
71 sq ft

0 250 500125
Feet

82ND ST

82ND ACRES

80TH ST

A
V

E 
D

Proposed Street Deed Dedication
64 sq ft

A
V

E 
F

MARTIN
 AMEEN

MARTIN
-

AMEEN

WIN
NIEWOOD

COMMERCIA
L

WIN
NIEWOOD

81ST ST

85TH ST

83RD ST

A
V

E 
B



City of Lubbock, TX
Capital Project

Project Cost Detail
October 22, 2024

Capital Project Number: 92825
Capital Project Name: 82nd Street and MLK Blvd - 22B

Encumbered/Expended Budget
City of Lubbock Staff Time  $                                 14,364
Contract 17088 with LAN for Design Services on 82nd and MLK                                3,424,877
Playa Lake 82 Land Purchase                                   700,000
Previous Project Land Purchase's                                       1,892

Agenda Items, October 22 2024
Parcel 9, 16, 17, 30, & 34 Land Purchase                                   231,969

Encumbered/Expended To Date                                4,373,101

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation
Purchase of Land and Roadway Construction                                1,326,899

Remaining Appropriation                                1,326,899

Total Appropriation  $                            5,700,000



Project Scope

82nd Street from I -27 to MLK Blvd and MLK BLVD from 74th Street to 82nd Street are  currently  a two-lane paved road and
are  designated in the  2018 Thoroughfare  Master Plan to become a seven-lane Principal Arterial and a five - land Principal
Arterial (Modified).  Continued growth in east Lubbock has increased traffic demands along the  82nd Street and MLK BLVD
corridors.  This thoroughfare  will include the  ult imate  design of a seven-lane and five - lane undiv ided thoroughfares with
curb and gutter,  drainage ,  streetlights,  sidewalk improvements,  ut ility  adjustment and right of way  acquisit ion services.

Project Justi�cation

On November 8, 2022, Lubbock voters approved issuance of a $200 million street improvements bond
package for the purpose of providing permanent public improvements. The funding will acquire,
construct and reconstruct street improvements, including but not limited to sidewalks, utility line
relocations and traffic signalization, necessary and related storm drainage facilities, and the
acquisition of land and rights-of-way for the full width dedication.

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed:
Public Safety
Community Improvement
Growth and Development

FY 2022-23 $5,700,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2022-O0169

Project Dates Project Location

Design Start Date: 01/2023
Design Completion: 01/2025
Bid for Constuction: 09/2025
Award Construction: 11/2025
Project Completion: 04/2029

82nd St and Martin Luther King Boulevard

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Construction $5,700,000 $0 $14,100,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $5,700,000 $0 $14,100,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

General Obligation Bonds $5,700,000 $0 $14,100,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $5,700,000 $0 $14,100,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

CIP 92825 82nd Street and MLK Blvd- 22B
New Roadway Infrastructure

Project Manager: Bailey Ratcliffe - Engineering

FY 2024-25 Operating Budget and Capital Program - 300



 AI# 12930 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 7. 
10/22/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for and on behalf of
the City of Lubbock, a Street, Public Use, and Right-of-Way Deed, and all related documents, in
connection with certain real property located in Tract A of Nelson Electric Addition to the City of
Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas (Parcel 34), east of the Martin Luther King (MLK), Jr.
Boulevard between 74th Street and 76th Street, to be utilized for the 82nd Street and MLK, Jr. Boulevard
Project, which is a portion of the 2022 Street Bond Project.

Item Summary
With the widening of 82nd Street from I-27 to Martin Luther King Jr. Boulevard, the following street
dedication will allow for the construction of the arterial. Matthew Herman Hamel is dedicating
right-of-way to the City of Lubbock.
 
The proponents will dedicate 28,321 square feet of land for street right-of-way purposes for $59,216,
plus $22,275 as compensation for the improvements located within the proposed acquisition area, for a
total of $81,491, plus closing costs.

Fiscal Impact
The cost of the land acquisition is $81,491, plus closing costs and is funded in Capital Improvements
Project 92825, Street Bond 82nd and MLK – 22 B.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Bailey Ratcliffe, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer 

Attachments
Resolution - MLK - P34 
P34_Deed_Signed 
P34_GIS Map 
CIP Budget Detail 
CIP Project Detail 















TR A

3

4 2

3

1

1

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed Street Deed Dedication
Located in Section 23, Block E

Digital Orthophotography - May 2023

M
A

RT
IN

 L
U

TH
ER

 K
IN

G
 J

R.
 B

LV
D

E SLATON RD  US 84

M
A

G
N

O
LI

A
 A

V
E

O
A

K
 A

V
E

K
IN

G
 A

V
E

Proposed Street Deed Dedication
28,321sq ft

0 250 500125
Feet

E 76TH ST

TRIG
G HEIG

HTS

SE LOOP 289

M
LK

 J
R 

BL
V

D

E 76TH ST

E 78TH ST

McLEOD

PLAN-EX

No 1 WRIG
HT

HENDERSON
DJS

NELSON

ELECTRIC

TRIG
G HEIG

HTS

NELSON ELECTRIC



City of Lubbock, TX
Capital Project

Project Cost Detail
October 22, 2024

Capital Project Number: 92825
Capital Project Name: 82nd Street and MLK Blvd - 22B

Encumbered/Expended Budget
City of Lubbock Staff Time  $                                 14,364
Contract 17088 with LAN for Design Services on 82nd and MLK                                3,424,877
Playa Lake 82 Land Purchase                                   700,000
Previous Project Land Purchase's                                       1,892

Agenda Items, October 22 2024
Parcel 9, 16, 17, 30, & 34 Land Purchase                                   231,969

Encumbered/Expended To Date                                4,373,101

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation
Purchase of Land and Roadway Construction                                1,326,899

Remaining Appropriation                                1,326,899

Total Appropriation  $                            5,700,000



Project Scope

82nd Street from I -27 to MLK Blvd and MLK BLVD from 74th Street to 82nd Street are  currently  a two-lane paved road and
are  designated in the  2018 Thoroughfare  Master Plan to become a seven-lane Principal Arterial and a five - land Principal
Arterial (Modified).  Continued growth in east Lubbock has increased traffic demands along the  82nd Street and MLK BLVD
corridors.  This thoroughfare  will include the  ult imate  design of a seven-lane and five - lane undiv ided thoroughfares with
curb and gutter,  drainage ,  streetlights,  sidewalk improvements,  ut ility  adjustment and right of way  acquisit ion services.

Project Justi�cation

On November 8, 2022, Lubbock voters approved issuance of a $200 million street improvements bond
package for the purpose of providing permanent public improvements. The funding will acquire,
construct and reconstruct street improvements, including but not limited to sidewalks, utility line
relocations and traffic signalization, necessary and related storm drainage facilities, and the
acquisition of land and rights-of-way for the full width dedication.

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed:
Public Safety
Community Improvement
Growth and Development

FY 2022-23 $5,700,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2022-O0169

Project Dates Project Location

Design Start Date: 01/2023
Design Completion: 01/2025
Bid for Constuction: 09/2025
Award Construction: 11/2025
Project Completion: 04/2029

82nd St and Martin Luther King Boulevard

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Construction $5,700,000 $0 $14,100,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $5,700,000 $0 $14,100,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

General Obligation Bonds $5,700,000 $0 $14,100,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $5,700,000 $0 $14,100,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

CIP 92825 82nd Street and MLK Blvd- 22B
New Roadway Infrastructure

Project Manager: Bailey Ratcliffe - Engineering

FY 2024-25 Operating Budget and Capital Program - 300



 AI# 12931 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 8. 
10/22/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for and on behalf of
the City of Lubbock, a Street, Public Use, and Right-of-Way Deed, and all related documents, in
connection with certain real property located in Lot 2, Block 16, of the Trigg Heights Addition to the
City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas (Parcel 9), north of 82nd Street between King Avenue and
Ivory Avenue, to be utilized for the 82nd Street and Martin Luther King, Jr. Boulevard Project, which is
a portion of the 2022 Street Bond Project.

Item Summary
With the widening of 82nd Street from I-27 to Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd., the following street
dedication will allow for the construction of the arterial. Kenneth Alan Wigner is dedicating
right-of-way to the City of Lubbock.
 
The proponents will dedicate 1,525 square feet of land for street right-of-way purposes, for $3,292.50,
plus $1,920.00 as compensation for the improvements located within the proposed acquisition area for a
total of $5,212.50, plus closing costs.

Fiscal Impact
The cost of the land acquisition is $5,212.50, plus closing costs, and is funded in Capital Improvements
Project 92825, Street Bond 82nd and MLK – 22 B.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Bailey Ratcliffe, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer 

Attachments
Resolution 82nd - P9 
P9_Deed_Signed 
GIS Map 82nd - P9 
CIP Budget Detail 
CIP Project Detail 

















City of Lubbock, TX
Capital Project

Project Cost Detail
October 22, 2024

Capital Project Number: 92825
Capital Project Name: 82nd Street and MLK Blvd - 22B

Encumbered/Expended Budget
City of Lubbock Staff Time  $                                 14,364
Contract 17088 with LAN for Design Services on 82nd and MLK                                3,424,877
Playa Lake 82 Land Purchase                                   700,000
Previous Project Land Purchase's                                       1,892

Agenda Items, October 22 2024
Parcel 9, 16, 17, 30, & 34 Land Purchase                                   231,969

Encumbered/Expended To Date                                4,373,101

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation
Purchase of Land and Roadway Construction                                1,326,899

Remaining Appropriation                                1,326,899

Total Appropriation  $                            5,700,000



Project Scope

82nd Street from I -27 to MLK Blvd and MLK BLVD from 74th Street to 82nd Street are  currently  a two-lane paved road and
are  designated in the  2018 Thoroughfare  Master Plan to become a seven-lane Principal Arterial and a five - land Principal
Arterial (Modified).  Continued growth in east Lubbock has increased traffic demands along the  82nd Street and MLK BLVD
corridors.  This thoroughfare  will include the  ult imate  design of a seven-lane and five - lane undiv ided thoroughfares with
curb and gutter,  drainage ,  streetlights,  sidewalk improvements,  ut ility  adjustment and right of way  acquisit ion services.

Project Justi�cation

On November 8, 2022, Lubbock voters approved issuance of a $200 million street improvements bond
package for the purpose of providing permanent public improvements. The funding will acquire,
construct and reconstruct street improvements, including but not limited to sidewalks, utility line
relocations and traffic signalization, necessary and related storm drainage facilities, and the
acquisition of land and rights-of-way for the full width dedication.

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed:
Public Safety
Community Improvement
Growth and Development

FY 2022-23 $5,700,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2022-O0169

Project Dates Project Location

Design Start Date: 01/2023
Design Completion: 01/2025
Bid for Constuction: 09/2025
Award Construction: 11/2025
Project Completion: 04/2029

82nd St and Martin Luther King Boulevard

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Construction $5,700,000 $0 $14,100,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $5,700,000 $0 $14,100,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

General Obligation Bonds $5,700,000 $0 $14,100,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $5,700,000 $0 $14,100,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

CIP 92825 82nd Street and MLK Blvd- 22B
New Roadway Infrastructure

Project Manager: Bailey Ratcliffe - Engineering

FY 2024-25 Operating Budget and Capital Program - 300



 AI# 12932 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 9. 
10/22/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution rejecting any and all bids received for the purchase
of Tract B of Fire Station #1, pursuant to Invitation to Bid (ITB)-24-18043-MA, and orders that no
contract be entered into pursuant to said ITB.

Item Summary
Invitation to Bid (ITB) 24-18043-MA was issued for the sale of an 18,650 square foot vacant parcel of
land south of Fire Station #1, at 20th Street and Avenue J. An appraisal completed in April 2024 by
Lowery Property Advisor valued the property at $35,000.
 
The sole bid was received from Lubbock resident, Jaime Posada, for $10,000.
 
The staff recommendation to the City Council is to reject any and all bids submitted for
ITB-24-18043-MA.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Bailey Ratcliffe, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer 

Attachments
Resolution - Reject Bid ITB 24-18043-MA 
Fire Station 1 Tract B - Plat 
GIS Map - Fire Station 1, Tract B 



RESOLUTION 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUBBOCK: 

THAT the City Council of the City of Lubbock hereby rejects any and all bids receive 
for the purchase of Fire Station # 1, Tract B Addition pursuant to ITB-24-18043-MA and order· 
that no contract be entered into pursuant to said invitation to bid. 

Passed by the City Council on _____________ _ 

MARK W. MCBRAYER, MAYOR 

ATrEST: 

Courtney Paz, City Secretary 

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 

Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

RES.REJECTION OF BIDS· 1TB 24-18043-MA 



Registration No. 5437
David G. Miller, R.P.L.S.

OHE

UG-FBR

O
H
E

O
H
E

O
H
E

O
H
E

O
H
E

O
H
E

O
HE

UG-FBR

U
G
-F
B
R

U
G
-F
B
R

U
G
-F
B
R

U
G
-F
B
R

U
G
-F
B
R

U
G
-F
B
R

U
G
-F
B
R

U
G
-F
B
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT #24-LS0048

AutoCAD SHX Text
Amarillo, TX 79109

AutoCAD SHX Text
Consulting Engineers & Surveyors

AutoCAD SHX Text
OJD Engineering, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
806-352-7117

AutoCAD SHX Text
2420 Lakeview Dr.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE NAME:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Firm No. 10090900

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
06/13/2024

AutoCAD SHX Text
  = 1/2" iron rod "OJD ENG" cap set

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bearings based on U.S. State Plane of 1983

AutoCAD SHX Text
Distances shown are ground distances.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale Factor: 1.000241042

AutoCAD SHX Text
Texas North Central

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O.B. = POINT OF BEGINNING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A 0.43 Acre Tract of land being Tract B of Fire Station #1 recorded in CCF# 2015040114, Situated in Block B, Section 7, T.T. R.R. Co. Survey, Abstract 94, Lubbock County, Texas.

AutoCAD SHX Text
  = 1/2" iron rod "CHT" cap found

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAVID G. MILLER

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
5437

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Avenue J

AutoCAD SHX Text
Fire Station #1, Tract B  0.43 Acres

AutoCAD SHX Text
  = Overhead electric

AutoCAD SHX Text
  = Power Pole

AutoCAD SHX Text
  = Underground Fiber

AutoCAD SHX Text
28

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
Block 2, Dupree Addition Vol. 18, Pg. 463

AutoCAD SHX Text
Street Dedication Deed Vol. 413, Pg. 337 & 338

AutoCAD SHX Text
20th Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
CCF# 2015040114

AutoCAD SHX Text
Fire Station #1, Tract A CCF# 2015040114

AutoCAD SHX Text
S88° 14' 55.37"E 4.03'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.17'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.5' in

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.4' in

AutoCAD SHX Text
16' Alley Vol. 416, Pg. 401 and Vol. 18, Pg. 463

AutoCAD SHX Text
Steel Privacy Fence





 AI# 12934 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 10. 
10/22/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for and on behalf of
the City of Lubbock, a Sewer Line Easement Deed, and all related documents, in connection with
certain real property located in Section 19, Block AK, Lubbock County, Texas, on the west side of
Milwaukee Avenue, south of 114th Street.

Item Summary
Red Spike Development, LLC is granting a 14,754 square foot sewer line easement to the City of
Lubbock to be utilized for the sewer line on the west side of Milwaukee Avenue, south of 114th Street.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Bailey Ratcliffe, Interim Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer 

Attachments
Resolution - Hillstone - Sanitary Sewer Easement 
Hillstone - Sanitary Sewer Easement 
GIS Map - Hillstone Sanitary Sewer Easement 

















 AI# 12935 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 11. 
10/22/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for and on behalf of
the City of Lubbock, a Drainage Easement Deed, and all related documents, in connection with certain
real property located in Tract “A-1-A” of Abbey Commercial Addition to the City of Lubbock, Lubbock
County, Texas, on the west side of Slide Road, between 109th Street and 111th Street.

Item Summary
Thomas Payne is granting a 1,404 square foot drainage easement to the City of Lubbock to be utilized
for storm water conveyance on the west side of Slide Road between 109th Street and 111th Street.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Bailey Ratcliffe, Interim Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer 

Attachments
Resolution - Abbey Comm. Drainage Easement 
Abbey Comm. Drainage Easement 
GIS Map - Abbey Comm. Drainage Easement 















 AI# 12913 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 12. 
10/22/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Amendment No. 1 to
Professional Services Agreement Contract No. 17752, with Parkhill, Inc., for engineering services for
the Southeast Water Reclamation Plant 4 - Primary Clarifier Rehabilitation.

Item Summary
On December 12, 2023, Parkhill, Inc. was awarded Contract 17752, for the preliminary design of the
Southeast Water Reclamation Plant (SEWRP) Plant 4 Primary Clarifier Rehabilitation project.
 
Amendment No. 1 to this contract will amend the scope of work to include final design and bid phase
services. Engineering staff negotiated Amendment No. 1 with Parkhill, Inc., for a not-to-exceed amount
of $329,000, with an additional 18 months. The scope and fee have been negotiated for a fair and
reasonable price at the current contract rates.

Fiscal Impact
Amendment No. 1, in the amount of $329,000, is funded in Capital Improvements Project 92837,
SEWRP Plant 4 Primary Clarifiers Rehabilitation.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Bailey Ratcliffe, P.E., Interim Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
Resolution 
Amendment 1 
Contract 17752 
Location Exhibit 
CIP Budget Detail 
CIP Project Detail 









 

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES 

SCOPE: The City of Lubbock requires design for new mechanisms for two 85-ft diameter clarifiers at Plant 

4 of the Southeast Water Reclamation Plant (SEWRP). The existing clarifiers are Walker Process design 

and were installed with the original Plant 4 improvements in 1992. Additionally, the City of Lubbock requires 

design for a new motor control center for the primary clarifiers. The existing motor control center was also 

installed with the Plant 4 improvements in 1992. Parkhill will provide design and bidding services for this 

project.  Parkhill will not perform any process analysis of Plant 4 in connection with this project but can be 

negotiated for future consideration.  Parkhill will prepare EOPC, plans and specifications before bidding 

phase services. 

Proposed Total Engineering Fee of $329,000 

A:\2023\41833.23\00_ADMIN\00_CONTR\01_FINAL\Amendment\2024.07.15 PSA_COL.docx 

 

DES-2: Engineering Design Services (Clarifier Replacement) ..................................... ($189,000) 

• Review of existing information including existing drawings and submittals 

• Prepare technical specifications for new clarifier equipment 

• Prepare plans for new clarifier equipment 

• Structural engineering design services 

• Discuss staging and phasing of the two clarifiers with City of Lubbock staff and make 

recommendations 

• Present plans and specifications to City of Lubbock staff and discuss 

• Make corrections provided by City of Lubbock staff 

• Finalize plans and specifications 

• QA/QC 

• Deliver final plans to City of Lubbock staff 

• Prepare final EOPC for project 

 

ELE-3: Electrical Engineering Design Services (MCC Replacement) .......................... ($129,000) 

• Review of existing information including existing drawings and submittals 

• Prepare technical specifications for new motor control center equipment 

• Prepare plans for new motor control center equipment 

• Discuss new equipment options, manufacturers, and operational requirements with 

City of Lubbock staff and make recommendations 

• Discuss phasing of motor control center replacement with City of Lubbock staff and 

make recommendations 

• Present plans and specifications to City of Lubbock staff and discuss 

• Make corrections provided by City of Lubbock staff 

• Finalize plans and specifications 

• QA/QC 

• Deliver final plans and specifications to City of Lubbock staff 

• Prepare final EOPC for project 

 

BID-4: Bidding Phase Services ..................................................................................... ($11,000) 

• Assemble advertisement and coordinate with purchasing for bidding of project 

• Issue addenda as required 

• Schedule and attend Pre-Bid meeting 

• Schedule and attend Bid Opening 

• Prepare Bid Tabulation and Recommendation of Award letter 



Today's Date:  

Prepared By:  

Principal:  

Project Manager:  

Project Name:  

Project Number:  41833.23

Task/Discipline:  TBD

Projected Start Date:  

Fee (Revenue) Type:  

Markup on Direct Expenses:  15.00%

Markup on Reimbursables:  15.00%

Fee Costs Summary Fee Summary

(Profit and Markup Included in Total Fee) (OH and Profit in Labor, Markup included in Directs and Reimbursables)

Labor Cost:  $329,784

Direct Consultants:  Labor:  $329,784

Direct Expenses:  Directs:  

Reimbursable Consultants:  Subtotal:  $329,784

Reimbursable Expenses:  Reimbursables:  

Total Fee:  $329,784 Total Fee:  $329,784

Parkhill

Project Fee and Budget Sheet
(Hourly/Billing Rates)

SEWRP Plant 4 Primary Clarifiers

Lump Sum

July 16, 2024

Troy Luedeker, P.E.

Brian Stephens, P.E.

Troy Luedeker, P.E.

TBD

Page 1 of 4



Labor Costs Project Number: 41833.23 Task/Discipline: TBD Current Fee: $329,784

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

CivilEngineers CivilEngineers CivilEngineers ElectricalEngineers ElectricalEngineers OtherProfessionals SupportEmployees StructuralEngineers

Sector Director Civil-PL7 Civil Project Manager-PL6 Professional Civil Engineer-PL4 Senior Electrical Engineer-PL7 Senior Electrical Engineer-PL6 Technologist-PL1 Support Staff-SS5 Senior Structural Engineer-PL5

$352.00 $295.00 $227.00 $352.00 $306.00 $121.00 $122.00 $282.00

BMS DWA TML MT ST JK AS RH

Trips Hours Hours Hours Hours Hours Hours Hours Hours Total

4 8 4 8 8 32

24 24 40 24 112

40 24 40 160 40 304

8 16 8 32

8 8 8 8 8 40

24 24 40 40 24 152

24 24 40 40 24 152

8 8 16 8 8 16 8 72

1 2 2 5

2 4 24 30

40 40 80

24 40 160 224

16 8 24

2 2 8 16 28

8 40 40 16 104

40 40 24 104

2 2 8 8 20

2 2 4

2 4 6

8 4 4 16

4 4 8

2 2 4

8 2 8 18

Hours Trip Count 9 42 202 92 354 480 256 136 1571

Salary $3,168 $12,390 $45,854 $32,384 $108,324 $58,080 $31,232 $38,352 $329,784

QA/QC

Finalize plans and specifications

QA/QC

Prepare technical specifications

Deliver final plans and specifications

Electrical Engineering Design Services (MCC)

Review of existing information

Prepare bid tabulation and recommendation

Review with CoL staff

Revise with CoL staff comments

Task/Discipline             Subtask/Phase

Prepare plans for new clarifier equipment

Prepare plans for new MCC equipment

Discuss and plan phasing/staging

SEWRP Plant 4 Primary Clarifiers

Issue addenda

Bidding Phase Services

Assemble advertisement

Project:

Engineering Design Services (Clarifiers)

Review of existing information

Staff Title - Level

Category

Hourly/Billing Rate

Prepare technical specifications

Discuss and plan phasing/staging

Resource (Employee) Name (Blank if not known)

Labor Subtotals

Attend bid opening

Attend pre-bid meeting

Deliver final plans and specifications

Review with CoL staff

Revise with CoL staff comments

Finalize plans and specifications

Page 2 of 4



Direct Expenses Project: Project No: Task: Current Fee:

Expenses included in lump sum fee.  Not billed to client.

Direct Consultant Costs Amount

611 Structural Consultant

612 Mech/Elec Consultant

613 Environ/Civil Consultant

614 Architectural Consultant

615 Testing Consultant (Geotech, CMT, TAB, etc.)

616 Surveying Consultant

617 Interior Design Consultant

618 Other Consultant - Kitchen / Food Consultant

618 Other Consultant - Acoustical Consultant

618 Other Consultant - AV/ IT Consultant

618 Other Consultant

Direct Expense Costs

621 Travel

Motel Days @ Men  @ /Man-day =

Air Travel Air Fare @ Men  @ /Man =

Parking Days @ /Day =

Car Rental Days @ /Day =

Mileage Miles @ $0.545 @ Trips =

622 Reproductions

Blackline Prints

34" x 22" Shts @ $2.50 /Sht   @ Sets   =

36" x 24" Shts @ $2.75 /Sht   @ Sets   =

42" x 30 Shts @ $3.25 /Sht   @ Sets   =

Other sf @ $0.55 /sf     @ Sets   =

Mounting Foam Board Boards @ $10.00 /ea    @

Printing:

Set Up Fee Originals @ $0.15 /Sht   @ Submittals =

8-1/2" x 11" B&W Originals @ $0.09 /Sht   @ Sets   =

8-1/2" x 11" Color Originals @ $0.55 /Sht   @ Sets   =

11" x 17" B&W Originals @ $0.18 /Sht   @ Sets   =

11" x 17" Color Originals @ $1.05 /Sht   @ Sets   =

Binding Cost Sets @ $2.00 /Set        =

Laminating Shts @ $2.00 /Sht        =

Scan to file

Burn to CD/DVD CD/DVD @ $13.50 /each        =

Scan Specs Originals @ $0.15 /Sht        =

Scan Drawings Originals @ $1.50 /Sht        =

623 Models/Renderings/Photos Shots @ /Shot

624 Telephone  Calls @ /Call

625 Meals Days @ Men  @ /Man-day

626 Field Supplies

628 Postage Mailings @ /Mailing  (Standard)

628 Postage Mailings @ /Mailing (Overnight)

629 Publications

630 Misc Reimbursable Exp

632 Temporary Personnel

634 Office Supplies

635 CADD

636 Field Equip Rental

639 License & Regulation Fee

643 NM Gross Receipt Tax

647 Computer Supplies

Total Direct Consultants

Total Direct Expenses

Subtotal

Subtotal

Page 3 of 4



Reimbursable Expenses Project: Project No: Task: Current Fee:

Expenses NOT included in lump sum fee.  These are billed to client, including markup, if allowed.

Reimbursable Consultant Costs Amount

511 Structural Consultant

512 Mech/Elec Consultant

513 Environ/Civil Consultant

514 Architectural Consultant

515 Testing Consultant (Geotech, CMT, TAB, etc.)

516 Surveying Consultant

517 Interior Design Consultant

518 Other Consultant - Kitchen / Food Consultant

518 Other Consultant - Acoustical Consultant

518 Other Consultant - AV/ IT Consultant

518 Other Consultant

Reimbursable Expenses

521 Travel

Motel Days @ Men  @ /Man-day =

Air Travel Air Fare @ Men  @ /Man =

Parking Days @ /Day =

Car Rental Days @ /Day =

Mileage Miles @ $0.545 @ Trips =

522 Reproductions

Blackline / Color Plots

34" x 22" Shts @ $2.50 /Sht   @ Sets   =

36" x 24" Shts @ $2.75 /Sht   @ Sets   =

42" x 30 Shts @ $3.25 /Sht   @ Sets   =

Other sf @ $0.55 /sf     @ Sets   =

Mounting Foam Board Boards @ $10.00 /ea    @

Printing:

Set Up Fee Originals @ $0.15 /Sht   @ Submittals =

8-1/2" x 11" B&W Originals @ $0.09 /Sht   @ Sets   =

8-1/2" x 11" Color Originals @ $0.55 /Sht   @ Sets   =

11" x 17" B&W Originals @ $0.18 /Sht   @ Sets   =

11" x 17" Color Originals @ $1.05 /Sht   @ Sets   =

Binding Cost Sets @ $2.00 /Set        =

Laminating Shts @ $2.00 /Sht        =

Scan to file

Burn to CD/DVD CD/DVD @ $13.50 /each        =

Scan Specs Originals @ $0.15 /Sht        =

Scan Drawings Originals @ $1.50 /Sht        =

523 Models/Renderings/Photos Shots @ /Shot

524 Telephone  Calls @ /Call

525 Meals Days @ Men  @ /Man-day

526 Field Supplies

528 Postage Mailings @ /Mailing (Standard)

528 Postage Mailings @ /Mailing (Overnight)

530 Misc Reimbursable Exp

532 Temporary Personnel

534 Office Supplies

535 CADD

536 Field Equip Rental

537 Interior Design Items

539 License & Regulation Fee

543 NM Gross Receipt Tax

547 Computer Supplies

Total Reimbrusable Expenses

Total Reimbursable Consultants

Subtotal

Subtotal

Page 4 of 4



































City of Lubbock, TX
Capital Project

Project Cost Detail
October 22, 2024

Capital Project Number: 92837
Capital Project Name: SEWRP 4 - Primary Clarifier

Encumbered/Expended Budget
Contract 17752 with Parkhill  $                                 91,730
 City of Lubbock Staff time                                          809

Agenda Items, October 22, 2024
Amendment No. 1 for Contract 17752                                   329,000

Encumbered/Expended To Date                                   421,539

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation
Construction SEWRP 4 Primary Clarifiers                                2,278,461

Remaining Appropriation                                               -

Total Appropriation  $                            2,700,000





 AI# 12933 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 13. 
10/22/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to approve the Annual Progress
Report on the Floodplain Management Plan, and updates to the Mitigation Actions listed in the Lubbock
County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan.

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock participates in the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) and the Community
Rating System (CRS). CRS evaluates communities and classifies their floodplain management programs,
and rewards communities by reducing flood insurance premiums for eligible policies. The City of
Lubbock has participated in CRS since 1992, and is currently rated as a Class 7 CRS community,
earning a 15 percent premium discount on eligible flood insurance policies. 

Staff believes that the CRS level can be maintained by continuing to commit to activities outlined in this
Progress Report on the Floodplain Management Plan through the Mitigation Actions listed in the
multi-jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan for Lubbock County. The Plan serves as a basis for the
State of Texas to provide technical assistance and to prioritize project funding.

Staff prepared this Progress Report on the specific Mitigation Actions from the Hazard Mitigation Plan.
The Progress Report lists the status of previously proposed Actions/Projects, and also discusses
recommendations and changes to the actions moving forward. While the current plan is nearing its
expiration, the Progress Report is intended to aid future planning activities.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Bailey Ratcliffe, P.E., Interim Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
Resolution 
Flood Plain Management Plan 















































































































 AI# 12909 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 14. 
10/22/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0137, accepting the City of
Lubbock Planning and Zoning Commission's final report of October 3, 2024, to the Lubbock City
Council, on proposed amendments to the Unified Development Code (Ordinance No.
2023-O0054) recommended for adoption, limited to the following:

1. Section 39.03.015.e – Ground cover Requirements
2. Table 39.03.016-2 – Bufferyard Classifications and Division 3.4 Trees, Landscaping, and Buffering
3. Table 39.03.015-1 Landscape Points System
4. Section 39.10.002 Definitions
5. Table 39.03.015-1 Landscape Points System
6. Section 39.03.019.a.6.B - Installation & Maintenance
7. Section 39.10.002 - Definitions
8. Appendix A Plant List and Chapter 39 – Unified Development Code
9. Section 39.03.019.a.2 – Installation and Maintenance
10. Section 39.03.016.e.1 – Bufferyard Standards
11. Section 39.03.014.b General Provisions and Table 39.03.014-1 Required Landscaping Types
Summary
12. Table 39.03.015-1 Landscape Points System
13. Table 39.03.015-1 Landscape Points System
14. Section 39.03.016.e.3.B – Parking Bufferyard Standards
15. Section 39.03.019.e.6 - Installation and Maintenance
16. Table 39.03.014-1 – Required Landscaping Types Summary
17. Table 39.03.015-1 – Landscape Points System
18. Table 39.03.015-1 – Landscape Points System - Other
19. Section 39.03.016.e.4 – Street Bufferyard
20. Table 39.03.016-3 – Street Bufferyard Requirements
21. Section 39.03.016.e.3.A – Parking Bufferyard Standards
22. Section 39.03.016.e.3.B.i – Parking Bufferyard Standards - Composition
23. Section 39.03.019.d.6 - Installation and Maintenance
24. Section 39.03.015 – Development Landscaping
25. Section 39.03.015 – Development Landscaping
26. Figure 39.03.015-2 – Illustrative Parking Lot Planting Requirements
27. Section 39.03.016.d.1 - Composition of Bufferyards
28. Table 39.03.016-1 – District Bufferyard Standards

Item Summary
The Planning and Zoning Commission (PZC) and City Council held a joint public hearing on September



The Planning and Zoning Commission (PZC) and City Council held a joint public hearing on September
26, 2024, to discuss amending the Unified Development Code (Ordinance No. 2023-O0054). 

The attached amendments were presented by staff at the joint hearing. The Planning and Zoning
Commission (PZC) recommended approval of the proposed amendments by a vote of 4-1-0, at their
regular meeting on Thursday, October 3, 2024.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance - UDC Landscape Amendments 
Proposed UDC Landscape Amendments 









Staff Proposed Amendments to Landscaping and Bufferyards 
 

 
1. Section 39.03.015.e – Groundcover Requirements 

 
a. Current Language: Groundcover Requirements. Eligible groundcover area shall not include concrete, 

asphalt, or other impervious surfaces, with the exception of xeriscape groundcover, rocks, decorative 

pavers, or stamped, dyed concrete which may be used only within the first one and one-half feet of the 

parking island to allow persons to access their vehicle without stepping on landscaping. The height of 

the groundcover plant species chosen shall not interfere with the triangle established in 

Section 39.02.022, Measurements, along access drives or anywhere throughout the parking lot. 

 
b. Proposed Revision: Groundcover Requirements. Eligible groundcover area shall not include concrete, 

asphalt, or other impervious surfaces., with the exception of x Xeriscape groundcover, rocks 

(gravel), decorative pavers, or stamped, dyed concrete which may be used, provided there are a 

minimum of 5 live plants planted within the groundcover area, for every 100 square feet of the 

groundcover area only within the first one and one-half feet of the parking island to allow persons to 

access their vehicle without stepping on landscaping. The height of the groundcover plant species 

chosen shall not interfere with the triangle established in Section 39.02.022, Measurements, along 

access drives or anywhere throughout the parking lot. 

 

 
2. Table 39.03.016-2 – Bufferyard Classifications and Division 3.4 Trees, Landscaping, and Buffering 

 

a. Proposed Revision: Remove all references to shrubs and Natural Bufferyards. 
 

b. Add:  
i. When a District Bufferyard is required along the rear property line, a minimum 7 foot tall solid 

masonry fence meeting the regulations in Section 39.03.016.e., may be installed along the rear 

property line, in lieu of the landscape bufferyard. 
 

ii. When a District Bufferyard is required along the rear property line adjacent to an alley, either a 

minimum 7 foot tall solid masonry fence meeting the regulations in Section 39.03.016.e., or the 

required landscape bufferyard with a minimum 7 foot tall solid wood fence, must be installed 

along the rear property line. 

 
c. Change the berm width from 34’ to 18’ on Type A. 

d. Change the berm width from 34’ to 26’ on Type B. 

e. Change the number of Ornamental Trees per 100 Linear Feet from 4 to 3 on Type C. 

f. Change the number of Canopy Trees per 100 Linear Feet from 4 to 3 on Type D. 

g. Change the number of Ornamental Trees per 100 Linear Feet from 6 to 3 on Type D. 

h. Amend Figure 39.03.016-1 Bufferyard Examples to only show the one bufferyard example for each of 

the four types. 

i. On Type D change Structural to Without Berm: 30 

j. On Height of Wall or Fence change from 6 to 7 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-604
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-604


 

 
 
 

3. Table 39.03.015-1 Landscape Points System 

 
a. Proposed Revision: Change “One canopy or two ornamental trees per 1,000 square feet to 2,000 square 

feet.” Change “Six shrubs per 1,000 square feet to 2,000 square feet. ” 
 

 
 
 
 

4. Section 39.10.002 Definitions 

 
a. Current Language: Groundcover means plants of species that will not generally reach a height of more 

than two feet, installed in such a manner as to form a continuous cover over the ground.  Groundcover 

includes sod, ornamental grasses, mulch, or perennial or seasonal plantings and are listed as a 

Groundcover in Appendix A, Plant List. 

 
b. Proposed Revision: Groundcover means plants of species that will not generally reach a height of more 

than two feet, installed in such a manner as to form a continuous cover over the ground.  Groundcover 

includes sod, ornamental grasses, mulch, or perennial or seasonal plantings and are listed as a 

Groundcover in Appendix A, Plant List. Xeriscape groundcover, where a minimum of 5 live plants are 

planted within the groundcover area, for every 100 square feet of the groundcover area, is included in 

this definition. 

7 

18 

7 

26 

3 7 

7 3 3 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-762
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-762


5. Table 39.03.015-1 Landscape Points System 
 

a.Proposed Revision: Replace this element with the proposal below: 
 

 
 

 
 

 
6. Section 39.03.019.a.6.B - Installation & Maintenance 

 
a. Current Language: Two one-gallon shrubs are the equivalent of one three-gallon shrub. The minimum 

number of shrubs required per this Division is based on three-gallon shrubs. If one-gallon shrubs are 

used, the required number of shrubs shall increase to comply with the 2:1 ratio. 
 

 



b. Proposed Revision: Two one-gallon shrubs are the equivalent of one three-gallon shrub. The minimum 

number of shrubs required per this Division is based on three-gallon shrubs. If one-gallon shrubs are 

used, the required number of shrubs shall increase to comply with the 2:1 ratio. 
 

c. Change the minimum size for shrub from 3 gal. to 1 gal. 
 

 

7. Section 39.10.002 - Definitions 

 
a. Current Language: Canopy Tree means a tree exceeding 30 feet in height at maturity, planted for its 

high crown of foliage or overhead canopy and listed as a Canopy Tree in Appendix A, Plant List. 

 
b. Proposed Revision: Canopy Tree means a tree whose canopy is a minimum of 20 feet in width  

exceeding 30 feet in height at maturity, planted for its high crown of foliage or overhead canopy and 

listed as a Canopy Tree in Appendix A, Plant List. 
 

c. Current Language: Ornamental Tree means a tree 30 feet or less in height at maturity, planted primarily 

for its ornamental value such as flowers, leaf color, size, or shape and listed as an Ornamental Tree in 

Appendix A, Plant List. 

 
d. Proposed Revision: Ornamental Tree means a tree whose canopy is a minimum of 10 feet in width 30 

feet or less in height at maturity, planted primarily for its ornamental value such as flowers, leaf color, 

size, or shape and listed as an Ornamental Tree in Appendix A, Plant List. 
 

 

8. Appendix A Plant List and Chapter 39 – Unified Development Code 

 
a. Proposed Revision: Remove Appendix A in its entirety and all references to it within the UDC. 

 

 
9. Section 39.03.019.a.2 – Installation and Maintenance 

 
a. Current Language: Standards. Within each category of required landscaping (canopy trees, ornamental 

trees, evergreen trees, and shrubs): 

A. Not more than 60 percent shall be of any one genus; and 

B. Not more than 40 percent shall be of any one species. 

 
b. Proposed Revision: Standards. Within each category of required landscaping (canopy trees, ornamental 

trees, evergreen trees, and shrubs): 

A. Not more than 60 percent shall be of any one genus; and 

B. Not more than 40 percent shall be of any one species. 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-762
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-762
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-762
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-762
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&amp;ajax=0&amp;secid=940
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&amp;ajax=0&amp;secid=940


10. Section 39.03.016.e.1 – Bufferyard Standards 

 
a. Proposed Revision: Generally. 

A. Voluntary Increase in Bufferyard. Where a lower classification bufferyard is required, the 

applicant may voluntarily provide a higher classification bufferyard, in part or in whole. 

B. Groundcover Requirements.  In addition to the required plantings, walls, fences, and berms, the 

remaining portions of all bufferyards shall contain groundcover. 

C. Landscape Points for Bufferyard. Where a bufferyard is needed, correct location and 

composition of bufferyard shall result in +10 points towards the total number of landscape points 

required on a project. 

 

 
11. Section 39.03.014.b General Provisions and Table 39.03.014-1 Required Landscaping Types Summary 

 
a. Current Language: Required Landscaping Types. Table 39.03.014-1, Required Landscaping Types 

Summary, sets out the landscaping types eligible for points in each zoning district. Figure 39.03.014- 

1, Illustrative Landscape Types, depicts these types. 

 
b. Proposed Revision: Required Eligible Landscaping Types. Table 39.03.014-1, Required Landscaping 

Types Summary, sets out the landscaping types eligible for points in each zoning district. 

Figure 39.03.014-1, Illustrative Landscape Types, depicts these the landscaping types eligible for points. 
 

c. Proposed Revision: Delete Table 39.03.014-1 in its entirety and all references to it. 
 

 
12. Table 39.03.015-1 Landscape Points System 

 
a. Proposed Revision: Remove the following items 

 

 
 

 
13. Table 39.03.015-1 Landscape Points System 

 
a. Proposed Revision: Remove this item in its entirety 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&amp;ajax=0&amp;secid=1465


 

 
 

 
14. Section 39.03.016.e.3.B – Parking Bufferyard Standards 

 
a. Current Language: Composition. A parking area buffer shall be composed of one of the following 

screening devices that are two feet tall: 

 
b. Proposed Revision: Composition. A parking area buffer shall be composed of one any combination of 

the following screening devices that are two feet tall: 

 

 
15. Section 39.03.019.e.6 - Installation and Maintenance 

 
a. Current Language: Maintenance Easement. In a multi-tenant development, a maintenance easement a 

minimum of five feet in width shall be dedicated to the homeowners' or property owners' association, 

PID, or TIF along applicable property lines within the development. 

 
b. Proposed Revision: Maintenance Easement. In a multi-tenant development, a maintenance easement a 

minimum of five feet in width shall be dedicated to the homeowners' or property owners' association, 

PID, or TIF along applicable property lines within the development. 
 

 

16. Table 39.03.014-1 – Required Landscaping Types Summary 

 
a. Current Language: Bufferyards are required for new residential development that is developed using 

the Cluster subdivision option. 

 
b. Proposed Revision: Remove this requirement. 

 

 
 

 
17. Table 39.03.015-1 – Landscape Points System 



a. Proposed Revision: Replace all Parking Lot Landscape Elements with one element: 
 

 
 

 
18. Table 39.03.015-1 – Landscape Points System - Other 

 
a. Proposed Revision: Remove this item: 

 

 
 

 
19. Section 39.03.016.e.4 – Street Bufferyard 

 
a. Current Language: Street Bufferyard. A street bufferyard shall be required for any new residential 

development that is developed using the Cluster subdivision option or any applicable development in 

the OF or AC zoning districts based on the classification of the adjacent street in the current City of 

Lubbock Master Thoroughfare Plan and according to Table 39.03.016-3, Street Bufferyard Requirements. 

The street bufferyard shall be located along the entire length of the street (except for alleys) and shall  

be owned and maintained by the property owner, homeowners' association, property owners' 

association, Public Improvement District (PID), or Tax Increment Finance District (TIF).  These buffers 

shall meet the requirements of the district bufferyard standards in composition. 

 
b. Proposed Revision: Street Bufferyard. A street bufferyard shall be required for any new residential 

development that is developed using the Cluster subdivision option or any applicable development in 

the OF or AC zoning districts based on the classification of the adjacent street in the current City of 

Lubbock Master Thoroughfare Plan and according to Table 39.03.016-3, Street Bufferyard Requirements. 

The street bufferyard shall be located along the entire length of the street (except for alleys) and shall  

be owned and maintained by the property owner, homeowners' association, property owners' 

https://ci.lubbock.tx.us/storage/images/efKby968P0G2df0opb2ELfUMSEwVTb3XZ88xA4s0.pdf
https://ci.lubbock.tx.us/storage/images/efKby968P0G2df0opb2ELfUMSEwVTb3XZ88xA4s0.pdf


association, Public Improvement District (PID), or Tax Increment Finance District (TIF).  These buffers 

shall meet the requirements of the district bufferyard standards in composition. 
 

 

20. Table 39.03.016-3 – Street Bufferyard Requirements 

 
a. Proposed Revision: 

 

 
 

 
21. Section 39.03.016.e.3.A – Parking Bufferyard Standards 

 
c. Current Language: Applicability. All parking areas with more than 10 parking spaces shall have a 

bufferyard between the street and the edge of the parking areas as follows: 

 
d. Proposed Revision: Applicability. All parking areas with more than 10 30 parking spaces between the 

building and the street shall have a bufferyard between the street and the edge of the parking areas as 

follows: 

 

 
22. Section 39.03.016.e.3.B.i – Parking Bufferyard Standards - Composition 

 
a. Current Language: 

i. Continuous hedge; 

ii. Continuous row of ornamental grasses; 

 
b. Proposed Revision: 

i. Continuous hedge; plant spacing at time of planting to provide continuous screening at time of 

plant maturity; 

ii. Continuous row of ornamental grasses; 
 

23. Section 39.03.019.d.6 - Installation and Maintenance 

 
a. Current Language: Mulch and Inorganic Ground Cover. Wood-based mulch and inorganic ground cover, 

including rock and wood chips, may be used around all plantings and in all plant beds. Large areas of 

wood mulch or inorganic ground cover that do not contain plantings are not permitted except when 

used around a site amenity. Synthetic turf is prohibited except in limited applications deemed 

acceptable by the Director of Planning. 

 
b. Proposed Revision: Mulch and Inorganic Ground Cover. Wood-based mulch and inorganic ground cover, 

including rock and wood chips, may be used around all plantings and in all plant beds. Large areas of 

wood mulch or inorganic ground cover that do not contain plantings are not permitted except when 



used around a site amenity. Synthetic turf is allowed when the total area covered does not exceed more 

than half of the minimum landscape surface ratio (% of site) prohibited except in limited applications 

deemed acceptable by the Director of Planning. 
 

24. Section 39.03.015 – Development Landscaping 

 
a. Current Language: None. 

 
b. Proposed Revision: f. Contextual Landscape Requirement. Where an infill project is constructed on 

property zoned Industrial Park (IP), Light Industrial (LI), or General Industrial (GI) and the property is not 

adjacent to or across from any residentially zoned property, the infill site may match the landscape area 

coverage percentage and planting materials density on the average of those developed neighboring 

properties. 

 
25. Section 39.03.015 – Development Landscaping 

 
a. Current Language: None. 

 
b. Proposed Revision: f. Landscape Architect. When the landscape plan is stamped and sealed by a 

licensed landscape architect, it shall result in +5 points towards the total number of landscape points 

required on a project. 

 

 
26. Figure 39.03.015-2 – Illustrative Parking Lot Planting Requirements 

 
a. Proposed Revision: 

 

 

27. Section 39.03.016.d.1 - Composition of Bufferyards 

 
a. Proposed Revision: Delete the language below in its entirety 



 

 
 

 
28. Table 39.03.016-1 – District Bufferyard Standards 

 
a. Proposed Revisions: 

i. Move the IP district to the LI category 

ii. Move the MU-1 district to the MU-2 through MU-5 district 

iii. Remove the requirement for a Type B bufferyard when developing GI property adjacent to LI/IP 

iv. Remove the requirement for a Type A bufferyard when developing SF-1/SF-2 property adjacent 

to RE 

v. Remove the requirement for a Type A bufferyard when developing AC/HC adjacent to NC/OF 
 

 

MU-1 
LI, IP 

MU-1 

LI, IP 



 AI# 12918 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 15. 
10/22/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Planning: Consider a resolution approving the Rules of Procedure for the Zoning Board of
Adjustment, as required by Section 211.008(e) of the Texas Local Government Code.

Item Summary
On December 14, 2023, the Zoning Board of Adjustment (ZBA) adopted Rules of Procedure, which
outline the Powers of the ZBA, Composition of the Board, Duties of the Presiding Officers, Duties of the
Administrator of Zoning, Attendance and General Rules, Public Testimony and Public Hearings, and
Procedure for Hearing.  As required by Section 211.008(e) of the Texas Local Government Code, the
City Council must also approve the Rules of Procedure.  

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Zoning Board of Adjustment

Attachments
Resolution - ZBA Rules of Procedure 
ZBA Rules of Procedure 





  

City of Lubbock Zoning Board of Adjustment 

Rules of Procedure 

 

Section I – Powers of the Zoning Board of Adjustment 

a) The powers of the Zoning Board of Adjustment (ZBA or Board) include, but are not limited to: 

1) To hear, review and decide variance requests as submitted to and prepared by the Secretary of 

the Zoning Board of Adjustment.  The ZBA may grant a variance request provided that: 

i. It is not contrary to the public interest, and 

ii. Due to special conditions, a literal enforcement of the City of Lubbock Zoning Ordinance 

would result in unnecessary hardship, and 

iii. The spirit of the City of Lubbock Zoning Ordinance is observed and substantial justice is 

done. 

2) To hear, review and decide special exceptions to the terms of the City of Lubbock Zoning 

Ordinance as submitted to and prepared by the Secretary of the Zoning Board of Adjustment.  The 

ZBA may grant special exception requests provided that: 

i. The granting of such exception will not be injurious or otherwise detrimental to the public 

health, safety, morals and the general welfare of the general public, and; 

ii. The granting of such exception will not be substantially or permanently injurious to the 

property or improvements in such zone or neighborhood in which the property is located, 

and; 

iii. The granting of such exception will be in harmony with the general purpose and intent of 

the City of Lubbock Zoning Ordinance; 

iv. In determining its findings, the board shall take into account the character and use of 

adjoining buildings and those in the vicinity, the number of persons residing or working 

in such building or upon such land and traffic conditions in the vicinity. 

3) To hear, review and decide administrative appeal requests as submitted to and prepared by the 

Secretary of the Zoning Board of Adjustment, where it is alleged there is error in any order, 

requirement, decision or determination made by an administrative official in the enforcement of 

any order or ordinance pertaining to the City of Lubbock Zoning Ordinance.  Granting an appeal 

request may result in the reversal or modification of the administrative order, requirement, 

decision or determination. 

Section II – Composition of the Zoning Board of Adjustment 

a) The Board shall consist of five voting members and four alternates, appointed by the City Council for a 

term of two years. 

1) In the event that a voting member is absent, the alternate member(s) present shall fill the vacant 

seat of regular members, acting in a voting capacity. 

2) Vacancies, created by resignation, shall be filled by alternate members. 

b) The officers of the Board shall consist of a Chair, a Vice-Chair and the Administrator of Zoning. 

1) The Administrator of Zoning for the City of Lubbock, referred to as the Director of Planning, shall 

be an ex-officio member of the ZBA acting in an advisory capacity and without the power vote. 



  

c) Members of the Board must be residents of Lubbock, Texas. 

d) Members of the Board shall serve without compensation. 

e) Members of the Board may be removed from office for just cause by the Office of the City Secretary. 

f) Members of the Board shall provide notice of resignation to the Director of Planning. 

g) The ZBA shall elect the Chair and Vice-Chair among voting members once a year, at its first regular meeting 

of the year or as deemed necessary. 

Section III – Duties of the Presiding Officers 

a) The Chair shall call all meetings of the ZBA. 

b) The Chair shall preside over all meetings of the ZBA and be a voting member. 

c) The Vice-Chair shall attend all meetings of the ZBA and be a voting member. 

d) The Vice-Chair shall preside at ZBA meetings in the absence of the Chair and shall fulfill all of the duties of 

the Chair. 

e) In the event of vacancy of the Chair (by resignation or other means), the Vice-Chair shall act as Chair until 

the election of a new Chair. 

Section IV – Duties of the Administrator of Zoning 

a) As an ex-officio member of the ZBA, the Director of Planning shall act as Secretary of the ZBA and shall 

create and maintain a separate file for each application for appeal, special exception and variance received 

and shall record therein the names and addresses of all persons, firms, and corporations to whom 

notice(s) are mailed, including the date of mailing and the person by whom such notices were delivered 

to the mailing clerk, post office, or mail box and further keep a record of all notices published as required 

by ordinance.  

b) The Director of Planning shall notify in writing the City Building Official of each decision, interpretation, 

special exception and variance considered by the ZBA. 

c) The Director of Planning shall appoint a Secretary to the Zoning Board of Adjustment, referred to as the 

Secretary, among City of Lubbock Planning Department staff. 

d) If a member of the ZBA fails to maintain a 75% attendance record within the period of a year, the Director 

of Planning shall notify the Office of the City Secretary. 

e) The City Council, at its discretion, may declare a vacancy and appoint a replacement without 

advertisement of the open Board position. 

Section VI – Attendance and General Rules 

a) Five (5) voting members of the ZBA shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. 

Section VIII – Public Testimony and Public Hearings 

a) Regular meetings shall be held on the 3rd Thursday of each month at 8:30 a.m., at City Hall (Citizens Tower), 

unless otherwise provided for by the ZBA, or unless no application of request has been submitted for 

consideration by the ZBA prior to the posted deadline. 

b) Special meetings for any purpose may be held on the call of the Chair, or on request of three or more 

voting members, and by giving written notice to all members deposited in the mail at least 72 hours prior 

to the meeting, or as may be scheduled by a majority of the Board at a previous meeting. 

c) Except as legally permitted executive session discussions, all deliberations of the Board shall be 

conducted, and all of its decisions shall be made, at a meeting that is open to the public. 



  

d) Any party in interest shall appear before the ZBA in person, by agent, or by attorney. 

Section IX – Procedure for Hearing 

a) The Chair shall call the meeting to order. 

b) In accordance with HB 2840, the Chair shall call forward any party in attendance wishing to speak before 

the Board regarding any matter posted on the ZBA agenda provided that: 

1) A written request has been submitted to Planning Department staff no later than 8:30 a.m., the 

morning of the ZBA hearing. 

2) Each speaking party is allowed three minutes (indicated by alarm) to address the Board. 

i. The Director of Planning shall indicate (by alarm) the passage of two-minutes-thirty-

seconds; allowing the speaking party thirty seconds to conclude. 

c) The Board shall consider approval of the minutes of the previous ZBA meeting. 

d) The Board shall consider approval of applicant requests as indicated in Section I (Powers of the ZBA). 

1) The Chair shall call upon Planning Department staff (as delegated by the Director of Planning) to 

outline the applicant’s request, advise the Board of any communications received, and present 

supporting evidence for or against each case by means of prepared presentation. 

i. Planning Department staff shall remain present and available for questions from the 

Board. 

2) The Chair shall call upon the applicant (or representative thereof) to present their case and 

evidence supporting the request without interruption from those in attendance. 

3) If an applicant (or representative) is not present for the hearing, the Chair may elect to proceed 

with the hearing and call the Board to take action. 

4) The Chair shall call upon citizens in attendance, both in opposition to and in favor of, the request 

to address the Board without interruption from those in attendance.  No questioning or 

arguments between individuals in opposition to or in favor of the request will be permitted. 

5) After each individual request case has been heard, the Chair shall call for a motion to vote. 

i. A voting member of the Board shall move to vote. 

ii. After a second voting member of the Board shall move to vote. 

 If no voting member of the Board moves to vote or if no voting member of the 

Board seconds the motion, the motion does not carry forward. 

iii. The Chair shall close the public comment portion of the request hearing and call for 

discussion among members of the Board. 

6) The Chair shall direct any question to the applicant (or representative) or any persons speaking in 

order to bring out all relevant facts, circumstances, and conditions affecting the request, and shall 

call for questions from other members of the Board. 

7) Upon conclusion discussion by the Board, the Chair shall upon the Board to vote on the request 

as presented. 

i. The Chair shall call for votes in favor of the request, indicated vocally and by raised hand. 

ii. The Chair shall then call for votes in denial of the request, indicated vocally and by raised 

hand. 

e) The ZBA may approve, approve with modifications, or deny any request presented at the hearing.  The 

Board may also defer action on any request whenever it concludes that additional evidence is needed or 

that alternate solutions need further study. 

 



 AI# 12784 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 16. 
10/22/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Public Works Water Utilities: Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0138,
amending Section 22.03.083 of the City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances, regarding deposit
requirements and related exceptions for utility service.

Item Summary
On October 8, 2024, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance unanimously.  

On February 2023, Lubbock Power and Light (LP&L) amended the electric rate schedule, terms and
conditions of customers, applicable to all rate classes.  This amendment removed deposits
being collected for utility service. On March 4, 2024, LP&L officially transitioned to retail electric
competition.  

In order to protect the City of Lubbock against the financial risk from customers that do not pay their
utility bill, or have no history with the City of Lubbock, Water Utilities is proposing amendments to the
Ordinance to collect deposits from new and at-risk water service customers. 

The proposed amendments would enable the City to charge deposits for the following conditions. 
Deposits are required to start new service or if a current customer is no longer in good standing
with an account.
Deposits can be exempt if conditions are met by customers.
Deposits are refunded by check or credited to eligible customers' accounts after 12 months of good
pay history, including interest earned.

Fiscal Impact
The attached proposed ordinance does not include a rate increase for any rate class.  The proposed rates
allow for a $150 deposit for a residential customer and $550 for a non-residential customer.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
L. Wood Franklin, Division Director of Public Works
Lubbock Water Advisory Commission

Attachments
Ordinance 
RedLine Ordinance 
LWAC Recommendation Letter 



















  Page 1 of 7 

 

ORDINANCE NO._____________  
 
 AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 22.03.083 OF THE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF LUBBOCK REGARDING DEPOSIT REQUIREMENTS 
FOR UTILITY SERVICE AND EXCEPTIONS THERETO; PROVIDING A PENALTY; 
PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR IMPLEMENTATION IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH STATE LAW; AND PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION. 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Lubbock deems it to be in the best interest 
of the citizens of the City of Lubbock to amend Section 22.03.083 of the code of ordinances 
of the city of Lubbock regarding deposit requirements for utility service and exceptions thereto; 
NOW THEREFORE: 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUBBOCK: 
 
 SECTION 1.  THAT Section 22.03.083 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 
Lubbock is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 

§ 22.03.083  Deposit required; exceptions. 
 
(a) The city shall require a deposit from any consumer of the city’s water 

system in order to obtain water service, in accordance with the following 
terms and conditions: 

 
(1) Water Utilities may require a deposit from a residential consumer in 

an amount equal to $ one hundred fifty dollars ($150.00), as 
determined by written policy of the Director of Water Utilities, 
except as provided herein. 

 
(2) A residential consumer may be exempt from the deposit requirement 

if any of the following conditions are met by the consumer: 
 

(A) The consumer provides proof to the satisfaction of 
City of Lubbock Utilities (COLU), that during the 
two years prior to applying for service from COLU, 
the consumer was a customer of one or more of the 
COLU services for at least twelve (12) consecutive 
months; and 

 
i) The consumer demonstrates adequate and 

available credit, to the satisfaction of COLU 
or,  

 



  Page 2 of 7 

 

ii) The consumer is at least sixty-five (65) years 
of age and has no outstanding account 
balance for COLU services  

 
(B) The consumer demonstrates adequate and available 

credit, to the satisfaction of COLU, by producing 
evidence of creditworthiness in the consumer’s name 
from a utility providing city service of whom the 
primary consumer was a customer during the two 
years prior to applying for Service from COLU, the 
consumer was a customer of a utility providing 
service, other than an energy provider for at least 
twelve (12) consecutive months; and 

 
i) While a customer, the consumer was not 

delinquent in paying for any utility service on 
more than one occasion; and while a 
customer, the consumer never had any of the 
utility services subject to interruption for 
nonpayment; or 
 

ii) The consumer demonstrates adequate and 
available credit, to the satisfaction of COLU, 
by producing evidence of creditworthiness in 
the consumer’s name from a utility providing 
city service of whom the primary consumer 
was a customer; or 

 
 

iii) The consumer is at least sixty-five (65) years 
of age and has no outstanding account 
balance for utility service(s) including COLU 
services that accrued within the last two 
years. 

 
(C)  The consumer has been determined to be a victim of 

family violence as defined in the Texas Family Code 
§71.004, by a family violence center as defined in 
Texas Human Resources Code § 51.002, by treating 
medical personnel, by law enforcement personnel, 
by the Office of a Texas District Attorney or County 
Attorney, by the Office of the Attorney General, or 
by a grantee of the Texas Equal Access to Justice 
Foundation. This determination shall be evidenced 
by submission of a certification letter developed by 



  Page 3 of 7 

 

the Texas Council on Family Violence. The 
certification letter may be submitted directly to 
COLU. 

 
(3) A residential consumer who is exempted from the deposit 

requirement under Section (a)(2) above may have the exemption 
withdrawn and a deposit applied to the account if the Customer is 
no longer able to demonstrate creditworthiness. Events that are 
considered in this determination include but are not limited to: 

 
(A) The consumer’s account for Services becomes delinquent 

and services are interrupted due to non-payment; 
 
(B) Payment for Services has been returned to City of Lubbock 

Utilities as a dishonored payment; 
 
(C) Tampering with COL Property, or theft of Service, has been 

found; or 
 
(D) The consumer fails to comply with the terms of any agreed 

payment plan and/or Payment Arrangement 
 
(4) Residential Deposit Refund. Consumers from whom a deposit has 

been collected shall be eligible for a refund of said deposit after the 
Customer has paid bills for Service for twelve (12) consecutive 
residential billings and during this twelve (12) month period, 
demonstrated creditworthiness as defined in Section B.  
 

(5) Non-Residential.  
 

(A) Water Utilities may require a deposit from the consumer for 
non-residential Service in an amount equal to $ five hundred 
fifty ($550).  

(B) A residential consumer that demonstrates sufficient 
creditworthiness, according to all other criteria herein, may 
stand in proxy for new businesses establishing utility service 
and can be exempted from the requirement for deposit if 
ownership of the business can be proven. Proof of ownership 
shall be in a form and manner as determined by COLU. 

(A)(C) (B) A consumer for non-residential Service shall be exempt 
from the deposit requirement if any of the following 
conditions are met by the consumer: 
i)  The consumer was during the two years prior to 

applying for service from COLU a customer of one 
or more of the COLU service, excluding energy 

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 11 pt



  Page 4 of 7 

 

services, for at least twelve (12) consecutive 
months; and The consumer demonstrates adequate 
and available credit to the satisfaction of COLU.  

ii) The consumer demonstrates adequate and available 
credit, to the satisfaction of COLU, by producing 
evidence of creditworthiness in the consumer’s 
name from a utility providing services, excluding 
energy services, of whom the primary consumer 
was a customer.  

iii)  Additional forms of creditworthiness include Surety 
Bonds and Letter of Guarantee. of these mechanisms 
must guarantee payment to the utility in the event of 
the consumer’s default.  

iv) Deposits will not be required for service to or for the 
following: 

1.  Landlord transferring services to tenant 

2. Property Developer transferring services to 
home owner 

 
(C) A non-residential consumer who is exempted from the 

deposit requirement under Section B may have the 
exemption withdrawn and a deposit applied to the account if 
the consumer is no longer able to demonstrate 
creditworthiness. Events that are considered in this 
determination include but are not limited to: 

 
i)  The Customer’s account for Services become 

delinquent and the Customer’s Services are 
interrupted due to non-payment; 

ii)  Payment for Services has been returned to City of 
Lubbock Utilities as a dishonored payment; 

iii)  Tampering with COL Property, or theft of Service, 
has been found; or 

iv)  The Customer fails to comply with the terms of any 
agreed payment plan or payment arrangement. 

(6) Deposit Refunds 



  Page 5 of 7 

 

(A) Interest Payment to Depositor.  When the service is 
discontinued COLU shall return the deposit and any unpaid 
interest on the deposit to the depositor or the depositor’s 
heirs or legal representatives. COLU may deduct from the 
amount returned for any payments due for the services.   

(B) Refunds to eligible consumers shall be made promptly either 
in the form of a check payable to the consumer or as a credit 
to the consumer’s bill, as determined at the sole discretion of 
COLU. A consumer who received a refund of their deposit 
may have the deposit requirement reapplied if the consumer 
no longer demonstrates creditworthiness as defined in 
Section B.  

(C) COLU shall keep the following records for all deposits 
collected by COLU pursuant to this Section: 

i) The name and address of each depositor; 

ii) The amount and date of the deposit; and 

iii) Each transaction concerning the deposit. 

(D) Any deposit not previously refunded to consumer or credited 
to consumer’s account as provided herein shall be credited 
to consumer’s final bill for Service. 

(b)  The city shall require a deposit for portable meter accounts and related 
backflow prevention assembly used to obtain water from fire hydrants. If 
the meter and backflow prevention assembly are not returned in working 
order, or are otherwise damaged, or if the fire hydrant or water supply line 
to the fire hydrant are damaged, the customer shall pay for the cost of 
repair. If the customer does not pay for the cost of repair, the city shall use 
the deposit to pay for the cost of repair. Any portion of the deposit so used 
must be repaid to city by the customer before the customer can continue 
using water through the portable meter account. Deposits for portable 
meter accounts shall be as follows: 

(1)  The deposit for portable meter account and related backflow 

prevention assembly shall be: $2500.00. 

(2)  The deposit for a special event for a nonprofit, community or other 
non-construction and non-utility entity shall be $150.00 per day 
with a minimum of $300.00 for a small hose-end meter assembly. 



  Page 6 of 7 

 

(3)  No deposit fee shall be required by other city departments. 

(4)  Failure to report monthly non-Automated Metering Infrastructure 
(AMI) meter reads will result in a non-refundable $75.00 service fee 

and estimated volume usage charges will be applied.  

(5)  Unauthorized use charge of $1,000.00 assessed to any consumer or 
corporation found connected up to a fire hydrant without a valid and 
current fire hydrant meter contract and metering device issued by 
city. 

(c)  The consumer or the owner of property served must notify the COLU within 

five calendar days after the occurrence of: 

(A) Any change in ownership, whether by sale, foreclosure, business 
reorganization or otherwise; or 

(B) Any occupancy of previously vacant property; or 

(C) Any total vacancy in the property served; or 

(D) Any change of place of residence or business.  

(d)  Where no charge specified.  When charges for a service are not specified in 
this article, the city manager shall establish charges which are based on the 
cost of performing the services including, but not limited to, such services 
as the moving of meter locations, and repair to damaged facilities.  

 
 SECTION 2. THAT violation of any provision of this ordinance shall be deemed a 
misdemeanor punishable as provided by Section 1.01.004 of the Code of Ordinances of the 
City of Lubbock, Texas. 

 SECTION 3. THAT should any section, paragraph, sentence, phrase, clause or word of 
this Ordinance be declared unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, the remainder of this 
Ordinance shall not be affected thereby. 
 

SECTION 4. THAT the City Secretary of the City of Lubbock is hereby authorized and 
directed to cause publication of the descriptive caption of this Ordinance as an alternative 
method provided by law. 

AND IT IS SO ORDERED. 
 



  Page 7 of 7 

 

Passed by the City Council on first reading this ______________________________, 2023. 
 
Passed by the City Council on second reading this ____________________________, 2024.  
 
 

      
 TRAY PAYNE, MAYOR 
 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Courtney Paz, City Secretary 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Greg Baier, P.E., Interim Director of Water Utilities  
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Amy L. Sims, Deputy City Attorney 
 







 AI# 12945 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 17. 
10/22/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Works Water Utilities: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute the
Sixth Amendment to the Raw Water Lease, between the City of Lubbock and the Lake Alan Henry
Water District.

Item Summary
In 2003, the 78th Texas Legislature passed Senate Bill 1941 creating the Lake Alan Henry Water
District (LAHWD), a special law conservation and reclamation district.

On May 8, 2008, the City of Lubbock executed a 20-year contract with the LAHWD and the South
Garza Water Supply (SGWS) to provide up to 520 acre-feet (169 million gallons) of raw water each year
to developments surrounding Lake Alan Henry within the LAHWD service area.  Lubbock’s raw water
is supplied to SGWS, a private water system operating under a contract with LAHWD.  SGWS
constructed a pump station, transmission lines, a surface water treatment plant, and distribution lines to
provide treated water to lot owners in the Northridge Development located along the north side of the
Lake.  The SGWS began pumping raw water from Lubbock’s intake structure in December 2009. 

On November 1, 2018, the City Council executed a new raw water lease between the City and the
LAHWD.  The contract with LAHWD was designed to replace the existing raw water contract. 
LAHWD plans to purchase the SGWS facilities and extend the water system to other developments
within their service area on both the north and south side of the Lake. 

On October 21, 2019, the City Council executed the First Amendment to the Raw Water Lease.  The
amendment was necessary in order to meet the requirements of the U.S. Department of Agriculture’s
(USDA’s) grant and low interest loan program, which will fund LAHWD’s project. The amendment
provided the City with the option to renew the contract for an additional 10 years (from 35 to 45 years). 

On September 22, 2020, October 26, 2021, and September 27, 2022, November 14, 2023, the City
Council executed the Second, Third, Fourth, and Fifth Amendments to the Raw Water Lease.  Each of
these amendments was necessary because the Original Raw Water Lease required the LAHWD to
finalize the SGWS agreement within 730 days or by November 1, 2020.  Each amendment extended the
deadline for LAHWD to execute the SGWS agreement another 365 days. 

This Sixth Amendment to the Raw Water Lease is needed in order to provide the LAHWD additional
time to finalize the agreement to purchase the SGWS.  Continued delays are due to lengthy and complex
USDA grant/loan program funding requirements.  The LAHWD cannot finalize the agreement with the
SGWS until funding is available.  Therefore, this amendment extends the deadline for LAHWD to
execute the SGWS agreement for another 365 days or until November 1, 2025. This amendment is for
extension of time only, so there is no cost associated with it.

Fiscal Impact



None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
L. Wood Franklin, P.E., Division Director of Public Works

Attachments
Resolution 
Amendment No. 6 









 AI# 12914 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 18. 
10/22/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Health Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Department of State Health Service Grant Agreement Contract No. HHS001326300014, and all related
documents, by and between the City of Lubbock and the State of Texas Department of State Health
Services, under the HIV Prevention Services Grant Program.

Item Summary
This is an existing grant. The Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV) Prevention Services Grant was
initially awarded to the Public Health Department in January 2020 to support HIV prevention staff,
testing supplies, advertising, and promotion. The grant funding is used to increase HIV prevention efforts
for those who are at high risk of infection, to link those newly diagnosed to treatment, and to support the
participation in treatment among all people living with HIV.

This contract is effective on January 1, 2025, and expires on December 31, 2025. The System Agency
may extend this contract for up to two, 2-year renewals for a maximum term of five (5) years.

Fiscal Impact
The contract will not exceed $125,000, and matching funds are not required.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Katherine Wells, Director of Public Health

Attachments
Resolution 
Contract 

















































































































































































 AI# 12915 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 19. 
10/22/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Health Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a StarCare
Specialty Health System Memorandum of Understanding, and all related documents, by and between the
City of Lubbock, on behalf of its Health Department, and StarCare Specialty Health System, to
participate in an inter-agency collaborative effort and serve as an essential link for medication-assisted
treatment services within the community.

Item Summary
The Memorandum of Understanding is an agreement that will allow the participating agencies to meet
the specific needs of the priority population, including serving as an essential link for
medication-assisted treatment services within the community. 

This agreement is to begin on September 1, 2024, and will terminate on August 31, 2025. 

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Katherine Wells, Director of Public Health

Attachments
Resolution 
Memorandum of Understanding 











 AI# 12920 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 20. 
10/22/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Health Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a StarCare
Specialty Health System Memorandum of Understanding, and all related documents, by and between the
City of Lubbock, on behalf of its Health Department, and StarCare Specialty Health System, related to
Outreach, Screening, Assessment, and Referral, to participate in an inter-agency collaborative effort and
serve as an essential link between prevention, intervention, and treatment services within the community.

Item Summary
The Memorandum of Understanding will allow the participating parties to meet the specific needs of the
priority population to assist them by ensuring they are receiving needed care through referrals to
StarCare Specialty Health System. 

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Katherine Wells, Director of Public Health

Attachments
Resolution 
Memorandum of Understanding 











 AI# 12921 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 21. 
10/22/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Health Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a StarCare
Specialty Health System Memorandum of Understanding, and all related documents, by and between the
City of Lubbock, on behalf of its Health Department, and StarCare Specialty Health System, related to
Substance Use Disorder Treatment for Adults.

Item Summary
The Memorandum of Understanding allows the participating parties to participate in an interagency
collaborative effort to meet the specific needs of the priority population, including serving as an essential
link for Substance Use Disorder Treatment for Adults within the community. 

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Katherine Wells, Director of Public Health

Attachments
Resolution 
Memorandum of Understanding 











 AI# 12922 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 22. 
10/22/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Health Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a StarCare
Specialty Health System Memorandum of Understanding, and all related documents, by and between the
City of Lubbock, on behalf of its Health Department, and StarCare Specialty Health System, related to
Substance Use Disorder Treatment for Youth.

Item Summary
The Memorandum of Understanding will allow the participating parties to participate in an inter-agency
collaborative effort to meet the specific needs of the priority population, including serving as an essential
link for Substance Use Disorder (SUD) Treatment for Youth (TRY) within the community. 

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Katherine Wells, Director of Public Health

Attachments
Resolution 
Memorandum of Understanding 











 AI# 12944 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 23. 
10/22/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Human Resources Health Benefits: Consider a resolution authorizing the City Manager,
for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, to purchase and renew a reduced premium for specific stop
loss insurance coverage, renegotiated increased prescription rebates, and an administration credit from
BlueCrossBlueShield of Texas, to reduce health benefit costs while maintaining essential services.

Item Summary
The Addendum to Contract 153259 with BlueCrossBlueShield of Texas (BCBSTX) includes the
following items: 

The Stop Loss renewal premium was negotiated from $23.90 to $22.62 Per Employee Per Month
(PEPM).
Prescription Rebates negotiated from $114.00 to $135.45 PEPM  

Prescription rebate improvements: $700,967.00
Negotiated a one-time administration credit of $100,000.00

The Human Resources Department, along with HUB International, has worked toward improving our
current benefit package and reducing costs to the City. The renegotiation of this contract has proven to
be substantially beneficial to the City with a cost savings of approximately $828,000. The Human
Resources Department will continue to work diligently with HUB International to continue to improve
our benefit plan. 

Fiscal Impact
The Addendum to Contract 153259 with BlueCrossBlueShield of Texas (BCBSTX) will result in a total
estimated savings to the City of $827,571.00.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Elizabeth Lara, Director of Human Resources

Attachments
Resolution BCBSTX Contract Addendum 
City of Lubbock Proposal 
Stop Loss Quote 





Proposal Pricing
Yes

Yes

City of Lubbock

Effective Date: 01/01/2025

Members: 5,420

Employees: 2,482

F - CUSTOM PASSTHROUGH PRICING F - CUSTOM PASSTHROUGH PRICING

BRAND DISCOUNTS

Retail Network Retail Network

1/1/2025 to 12/31/2025 20.00%

Extended Supply Network (ESN) - 90 Day Channel

1/1/2025 to 12/31/2025 23.00%

Exclusive Mail Exclusive Mail

1/1/2025 to 12/31/2025 24.75%

GENERIC DISCOUNTS

Retail Network

1/1/2025 to 12/31/2025 87.00% REBATES PER EMPLOYEE PER MONTH

Extended Supply Network (ESN) - 90 Day Channel

1/1/2025 to 12/31/2025 90.00%

Exclusive Mail

1/1/2025 to 12/31/2025 88.90%

BRAND DISPENSING FEES

Retail Network

1/1/2025 to 12/31/2025 $0.30

Extended Supply Network (ESN) - 90 Day Channel

1/1/2025 to 12/31/2025 $0.00

Exclusive Mail

1/1/2025 to 12/31/2025 $0.00

GENERIC DISPENSING FEES

Retail Network

1/1/2025 to 12/31/2025 $0.30

Extended Supply Network (ESN) - 90 Day Channel

1/1/2025 to 12/31/2025 $0.00

Exclusive Mail

1/1/2025 to 12/31/2025 $0.00

AGGREGATE SPECIALTY

Discount

1/1/2025 to 12/31/2025 24.50%

Specialty Pharmacy Dispensing Fee

1/1/2025 to 12/31/2025 $0.00

Trad_M_B_DF_2

Notes: UR-14573

 - Discounts are based on the actual NDC-11 dispensed on the fill date.

 - Guarantees are based upon the above selected BCBS TX Network.

 - Guarantees are based upon an implemented BCBS TX Extended Supply Network (90-day retail). If not implemented, Retail rates apply.

 - For the purpose of reconciliation at contract year end, discount and dispensing fee guarantees are reconciled in aggregate, as long as the contract

   remains in effect.

 - Discount and dispensing fee rates exclude compound, long term care (LTC) pharmacy, home infusion (HI) pharmacy, veterans affairs (VA) pharmacy,

   Indian/tribal/urban (I/T/U) pharmacy, U.S. territory (TER) pharmacy, 340B, Medicare/Medicaid, out-of-network, member-submitted (e.g. direct member

   reimbursement), coordination of benefits (COB), subrogation, usual and customary (U&C) claims and non-specialty discount and dispensing fees also exclude

   specialty (as defined by the BCBS TX specialty drug pricing file) claims.

 - For discount purposes, Specialty is defined by the BCBS TX specialty drug pricing file.

 - Guarantees are based upon a exclusive specialty network arrangement.

 - For discount and dispensing fees, Brand drugs are defined as drugs that have a Medi-Span multisource code field equal to “M”, “N”, or “O”.

 - For discount and dispensing fees, Generic drugs are defined as drugs that have a Medi-Span multisource code field equal to “Y”.

 - Discount and dispensing fee guarantees do not reflect adjustments for CMS negotiated drug prices as outlined in the Inflation Reduction Act. In the

   event CMS drug price negotiations impact BCBS TX's ability to meet guarantees, BCBS TX reserves the right to adjust the reconciliation of guarantees

   after CMS releases the negotiated prices for 2026 and beyond.

 - Unexpected generic launches and products launched at risk or under patent litigation are excluded from generic guarantees.

 - Guarantees are based upon Home Delivery being the exclusive mail provider.

 - Aggregate Specialty discount and Specialty Pharmacy dispensing fee guarantees include claims for limited distribution drugs (LDDs) and exclude claims

   for new Specialty drugs brought to market for the first 180 days after launch.

                      BlueCross BlueShield

                       of Texas

Contract Period Advantage

Proposal Pricing

Blue Cross Blue Shield of Texas a Division of Health Care Service Corporation, a Mutual Legal

Reserve Company, an Independent Licensee of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association
09/13/2024

Page 1 of 3



Proposal Pricing

City of Lubbock

Effective Date: 01/01/2025

Members: 5,420

Employees: 2,482

F - CUSTOM PASSTHROUGH PRICING

REBATES PER BRAND

Retail Network

1/1/2025 to 12/31/2025 $360.55

Extended Supply Network (ESN) - 90 Day Channel

1/1/2025 to 12/31/2025 $892.60

Exclusive Mail

1/1/2025 to 12/31/2025 $956.80

Specialty

1/1/2025 to 12/31/2025 $4,084.55

REBATES PER EMPLOYEE PER MONTH

1/1/2025 to 12/31/2025 $137.45

Trad_M_Rebate2

Notes: UR-14573

 - For rebate purposes, Specialty is defined by the BCBS TX specialty drug pricing file.

 - For the purpose of reconciliation at contract year end, all rebate guarantees are reconciled in aggregate as long as the contract remains in effect.

 - Compound, long term care (LTC) pharmacy, home infusion (HI) pharmacy, veterans affairs (VA) pharmacy, Indian/tribal/urban (I/T/U) pharmacy, U.S.

   territory (TER) pharmacy, 340b, Medicare/Medicaid, out of network, member-submitted (e.g. direct member reimbursement), coordination of benefits (COB),

   subrogation, vaccine, over-the-counter (OTC), and limited distribution drug (LDD) claims are excluded from rebate guarantees.

 - Rebate guarantees do not reflect adjustments for CMS negotiated drug prices as outlined in the Inflation Reduction Act. In the event CMS drug price

   negotiations impact BCBS TX ability to meet rebate guarantees, BCBS TX reserves the right to apply a rebate credit to rebate guarantee reconciliation.

 - For rebate purposes, Brand drugs are defined as all drugs that have a Medi-Span multisource code field equal to “M”, “N”, or “O”.

 - Rebates will be trued up annually to the greater of the PEPM rebate credits, per brand Rx rebate guarantees, and actual rebates.

 - Rebate guarantees are inclusive of and assume WAC reduction effective 1/1/2024 due to AMP CAP. BCBS TX reserves the right to adjust the reconciliation

   of guarantees for any other products with a WAC decrease.

Contract Period Performance

                      BlueCross BlueShield

                       of Texas

Proposal Pricing

Blue Cross Blue Shield of Texas a Division of Health Care Service Corporation, a Mutual Legal

Reserve Company, an Independent Licensee of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association
09/13/2024

Page 2 of 3



Proposal Pricing

City of Lubbock

Effective Date: 01/01/2025

Members: 5,420

Employees: 2,482

F - CUSTOM PASSTHROUGH PRICING

ADMINISTRATIVE FEE

1/1/2025 to 12/31/2025 $5.00

Notes: UR-14573

 - Administrative Fees will be charged at the above rate on a per employee per month basis.

Additional Caveats:

 - Guarantees are based on adoption and adherence of an above BCBS TX drug list, including associated utilization management, recommended drug list

   strategies, and clinical programs. BCBS TX reserves the right to make an equitable modification to the pricing terms of the agreement for the following:

   changes in any law or regulation, changes in interpretation of a law or regulation, claims where pricing is controlled by the law, changes within PBM

   marketplace which lead to a significant deviation from the current economic environment, unexpected market events, unexpected generic launches,

   authorized generic launches, biosimilar products, products launched at risk, products under patent litigation, new lower cost NDCs priced net of rebates

   from the innovator, products with WAC decreases, biosimilar utilization or mix being materially different from underwriting assumptions, changes in drug

   indications, implementation of new clinical programs, removal of existing clinical programs, changes in pharmacy benefit plan design, specialty drug

   pricing file, limited distribution list, or drug list changes. Any applicable biosimilar adjustment will be applied to any guarantee based payments

   during the contract year as a rebate credit for low WAC utilization, and/or to year end reconciliations for formularies with high and/or low WAC products.

 - Members will pay the lower of the contracted rate, U&C, or their applicable copayment.

 - Assumes client does not have 340B pricing.

 - Guarantees provided does not include savings from DUR or other clinical programs.

 - Specialty drugs dispensed through the medical benefit will not be included in reconciliation of guarantees.

 - Guarantees assumes 26% ESN penetration, if that differs significantly, BCBS TX reserves the right to revise guarantees terms and financials.

 - Guarantees assumes 1% Mail penetration, if that differs significantly, BCBS TX reserves the right to revise guarantees terms and financials.

 - BCBS TX reserves the right to equitably adjust the guarantees in the event the number of covered members, covered employees, or pharmacy claims volume

   materially changes over the course of the contract.

 - Products with government mandated reimbursement, emergency use protocols, or related to Covid-19 (e.g testing, vaccines, and treatments) are excluded

   from guarantee reconciliation.

 - Compound claims, foreign claims, invalid claims, reversed claims, and out-of-network claims are excluded from the calculation of whether the AWP

   discounts, Dispensing Fees, and rebates shown above have been achieved and also are excluded from the calculation of any shortfall credit for Employer.

 - BCBS TX offer is based on a minimum of one-year contract term. Guarantees will not be reconciled for partial policy periods resulting from an early

   termination.

 - The guarantee terms in this agreement are based upon the minimum enrollment and benefit design including but not limited to the network and drug list

   options as noted, as well as other information provided by employer to BCBS TX during the proposal process. If employer falls below the minimum

   enrollment, makes any changes to its plans or other changes occur, that constitute a material departure from BCBS TX underwriting assumptions based on

   information provided by sponsor, the parties agree to modify the terms of this agreement as of the effective date of such event/change to return BCBS TX

   to its relative economic position prior to such event/change.

 - The market check report will include the guarantee terms by dispensing channel and service, that a plan similar to employer in the following respects

   could reasonably obtain within 60 days of the request: size (employers of a similar member count and managed drug spend), similar mail penetration,

   generic dispensing rates, specialty program, drug mix, and formulary content and design, and size, composition, and geography of retail network. If the

   market check report has sufficient documentation to support that employer would realize at least one percent (1%) annual savings in the Net Plan Cost,

   claim administrator will have 30 days to respond to the market check report.

 - “Net Plan Cost” means the sum of all amounts paid or other services provided under this agreement, less rebate amounts, financial guarantees amount,

   implementation allowances and any other amounts paid or payable to employer that reasonably service to reduce costs. If claim administrator agrees to the

   market check report savings projections, claim administrator may provide revised guarantees that meet or exceed savings identified in the market check

   report and the parties will enter into an appropriate amendment reflecting the agreed revised terms, to be effective the first month of the following

   contract year. The parties may enter into an appropriate amendment reflecting such revised terms.

 - Members’ cost share is the applicable copayment, deductible, and/or coinsurance, which coinsurance is calculated in accordance with the applicable

   Network Contract or the applicable out-of-network pricing. Zero balance logic is not employed.

 - Employer will be billed for Foreign Claims in an amount based on the amount billed by the pharmacy.

 - Employer will be billed for out-of-network claims based on the pricing set forth in the Administrative Services Agreement and/or PBM Exhibit, as

   applicable.

 - Guarantees will be calculated as described in this Addendum and the PBM Exhibit to the Administrative Services Agreement.

 - Unless otherwise specified in this Addendum, capitalized terms used in this Addendum shall have the meanings set forth in the Administrative Services

   Agreement or the PBM Exhibit, as applicable.

 - The pharmacy offer above is contingent on BCBS TX being the medical benefits administrator.

Contract Period Per Employee Per Month

                      BlueCross BlueShield

                       of Texas

Proposal Pricing

Blue Cross Blue Shield of Texas a Division of Health Care Service Corporation, a Mutual Legal

Reserve Company, an Independent Licensee of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association
09/13/2024

Page 3 of 3



                       

1321140

Legal Reserve Company, an Independent Licensee of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association

Proprietary and Confidential Information of BCBSTX
Not for use or disclosure outside BCBSTX, Employer, their respective affiliated companies and third-party representatives, except with written permission of BCBSTX.

Blue Cross and Blue Shield of TX, a Division of Health Care Service Corporation, a Mutual 

Presented by:

Taylor Holbrook
09/27/2024

 

                                                                                                                                         

City Of Lubbock
ASO Projection for the period of

January 1, 2025 - December 31, 2025

1/1/2025 Stop Loss Renewal - Paid contract

  A Division of Health Care Service Corporation, a Mutual Legal Reserve Company, 
   an Independent Licensee of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association



PEPM TOTAL
2,490 29,880

$700,000 $700,000

$22.62 $675,886

Blue Cross and Blue Shield of TX, a Division of Health Care Service Corporation, a Mutual 
Legal Reserve Company, an Independent Licensee of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association

 

Proprietary and Confidential Information of BCBSTX
t for use or disclosure outside BCBSTX, Employer, their respective affiliated companies and third-party representatives, except with written permission of BCBST

1321140

HCSC Stop Loss includes Gene Therapy protection.
This Stop Loss quote is firm through 10/25/2024.
Note: For quotes/renewals that are illustrative or otherwise not locked in, HCSC will require/review
updated claim data which is within 180 days of the quoted effective date.
A revised and final stop loss quote/renewal will be issued at that time.

STOP LOSS
Paid Customer Total

Projected Enrollment

Individual Stop Loss Deductible

Individual Stop Loss Premium

 

City Of Lubbock
ASO Projection for the period of

January 1, 2025 - December 31, 2025

1/1/2025 Stop Loss Renewal - Paid contract

  Subject to and contingent upon conditions and caveats outlined in attached addendum.
  A Division of Health Care Service Corporation, a Mutual Legal Reserve Company, 

   an Independent Licensee of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association



Current Renewal Change Contract Total

Projected Enrollment 2,493 2,490 -0.1%

Single 1,223

Family 1,267

Administration Fee** $43.37 $44.24 2.0% $1,321,891

Prescription Drug Administration Fee $4.57 $4.57 0.0% $136,552

Prescription Drug Rebate Credit **** ($114.00) ($131.91) 15.7% ($3,941,471)

Medical Rebate Credit ($2.50) ($2.50) 0.0% ($74,700)

Wellbeing Management $4.95 $5.85 18.2% $174,798

Additional Services PEPM Fees $2.08 $2.08 0.0% $62,173

Rx Commissions $3.92 - - -

Total Fee PEPM ($57.61) ($77.67) 27.9% ($2,320,757)

Individual Stop Loss $700,000 Deductible $21.36 $22.62 5.9% $675,886

Total Fixed Costs PEPM ($36.25) ($55.05) 51.9% ($1,644,871)

Projected Average Claim Value PEPM $1,244.93 $1,331.45 6.9% $39,783,726

Total Projected Costs PEPM $1,208.68 $1,276.40 5.6% $38,138,855

Blue Cross and Blue Shield of TX, a Division of Health Care Service Corporation, a Mutual 
Legal Reserve Company, an Independent Licensee of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association

 

Proprietary and Confidential Information of BCBSTX
Not for use or disclosure outside BCBSTX, Employer, their respective affiliated companies and third-party representatives, except with written permission of BCBSTX.

1321140

*If a third party stoploss carrier is selected, a Third-Party Stop Loss Carrier fee of $0.50 pepm will apply.
**Administration Fee does not include Advanced Payment Review (APR) services charged at 25% of claims savings.
****This quote assumes Prime Therapeutics (PBM) Performance drug list and Advantage network.
If a third party pharmacy benefit manager is selected, additional charges will apply.

FEE COMPARISON
Renewal Active and Retirees Under 65

 

City Of Lubbock
ASO Projection for the period of

January 1, 2025 - December 31, 2025

1/1/2025 Stop Loss Renewal - Paid contract

  A Division of Health Care Service Corporation, a Mutual Legal Reserve Company, 
   an Independent Licensee of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association



 Prior Current % Change
Remaining Net Paid Claims $32,608,794 $34,631,750 +6.20%

High Cost Claims $828,277 $745,558 -9.99%

Total Paid Claims $33,437,071 $35,377,308 +5.80%

Total Claim HCSC High Cost

 Dollars  Claim Dollars
Claimant 1 $700,000 $745,558 $745,558 Active

Total Claim HCSC High Cost

 Dollars  Claim Dollars
Claimant 2 $700,000 $828,277 $828,277 Active

Blue Cross and Blue Shield of TX, a Division of Health Care Service Corporation, a Mutual 
Legal Reserve Company, an Independent Licensee of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association

 

Proprietary and Confidential Information of BCBSTX
Not for use or disclosure outside BCBSTX, Employer, their respective affiliated companies and third-party representatives, except with written permission of BCBSTX.

1321140

Claimant identifiers are generic and do not determine relationship between the current and prior time periods. It is possible that a claimant may be included in both time periods.

High Cost Claim Dollars only includes HCSC carrier claims.

Current High Cost Claimants  (07/01/23 - 06/30/24)

Claimant ISL Deductible DRG Description Active/Inactive 

Prior High Cost Claimants  (07/01/22 - 06/30/23)

Claimant ISL Deductible DRG Description Active/Inactive 

0.02% of the Overall Membership

2.11% of the Total Paid Claims

High Cost Claims Percentage

HIGH COST CLAIMANT SUMMARY (Medical  & Rx)

All Associations 

Current High Cost Claimants account for:

 

City Of Lubbock
ASO Projection for the period of

January 1, 2025 - December 31, 2025

1/1/2025 Stop Loss Renewal - Paid contract

$828,277 $745,558

$32,608,794 $34,631,750

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Prior Period (07/01/22 - 06/30/23) Current Period (07/01/23 - 06/30/24)

High Cost Claims Remaining Net Paid Claims

  A Division of Health Care Service Corporation, a Mutual Legal Reserve Company, 
   an Independent Licensee of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association



City Of Lubbock
ASO Projection for the period of

January 1, 2025 - December 31, 2025

1/1/2025 Stop Loss Renewal - Paid contract

CONDITIONS AND CAVEATS
Notwithstanding anything in the renewal or proposal to the contrary, BCBSTX reserves the right to revise or withdraw any term herein or to change our charge for the cost of coverage (premium,
fees or other amounts) at any time before or during the contract period if any local, state or federal legislation, regulation, rule or guidance (or amendment or clarification thereto) is enacted
or becomes effective/implemented, which would require BCBSTX to pay, submit or forward, on its own behalf or on the Employer Group's behalf, any additional tax, surcharge, fee, or other
amount (all of which may be estimated, allocated or pro-rated amounts). BCBSTX also reserves the right to change the administrative fees it charges the Employer Group at any time before or during
the contract period to the extent that any local, state or federal legislation, regulation, rule or guidance (or amendments or clarifications thereto) is enacted or becomes effective/implemented
which results in increased projected claim costs or an increase to BCBSTX's expenses or cost of plan administration.

Unless otherwise stated, this renewal offer is made on the assumption the benefit program is for a plan that is not considered a "grandfathered health plans" as defined under the
Affordable Care Act and related regulations. If you have questions about grandfathered health plans, please consult your legal counsel.

HCSC reserves the right to adjust the Aggregate Claim Liability if one or more of the following occurs within the coverage period:
    -  the Account's composition changes (i.e. demographics)
    -  the Account's number of covered employees increases or decreases by more than 10%
    -  the Account's benefit program changes

The Individual Stop Loss quote is being offered on a Paid basis during the policy period indicated above.

HCSC's pharmacy benefit manager, PRIME Therapeutics (PBM), holds rebate contracts with pharmaceutical manufacturers. Unless otherwise agreed by the parties, HCSC may, in some
circumstances, provide the Employer with a Rebate Credit, but such Rebate Credit may not equal the entire amount of the rebates provided to HCSC by the PBM.

Employers that do not use Prime Therapeutics as their pharmacy benefit manager are NOT eligible for a Rebate Credit under the pharmacy benefit.

The PEPM Medical Rebate Credit is subject to change as HCSC will review the PEPM credit offer for each subsequent renewal.

Rates/fees are projected to be effective for the 12-month period beginning on the effective date indicated.

The Administrative charge includes a network access fee for employees residing in HCSC service areas (IL, MT, OK, NM, TX).  Claims incurred outside HCSC service
areas through the BlueCard program may be assessed a BlueCard access fee of no more than 3.31% of the discount applied, not to exceed $2,000 per claim. An estimate
of this access fee is included in our projected claim figures.

Offer assumes the contract situs will be Texas.

This quote is contingent upon the account signing new contract documents in a timely manner. If not signed, then HCSC may withdraw and/or revise the quote.

Pharmacy Rebate Credit includes estimate of rebates for all categories of drugs, including specialty drugs, based on our book of business.

If the prescription drug program is not administered by Prime today but is awarded the administration of the prescription drug program, the medical claim cost will be reduced due
to the integration of the medical and prescription drug program.

Prescription drug coverage is included in this offer.

Prescription drug claim administration is included in this offer.

Non-standard benefits are subject to review by, and contingent upon approval of, internal operational areas.

Unless otherwise indicated, proposal offers assume standard HCSC administration practices/contract provisions/reports/materials and renewal offers assume existing administration practices/contract
provisions/reports/materials.

Offer assumes Stop Loss coverage applies to Medical and Prescription Drug claims, but excludes exception/extra-contractual payments and benefits carved out to another vendor.

We reserve the right to revise or withdraw our offer if, at any time during the projected coverage period:
- The actual number of enrolled contracts (in total, by product, or by benefit plan), the Single/Family mix, or the Medicare/Non-Medicare mix varies by +/- 10% from our projections.
- The information upon which our projections were based (benefit levels, census/demographics, commissions, etc.) becomes outdated or inaccurate.

Offer includes incremental fee for Wellbeing Management (Health Management & Advocacy program).

Blue Cross and Blue Shield of TX, a Division of Health Care Service Corporation, a Mutual 
Legal Reserve Company, an Independent Licensee of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association

 

Proprietary and Confidential Information of BCBSTX
Not for use or disclosure outside BCBSTX, Employer, their respective affiliated companies and third-party representatives, except with written permission of BCBSTX.

1321140

 

  A Division of Health Care Service Corporation, a Mutual Legal Reserve Company, 
   an Independent Licensee of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association



City Of Lubbock
ASO Projection for the period of

January 1, 2025 - December 31, 2025

1/1/2025 Stop Loss Renewal - Paid contract

CONDITIONS AND CAVEATS

Employer will contribute a minimum of 25% toward the cost of coverage.

A minimum of 75% of eligible employees excluding waivers, or a minimum of 50% of eligible employees including waivers, enroll for coverage.

Offer is contingent upon Underwriting approval of any changes to the plan's eligibility definitions.

Recommended funding amounts should fund expected paid claims (EPC), administration, stop loss premium, and estimated reserves. If actual claims exceed the EPC, the Employer will be
required to fund all claims up to the Maximum Claim Liability. If offer does not include Aggregate Stop Loss, the Employer has no Maximum Claim Liability and will be required to continually fund claims.

This offer expires as of the effective date indicated above.

The employer is responsible for any administrative services taxes due for benefits paid under this agreement.

Costs associated with special services or custom materials provided by BCBSTX are not included in the quoted administration fee(s).

Unless otherwise indicated, offer assumes BCBSTX will be the exclusive carrier for Administration and Stop Loss. 

Recommended funding amounts should fund expected paid claims (EPC), administration, stop loss premium, and estimated reserves.  If the financial arrangement does not include
Aggregate Stop Loss coverage, the Employer will be required to continually make funds available for payment of claims.

If a non-preferred vendor is selected for automated eligibility processing, an additional charge will apply.

If a third party pharmacy benefit manager is selected, additional charges will apply.

This Stop Loss quote is firm through 10/25/2024.
Note: For quotes/renewals that are illustrative or otherwise not locked in, HCSC will require/review updated claim data which is within 180 days of the quoted effective date.
A revised and final stop loss quote/renewal will be issued at that time.

Projected Net Paid Claims for non-HMO Medical coverages on these exhibits include Estimated Value Based Care Payments and Savings.

Value Based Care payments apply to Stop Loss Coverage.

BCBSTX retains the right to recoup monetary credits provided, any remaining implementation costs, shared savings or PG incentive fees from the plan sponsor in the event of early termination
of the proposed coverage or contract, either in its entirety or with respect to certain custom services or programs included in this offer.

If a third party stop loss carrier is selected, a Third-Party Stop Loss Carrier fee will apply.

If an HMO network product is selected, mental health capitation charges may apply and be billed separate and apart from the Administrative Charges outlined on this exhibit.

Blue Cross and Blue Shield of TX, a Division of Health Care Service Corporation, a Mutual 
Legal Reserve Company, an Independent Licensee of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association

 

Proprietary and Confidential Information of BCBSTX
Not for use or disclosure outside BCBSTX, Employer, their respective affiliated companies and third-party representatives, except with written permission of BCBSTX.

1321140

 

  A Division of Health Care Service Corporation, a Mutual Legal Reserve Company, 
   an Independent Licensee of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association



City Of Lubbock
ASO Projection for the period of

January 1, 2025 - December 31, 2025

1/1/2025 Stop Loss Renewal - Paid contract

CONDITIONS AND CAVEATS
Offer is contingent upon proposed Wellbeing Management package design.  Any modifications to the proposed package
will impact the Wellbeing Management fee and Administrative Fee.

Administration Fee assumes Weekly claim funding.

A no new laser rate cap applies to the Individual Stop Loss coverage as follows:
-Applies to the next renewal, effective 01/01/2026.
-The change in Individual Stop Loss premium will not exceed 45%.
-The renewal rate cap excludes changes in contract terms, including but not limited to a change in the individual stop loss contract basis or individual stop loss deductible.
-No new lasers, or an increase in existing lasers, will be applied. Existing lasers may be continued unchanged at HCSC's option.  
-Is null and void if enrollment varies +/- 20% or more during the contract period. 
-Subject to all terms and conditions outlined in the Policy, the most current Exhibit, and any attachments including but not limited to the proposal/renewal documents. 

This quote assumes Prime Therapeutics (PBM) Performance drug list and Advantage network.

Quote includes Advanced Payment Review (APR) program under APR program savings model.  All claim savings realized through the APR program are passed through to the customer
on the claim invoice, and HCSC will charge back 25% of the claim savings on the monthly administrative invoice.

Premium Equivalent Rates (if provided) reflect expected benefit cost only and do not include an adjustment for a change in needed reserves. Premium Equivalent Rates should fund expected paid
claims (EPC), administration, stoploss premium and estimated reserves; if claims exceed EPC, the Employer will be required to make additional funds available up to the Maximum Claim Liability.

Effective January 1, 2025, for new business and renewals issued under this policy, BCBSTX reserves the right to apply lasers and adjust rates for the gene therapy ingredient costs and any claims risk.
Subsequent renewals, if and when issued, will be subject to no new lasers or rate adjustments to the extent that the gene therapy ingredient cost for one or more of the gene therapies listed below
is covered under the Plan administered by BCBSTX and was included in Paid Claims under the Plan.  BCBSTX reserves the right to continue to laser and adjust rates for those members that were
lasered in the prior policy period.

1. Hemgenix
2. Zynteglo
3. Luxturna
4. Skysona
5. Zolgensma
6. Elevidys
7. Roctavian
8. Casgevy 
9. Lyfgenia
10. Lenmeldy
11. Beqvez

This provision does not obligate BCBSTX to issue a renewal of the policy. This statement remains subject to all terms and conditions of the Policy, the most current Exhibit [Application], and any
attachments included but not limited to the proposal and renewal documents.
To the extent consistent with the terms of the Plan, “Gene therapy ingredient” is defined as the genetic, cellular, viral or other organic or inorganic materials administered to affect the condition
for which they are prescribed.

 

  A Division of Health Care Service Corporation, a Mutual Legal Reserve Company, 
   an Independent Licensee of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association



 AI# 12942 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 24. 
10/22/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Amendment No. 1 to Memorandum of Understanding, Contract No. 17603, between the Central
Business District Tax Increment Financing Zone and HTG Lubbock, LLC, for utility and storm water
infrastructure construction and relocation, for the Inn Town Lofts Project at 1202 Main Street in
Downtown, Lubbock, Texas. 

Item Summary
On September 26, 2023, City Council approved Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) Contract No.
17603 with HTG Lubbock, LLC. This MOU is for assistance with utility and storm water infrastructure
construction and relocation for the Inn Town Lofts Project at 1202 Main Street in Downtown, Lubbock,
Texas. 

The original contract was for 24 months, and would expire on September 26, 2025. Amendment No. 1
will extend the contract through December 31, 2025, to allow for ample time for construction
completion. The Central Business District (CBD) Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Zone Advisory Board
approved this extension at their October 9, 2024 Board meeting, and recommend approval by the City
Council. There is no change to the cost of the contract. 

Fiscal Impact
None 

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager 
Brianna Brown, Business Development Director 
CBD TIF Advisory Board 

Attachments
Resolution 
Amendment 1 
Original MOU 
Budget Detail 
CIP Detail 









Resolution No. 2023- R0456

Item No. 5. 7

September 26, 2023

RF SOLUTION

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCII. OF THE CITY OP LUBBOCK: 

THAT the City Council of the City of Lubbock does hereby approve a Memorandum
of Understanding, Agreement No. 17603, by and between the Lubbock Central Business
District Tax Increment Financing Reinvestment Zone Advisory Board (" CBD TIF") and the

HTG Lubbock, LLC (" HTG"), a Texas limited liability company, to fund utility and
stormwater infrastructure construction and relocation for the Inn Town Lofts project at 1202
Main Street, Lubbock, Texas, and related documents. Said Memorandum of Understanding
is attached hereto and incorporated in this resolution as if fully set forth herein and shall be
included in the minutes of the Council. 

Passed by the City Council on the 26th__ day of September , 2023. 

ATTEST: 

Courtney Paz, City Secretary

APl' ROVED AS TO CONTI? NT: 

D. u Ko elich, Chie ' ncial Officer

ROVED AS TO PORM: 

Senior Assistant City Attorney

ccdocs: llRes. MOU CI3D' I' ll' and 11' I' G

9. 19. 23



Resolution No. 2023- R0456

STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTY OF LUBBOCK

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

BETWEEN

THE CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT TAX INCREMENT FINANCING REINVESTMENT

ZONE AND HTG LUBBOCK, LLC

This Memorandum of Understanding ( the " MOU"), Contract No. 17603, is made on this

26th day of September , 2023, by and between the Lubbock Central Business District Tax
Increment Financing Reinvestment Zone Advisory Board (" CBD TIF") and the HTG Lubbock, 

LLC (" HTG"), a Texas limited liability company, to fund utility and stormwater infrastructure
construction and relocation for the Inn Town Lofts project at 1202 Main Street, Lubbock, Texas
the " Project"), the location of which is within the CBD T[ F zone. 

WHEREAS, during a special meeting on September 12, 2023, the CBD TIF approved
utilizing CBD TIF funds to provide HTG funds for the Project; and

WHEREAS, this agreement is conditioned on HTG acquiring the property at 1202 Main
Street, Lubbock, TX and shall be on a reimbursement basis only. 

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the terms, covenants and conditions set

forth in this MOU, the CBD TIF and HTG hereby agree as follows: 

1. TERM OF MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

This MOU shall have a term of twenty- four ( 24) months from the effective date herein. 

2. CBD TIF RESPONSIBILITIES

This MOU shall be of no effect if HTG is unable to complete the sale and become the

owner of the property 1202 Main Street, Lubbock, Texas ( the " Property"). 

Further, no funding shall be provided to HTG for the Project, until Project completion, 
acceptance of the infrastructure by the City of Lubbock ( the " City"), and IITG receives a certificate

of occupancy for the building on the Property. 

Funding contemplated herein shall also be strictly on a reimbursement basis, which shall
require any and all documentation to be given to the CBD TIF demonstrating the actual cost of
construction paid by HTG for the Project, and the as- built drawings for the Project have been
provided to the engineering staff at the City. The details and estimated cost associated with the

Page 1 of 4



Project are attached hereto as " Exhibit A" and incorporated herein. In accordance with the terms

herein the CBD TIF shall provide to HTG funding for the Project in an amount not to exceed two
hundred twenty- five thousand and NO/ 100 ($ 225, 000. 00). 

3. HTG LUBBOCK, LLC RESPONSIBILITIES

HTG shall be responsible for the completion of the Project as set forth herein and detailed

in " Exhibit A". Upon completion of the Project, HTG shall provide all documentation to the CBD
TIF demonstrating actual Project costs and proof of a certificate of occupancy issued for the
building on the Property after the renovations to the Property are complete. Additionally, HTG
shall provide the City' s engineering department with all as- built drawings for the utility work
completed in order to receive reimbursement for the Project. 

NOTICE

A. General. Whenever notice from HTG to the CBD TIF or the CBD TIF to the HTG is

required or permitted by this MOU and no other method of notice is provided, such notice shall be
given by ( 1) actual delivery of the written notice to the other party by hand ( in which case such
notice shall be effective upon delivery); ( 2) facsimile ( in which case such notice shall be effective

upon delivery); ( 3) email; or (4) by depositing the written notice in the United States mail, properly
addressed to the other party at the address provided in this article, registered or certified mail, 
return receipt requested, in which case such notice shall be effective on the third business day after
such notice is so deposited. 

B. HTG' s Address. The HTG' s address and numbers for the purposes of notice are: 

HTG Lubbock, LLC

C/ O HTG Lubbock Member, LLC

Matthew Rieger, Manager

3225 Aviation Avenue, 6` h Floor

Coconut Grove, FL 33133

Telephone: 305- 860- 8188

Email: operationalcontact TX@htgf. com

C. City' s Address. The City' s address and numbers for the purposes of notice are: 

Blu Kostelich, CFO

City of Lubbock
P. O. Box 2000

1314 Avenue K

Lubbock, Texas 79457

Email: bkostelich@mylubbock. us

Telephone: 806- 775- 2212

Page 2 of 4



D. Change of Address. Either party may change its address or numbers for purposes of
notice by giving written notice to the other party as provided herein, referring specifically to this
MOU, and setting forth such new address or numbers. The address or numbers shall become
effective on the 15th day after such notice is effective. 

5. NO LIABILITY

No liability will arise or be assumed between the parties as a result of this MOU. All

parties to this document will act in good faith to achieve the goals of the MOU in a reasonable
time frame. This MOU is a good faith expression of the intent of the Parties. 

6. NO JOINT ENTERPRISE

This MOU is not intended to, and shall not be construed to, create any joint enterprise
between or among the Parties. 

7. GOVERNING LAW

This MOU will be governed by the laws of the State of Texas. The sole venue for any
action, controversy, dispute or claim arising under this MOU shall be in a court of appropriate
jurisdiction in Lubbock County, Texas exclusively. 

8. AMENDMENTS

No amendment, modification, or alteration of the terms of this Agreement shall be binding
unless such amendment, modification, or alteration is in writing, dated subsequent to this
Agreement, and duly authorized and executed by the CBD TIF and HTG. 

9. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement, including " Exhibits A" attached hereto, contains the entire agreement

between the CBD TIF and the HTG, and there are no other written or oral promises, conditions, 
warranties, or representations relating to or affecting the matters contemplated herein. 

EXECUTED as of the Effective Date hereof. 

The City of Lubbock

Tray Pa e, ayor

The Central Business District Tax

Increment F' ancing Reinvestment Zone

Dan Williams, Chairman

Page 3 of 4



HTG Lubbock, LLC

a Texas limited liability company

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 

Blu Kostelich, hief Financia fficer

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

J , _ 

l

elli Leisure, Senior Assistant City Attorney

By: HTG Lubbock Member, LLC
a Florida limited liability company, its

Managing Member

Matthew Rieger, Manager

Page 4 of 4



HTG
September 8, 2023

Lubbock Central Business District ( CBD) 

Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Reinvestment Zone Board
c/ o Brianna Brown, Business Development Director

Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, 

Lubbock, TX, USA

RE: Inn Town Lofts — 1202 Main St. — Utility and Infrastructure Cost Reimbursement

Dear Board Members, 

HTG Lubbock, LLC, (" HTG") is requesting the Lubbock CBD TIF to enter a Memorandum of Understanding
MOU") to reimburse the costs associated with abandoning and undergrounding the utilities caused by

the platting of the Inn Town Lofts development site and the alley closures. These costs are $ 328, 243. 72
and summarized in the table below: 

Site Utilities $ 167, 785. 93

Storm Water $ 47, 550. 00

Vexus $ 49, 776. 43

Optimum $ 42, 956. 12

Optimum Cost Add ( Rock) $ 12, 245. 77

AT& T $ 7, 929. 47

Total: $ 328, 243. 72

Inn Town Lofts is an affordable housing redevelopment that will consist of 56 units built in two buildings: 
a new construction building containing 14 units, and the adaptive reuse of the long vacated and
dilapidated Inn Town Inn/ limmy Kimmel Center which will contain 42 units. Since Inn Town Lofts is an
affordable housing development, there are no additional funds that we can access to pay for the

additional utility and infrastructure costs nor can we increase the development' s rents to generate more
income funding for the redevelopment, thus the request. 

Approving the MOU will not only improve the developmenYs financial feasibility, but it will also improve
the aesthetic of Downtown Lubbock while providing 56 units of much- needed affordable housing. 
Supporting documentation is attached as well as the site plan and several 2D renderings. We look forward

to your approval. 

Sincerely, 

HTG LUBBOCK, LLC, 

a Texas limited liability company

By: 
Matthew ' er, Manager of Managing Member

HOUSING TRUST GROUP

3225 Aviation Avenue, 6' h Floor • Coconut Grove, FL 33133 • 305- 860- 8188

www. htaf. com



HTG

R

1

i i  

1 t  . 1/ 

RENOVATED ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN

HOUSING TRU57 GROUP

3225 Aviation Avenue, 6' h Floor • Coconut Grove, FL 33133 • 305- 860- 8188

www. htsf. com



HTG

RENOVATION NORTH ELEVATION

L3• 

t'_' Y

RENOVATION RENOVATION EAST ELEVATION

HOUSING TRUST GROUP

3225 Aviation Avenue, 6 n Floor • Coconut Grove, FL 33133 • 305- 860- 8188

www. htaf.com



HTG

i--------- 

r'iii9nif   

1 I 1 1  1 . 11  1  1 " a I  1

f 7 • 

HOUSING TRUST GROUP

3225 Aviation Avenue, 6"' Floor • Coconut Grove, FL 33133 • 305-860-8188

www. ht f.com



HTG

xto rr ELEvaTror

z 

xEax Er.Fv, no?v

k;= i_- == I =  

1

HOUSING TRU57 GROUP

3225 Aviation Avenue, 6' h Floor • Coconut Grove, FL 33133 • 305- 860- 8188

www. htsf. com



HUGO REED AND ASSOCIATES, INC. 
1601 AVENUE N/ LUBBOCK, TEXAS 79401 1 806- 76- 5642 I FAX 806- 76• 3881

TEXAS REGISTERED ENGINEERING FIRM F- 760

TEXAS LICENSED SURVEYING FIRM 100676- 00

September 6, 2023

Brianna Brown

Business Development Director

City of Lubbock

RE: Inn Town Lofts TIF, 1202 Main Street

Ms. Brown: 

Hugo Reed and Associates has reviewed the attached bid documents from MAEGA Energy Services and

V- tech Environmental Services. The quantities appear to be in line with what is proposed for the

project. The pricing associated with the bid documents appears to be in line with current costs for the

work being performed. If you have any questions, please feel free to reach out to me. 

Sincerely, 

K ueger Brodbeck, P. E. 

Senior Project Engineer



Justin Tuttle

From: Chad Henthorn < chad@teinert. com> 

Sent: Wednesday, August 23, 2023 420 PM
To: Jordan Finkelman; Eduardo Ardavin; Mike Kleffner

Cc: Justin Tuttle; Joe Cantrell; lacob Kirkland; Daniel Horton

Subject: RE: Inn Town Lofts - Revised Plan Update

Attachments: doc20230823141540002364. pdf

Jordan, 

Here is the breakdown and attached bids: *$ 160, 285. 93

Utilities Bid 165, 786. 00 ( see bid from MAEGA) 

Tap & Meter Fees 7, 500. 00

TOTAL SITE UTILITIES 173, 286. 00 "$ 167, 785. 93

SWPPP Bid 21, 950. 00 ( see bid from Vtech) 

Construction Entrances ( 2) 5, 600. 00

Street Cleaning & Maintenance 20, 000. 00

TOTAL STORMWATER 47, 550. 00

Chad Henthorn, CSI, LEED AP

President

I
TEINERT

Teinert Construction, Inc. 

1402 Crickets Ave. I Lubbock, TX 79401

806. 744. 2801 Office I 806. 744. 2401 Fax I 806. 548. 0153 Cell

www.teinert.com

From: Jordan Finkelman < jordanf@htgf. com> 

Sent: Wednesday, August 23, 2023 2: 14 PM
To: Chad Henthorn < chad@teinert. com>; Eduardo Ardavin < eduardoa@htgf. com>; Mike Kleffner

MikeK@wallacearchitects. com> 

Cc: Justin Tuttle < Justint@htgf. com>; Joe Cantrell < josephc@htgf. com>; Jacob Kirkland < jacob@teinert. com>; Daniel

Horton < daniel@teinert. com> 

Subject: RE: Inn Town Lofts - Revised Plan Update

Hi Chad, 

We are preparing to request a utility reimbursement request from the City. The timing of funding would probably be
either during construction or after completion but we want to make the request now. That said, could you please

provide the backup for these two items that we can share with the city? Thanks. 



MAEGA ENERGY SF.RVICES

https:,[ f maegaenes•, y.c; om/ 
SOU1 WEST LOOP 289

IITE 207 LUBBOCK, TX 79414

dnanda mae aenerF v.c m

432- 250- 8832

BILL TO

I'einert Canstruction

WATER PIPE

34U  
P C C- 9U0 DR- 18

PIPE

100  
PVC G9U0 D! 2- lII

PII' E

a
6" PVC C- 900 DR- 18

PIPL

VALVES

2 6 AVK tGS Ul MJ GV

1 £ 3 AVK # GS UI MJ GV

1 8 AVK # G5 Dt MJ GV

1 6 AVK # GS DI MJ GV

ENER 3Y SERVI ES

CONTACTINfO

Contact: CQN7' EN NANCE '

y  

E- Mail: CNANCEC TEINER'[: CUM

Plione: 806- 773- 0295

PAYMENT TERMS

Contract~....

r+.. 

F, rx ' ' •-  . nt- n d , r -^-.,, 

s-- ,. L"' c 
i. %

r,:hy[gs. ''  ,•. aa. t'
as3 - z- - c` . l? y'`'=, r y'Cr'  

a . a, y 3'-`{ r.s " Ec` Ys  ! ` y y  + 

y. 

S { 3 S
a -

c ,`' i i, - v+,

A Y  S ,~
Y ` t, j

1 f yR}'7r .. 
j.i^''C`

s. e..,. 2 " .%'Yf 4c:•... c-. k£+.nYN..-.` 7..' i. L.:  rF} x r ,.e!`PA 4?. hGTF. 6.. 1n. hre

W- 1 U+ 00. 0- 3+ 26. 1 $ 45. 7t3 $ 15, 5G5. 54

2

W- E• t0 ' $ 35. 87 $ 3, 586. 90

W- 2 35. E37 2, 869. 52

W- 2

1' APP( NC VALVG

7'A!' I' 1NG VALVE

1, 312. 55

1, 795. 09

1, 360. 9

877. 55

2, 625. 10

1, 795.09

1, 360. 09

877. 55

TAPPING SLEEVE ( WET TAP) 

i . . o .  • •  •  •   • e   

1 12X8 SS TAP SLV WET TAP $ 9, 456. 79 $ 9,456. 79

1 lOX6 SS TAP Si V WrT' fAP $ 7, 539. 94 $ 7, 539. 94

TESTING

TESTING
TEST PORT $ 779. 25 $ 779. 25

SAllDLE/ CORPSTOP

Page 1



HYbRAN7
e , 

yi s,; i- . 

k• ;' . 8 ,. ki.-+' '+ 9N  ^ 3'.;. E"{
r-,

y.
ily s,' ' $! A  . . . ..,. . _ ; m,  . e ' r;  , .  

3' ' ` J  vva' S. `' L V •. Jt .. aH` 

1
5' BI.tRY 3WAY AVK $

4, 782. 50 $ 4, 78"L. SU
FIRE HYD

WATER SERVICE TAP$ 

s   e

3
WATER SF.RVICG TAP

2 WpTER TAP $ 4,(? 23. 25 $ 12, 069. 75
DOM ESTIC) 

SEWER PIPE

84

3G0

84

8 PVC SUR35 5WR P1P 
S  

G) 14' 

8 PVC SUR35 SWR }' 1P 

G) 1 4' 

38. U7

52. 31

3, 1) 7. 50

9, 010. 70

G PVC SDR35 SWR N1PL" 

G) 14' 

SEWER SERVICE TAPS

3
8X6 PVC SUR35 SWR

SLRViCE TAP
SAN ' CEE

MANHOLES

SEWER SERVICE
4" CLIsANOUT

CLEANUUT

32. 90

1, G94. 25

2, 763. SG

5, 082. 75

88425 $ 884. 25

C age 2



ADDITIONAL SERVICES
x G<:,: - - , ,;_ 

F- L` . a x a• ' b  7F.;' 4" i` 3'- 

F

C - '- i+#s  • i =g' S' S.  a:' r'; - w

f

CAST IRUN/ DUCTILE
g MJ TEE $ 399. y4 $ 399. 94

1RUN rlTTINGS

2
CAST 1RON/ DtJ(: T1LE

gX6 MJ TEE $ 352. 19 $ 7U4. 38
IRON fITTINGS

y
CAS' I' IRON/ UUCTILE

g MJ' l'L- 1/ 2 $ 272. 32 $ 54h. 63
RON FI' I" fINGS

1
Ct1ST ( RON/ Dl!(: TILE

g MJ 90 C153 $ 309. 5$ $ 309, 58
IRON f'IT" 1' INGS

2
CAST IRON/ DUCTILE

IRON PI' I" CINGS

CAS' 1' IRON/ DUC' 1' ILE

IRON i' ITTINGS

G MJ 90 C153

8 PVC R ST

6 I VC RES' I' 

ALLEY REPAiR 60 YARDS

SWR LINE CAP 20 YARDS

ROAD CLOSURE 10 QAYS

120 F' f lb" CASE

252. 79

21. 3, t34

190. 86

3U, 275. U0

4, 400. 00

6, 50U. OU

18, 475. U0

505. 57

2, 779. 93

1, 145. 14

30, 275. OU

4,400.00

6, 500. 00

i t3, 475. U0

13

CAS' P 1RON/ UUCT[ LE

IRUN l l"P" I' INGS

1
CUNCRE" 1' E C MEN7' 

3500PS1) 

1 FLOWFILL

1 7' RAFFIC CONTROL

CASING PIPE

CUBIC YARD CALCULATOR ( GRAVEL, FLOWABIE FILL, SAND, CEMENT} 

n ° •  • e r+  

GRAVEL 204. 16G7 $ 15, 142. 37

CONSTRUCT[ ON CI, AUSE: fF it is deCermined that Hard Rocic is present, Maega Gnergy wil) notify lhe Customer. Upon
vcrificatiun hy customer, a$ 250. 00 Per P' oot or $45Q. 00 Per Hour, whichever is lower, will be assessed to the project. i)GPTH
CLAUSG: Any Excavation deepei• than 7 Ft, a$ 120. 00 per foot will he assessed to the project. The size f the water main must
be verified to assess any changes in Material or Labor. Concrete or Asphalt work will be cost plus 30%a fo• Materials, $ 850. 00

I. abor Cost Per Asphalt/ Concrete Cut/ Disl osal and $ 1, 700. 00 for Asphalt/ Concrete Repair/ Re- lnstallation. 

TO ACCEPT TH1S QUOTE, P1. EA5E SIGN HERE: TNANK YOU FOR YOUR BUSINESS! 

Page 3



X

Page 4



Quotation for Services
1510 Buddy Holly • Lubbock, TX 79401 •( 806) 748- 1700 •( 806) 74& 5012 Fax

NVIRdiVMENTAL SEF2ViCES

Compliance Seroices • Environmental Site Assessments • Groundwater Monitoring • Air Permitting
Asbestos Surveys • Construction Stormwater • Fuel Tank Removals - Seeding & Soil Reclamation

To: Colten Nance ( Teinert) From: Jarrod Redwine ( JKR- 10254) 

Email: cnance@teine t.com Pages: 2( including cover) 

Phone: 806. 744. 2801 Date: April 4, 2023

Re: Inn Town Lofts
CC: HUB, WBE, SBE & DBE Certified

Mr. Nance: 

Thank you for giving us the opportunity to bid on the Inn Town Lofts project located at 1202 Main Street in Lubbock, 
Texas. V-tech is providing unit pricing for the different elements tha# are required under the TCEQ General Pennit for
this project. Unit pricing is provided for the following tine items: SWPPP, Constn. iction Site Notices, Contract Review
and Administration, City of Lubbock SWPPP Review Fee, Silt Fence or Sediment Log Installation, Silt Fence or
Sediment Log Removal, Stabilized Construction Entrance, Driveway Transition, Sandbag Installation or

Replacement, Inlet Protection, 14- Day { nspections or Service Callouts, Dewatering Inspections, and Dewatering
Structures. 

Base Bid: 

Item Item Description 
F

Total

1 SWPPP ( Est. 1 EA) $ 1, 000.00 $ 1, 000. 00

2 Construction Site Notices ( Est. 2 EA) $ 175. 00 $ 350. 00

3 ConVact Review & Administration, Certified Payroll $ 1, 900. 00 $ 1, 900.00

4 City of Lubbock SWPPP Review Fee ( Est. 1 EA) $ 225. 00 $ 225. 00

5
Silt Fence or Sediment Log Installation ( As Detailed on $

3. 00 $ 4, 500. 00
Sheets C140. 10 Est. 1, 500 l.F

6 Silt Fence or Sediment Log Removal ( Est. 1, 500 LF) $ 1. 00 $ 1, 500. 00

Stabilized Canstruction Entrance ( As Detailed on $
3, 600.d0 $ 3, 600. 00

Sheets C140_10 24' x50' Est. 1 EA

8 Driveway Transition ( Est. 1 EA) $ 750. 00 $ 750.00

9 Sandbag Installation or Replacement ( Est. 300 EA) $ 7. 00 $ 2, 100. 00

10 Inlet Protection ( Est. 3 EA) $ 225. 00 $ 675. 00

11 14 Day Inspections or Service Callouts { Est. 40 EA) $ 100. 00 $ 4, 000. 00* 

12 Concrete Washout ( Est. 1 EA) Excluded Excluded

13 Dewatering Inspections ( Est. 3 EA) $ 225. 00 $ 675. 00`" 

14 Dewatering Structures ( Est. 3 EA) $ 225. 00 $ 675. 00"* 

Project Total (Base Bid): a21, 950. 00

Insnections are based on a 420-dav oroiect lenath. Additional charqes will be incurred for inspections after 420 days. 
Callout Basis Only



Option 1: Engineered Cost Savings - 20' x 40' Construction Entrance

V-tech proposes to install a 20' x 40' construction entrance in lieu of the 25' x 50' construction entrance shown on
the construciion drawings. 

Item Item Descri tion Per EAILF Total

1 Stabilized Construction Entrance ( 20' x 40') ( Est. 1 EA $ 2, 800. 00 $ 2, 800. 00* 

Option 1 Total: $ 2, 800. 00* 

Engineered Cost Savings: $ 800. 00

TERMS AND CONDiTIONS: 

Payment Terms: 

Net thirty ( 30) days from receipt of invoice. A late payment charge of 1. 5% will be added in the event payment
is not made within thirty ( 30) days of invoice. 

Quotation Validiry: 
Quotation is valid for sixty ( 60) days. After sixty ( 60) days, prices and terms are subject to confinnation. 

Specia! Terms 8 Conditions: 

Change orders, major repairs, or catastrophic failures ( flaoding, ice storms, grass fires, deep freezes, snow
drifts, large hail z1", winds a 50 mph, andlor tornadoes) will be billed on a time and materials basis. 

V-tech will not be responsible for silt fence or sediment log maintenance if not performing storm water
inspections. 

ewatering inspections and structures will be provided on a callout basis only. 

EJCCLUSIONS: 

Bid excludes a payment or performance bond. 
Bid excludes replacement quantities for damaged erosion controls. 
Bid excludes a unit price for the maintenance or removal of a stabitized construction entrance. 
Bid excludes the installation or signage required for a concrete washout. 

Bid excludes additional SWPPP requirements for a concrete batch plant andlor asphalt batch plant. 
Bid excludes sediment removal ( construction debris, trash, blow sand, etc.) from erosion control devices. 

Bid excludes final stabilization, sodding andlor seeding. Quotation available upon request. 
Bid excludes umbrella policy for GL and auto insurance. Additional fees will be incurred for higher premiums
or specialty coverage. 

Bid excludes additional fees for third- parly payment providers, 3- D modeling software, and cloud- based
workflow solution software subscriptions ( e.g.: Textura, Bluebeam, Revu, Procore). 

We sincerely appreciate the opportuniry to work with your company on this project. If you have additional questions, 
comments or concems, please call the office and a member of staff witl assist you. 

Best Regards, 

V-TECH ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

Cy.%,Y,  ! %. r•.... ,.., 

Jarrod Redwine

Director of Construction Services

page 2



Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Encumbered/Expended Budget

-$                              

Agenda Item September 26, 2023

   Contract No.17603 225,000                    

Encumbered/Expended To Date 225,000                    

Estimated Cost for Remaining Appropriation

Utility Upgrades, Gateways, and Green spaces 1,378,955                 

Remaining Appropriation 1,378,955                 

Total Appropriation 1,603,955$               

City of Lubbock

92776

Utility Upgrade, Gateways, and Greenspace

Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail

October 22, 2024



Project Scope

Design, relocation, upgrading and replacement of public utility infrastructure, construction of 
gateways and greenspaces in the CBD, and any other related, allowable uses of the project 
funding. 

Project Justi�cation  Project Highlights

The Downtown Master Plan update provides 
numerous recommendations for utility 
infrastructure upgrades, additional street and 
pedestrian lighting, improvements to the public 
right of way, and gateway and greenspace 
improvement. 

Council Priorities Addressed: Economic 
Development, Community Impact 

Project Dates Project History

FY 2023-24: Potential projects include replacing 
pedestrian lighting in the depot district with LED 
bulbs, and installing wayfinding and branding 
signage in key areas throughout the downtown, 
per the Downtown Parking Master Plan and 
utilizing the new community-wide brand and logo. 

$1,378,955 was appropriated in the FY 2022-23 
Budget, Ord. No. 2022-O0136, October 1, 2022.

Project Location

Project Appropriations

CBD TIF 92776

2022 - 23 Budget CIP 2023 - 24 Budget 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget

Construction $1,378,955 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $1,378,955 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Project Funding

CBD TIF 92776

Funding to
Date

2023 - 24
Budget

2024 - 25
Budget

2025 - 26
Budget

2026 - 27
Budget

2027 - 28
Budget

2028 - 29
Budget

CBD TIF Fund Prior Year
Bonds $1,378,955 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $1,378,955 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

CIP 92776CIP 92776 Utility Upgrades, Gateways Utility Upgrades, Gateways  
and Greenspaceand Greenspace  

Infrastructure ImprovementsInfrastructure Improvements

Project Manager: Brianna Brown - Business DevelopmentProject Manager: Brianna Brown - Business Development



Operating Budget Impacts

92776

Description 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0



 AI# 12941 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 25. 
10/22/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a
Memorandum of Understanding between the Central Business District Tax Increment Financing Zone
Advisory Board and SIMFLO, LLC, for funding a portion of overhead utility relocation at 619
Broadway and adjacent properties in Downtown, Lubbock, Texas. 

Item Summary
SIMFLO, LLC is redeveloping their property at 619 Broadway, which is located within the Central
Business District (CBD) Tax Increment Financing (TIF) District boundary, as designated by the City of
Lubbock. Developers of the project, along with their adjacent property owners, submitted a request to
the CBD TIF Advisory Board for assistance in the relocation of overhead utilities to underground, in the
east/west alley between Broadway and 13th Street.
  

• Lubbock Power & Light has agreed to assist in a portion of redevelopment costs to move
electrical distribution infrastructure underground.
• The request for support from the TIF Board will assist in a portion of the costs to move AT&T,
Vexus, and Optimum Fiber infrastructure underground.

The developers of property along the Broadway block between Crickets Avenue and Avenue E, have
invested $5.25 million in projects to date, with an estimated $4 to $6 million anticipated in the future.
Six companies are currently operating in this area, with approximately 50 employees between them. By
addressing the infrastructure issues in this alley, the project will enhance the safety and reliability of
utility services, while creating a more conducive environment for businesses, employees, residents, and
visitors.

At their Regular Board meeting on October 9, 2024, the CBD TIF Advisory Board unanimously voted to
incentivize SIMFLO, LLC with a reimburseable grant in an amount not to exceed $90,000, for overhead
utility relocation. 

Fiscal Impact
The CBD TIF will fund this grant in an amount not to exceed $90,000, to be reimbursed at the
completion of the project. This grant is funded in Capital Improvement Project 92776. 

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager 
Brianna Brown, Business Development Director 
CBD TIF Advisory Board 

Attachments



Resolution 
MOU - CBD TIF 
Budget Detail 
CIP Detail 





































Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Encumbered/Expended Budget

-$                             

Contract No. 17603: HTG Lubbock, LLC 225,000$                  

Agenda Item October 22, 2024

   Contract No.18310 90,000                      

Encumbered/Expended To Date 315,000                    

Estimated Cost for Remaining Appropriation

Utility Upgrades, Gateways, and Green spaces 1,378,955                 

Remaining Appropriation 1,378,955                 

Total Appropriation 1,693,955$               

City of Lubbock

92776

Utility Upgrade, Gateways, and Greenspace

Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail

October 22, 2024



Project Scope

Design, relocation, upgrading and replacement of public utility infrastructure, construction of 
gateways and greenspaces in the CBD, and any other related, allowable uses of the project 
funding. 

Project Justi�cation  Project Highlights

The Downtown Master Plan update provides 
numerous recommendations for utility 
infrastructure upgrades, additional street and 
pedestrian lighting, improvements to the public 
right of way, and gateway and greenspace 
improvement. 

Council Priorities Addressed: Economic 
Development, Community Impact 

Project Dates Project History

FY 2023-24: Potential projects include replacing 
pedestrian lighting in the depot district with LED 
bulbs, and installing wayfinding and branding 
signage in key areas throughout the downtown, 
per the Downtown Parking Master Plan and 
utilizing the new community-wide brand and logo. 

$1,378,955 was appropriated in the FY 2022-23 
Budget, Ord. No. 2022-O0136, October 1, 2022.

Project Location

Project Appropriations

CBD TIF 92776

2022 - 23 Budget CIP 2023 - 24 Budget 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget

Construction $1,378,955 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $1,378,955 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Project Funding

CBD TIF 92776

Funding to
Date

2023 - 24
Budget

2024 - 25
Budget

2025 - 26
Budget

2026 - 27
Budget

2027 - 28
Budget

2028 - 29
Budget

CBD TIF Fund Prior Year
Bonds $1,378,955 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $1,378,955 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

CIP 92776CIP 92776 Utility Upgrades, Gateways Utility Upgrades, Gateways  
and Greenspaceand Greenspace  

Infrastructure ImprovementsInfrastructure Improvements

Project Manager: Brianna Brown - Business DevelopmentProject Manager: Brianna Brown - Business Development



Operating Budget Impacts

92776

Description 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0



 AI# 12936 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 26. 
10/22/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Police Department: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Purchase
Order 10027892, with Flock Group, Inc., for equipment and software to enable the Police Department to
identify and track vehicles affiliated with acts of violence and/or criminal acts.

Item Summary
The Flock Group is a nationwide information exchange system that helps identify and track vehicles
affiliated with acts of violence and/or criminal acts. The system of cameras and software is a sole source
product that is compatible with the existing AXON system this is currently installed in Lubbock Police
Department vehicles. Using license plate recognition cameras with Vehicle Fingerprint technology
(proprietary machine learning software), creates real-time alerts and enables the Department to deter, as
well as to solve crimes in the community.

 

Fiscal Impact
Purchase Order 10027892, for $138,300 is funded by Lubbock Police Department Seized Funds.

Staff/Board Recommending
Seth Herman, Chief of Police

Attachments
Resolution- Flock Group INC 
Purchase Order- Flock Group INC 





 

TO: SHIP TO: 

 INVOICE TO: CITY OF LUBBOCK  
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
P.O. BOX 2000 
LUBBOCK, TX 79457 BY: 

Marta Alvarez, Director of Purchasing & Contract Management 

1Page    -
Date    - 10/7/2024P U R C H A S E   O R D E R
Order Number 10027892 OP000
Branch/Plant         5731

FLOCK GROUP INC CITY OF LUBBOCK
P.O BOX 121923 POLICE DEPARTMENT

       

1401 15TH STDALLAS TX 75312
LUBBOCK TX 79401

Ordered .Freight10/7/2024
Taken ByRequested 11/8/2024 Y BUSBY

PUR 18380/SOLE SOURCEDelivery PER L PEDERSON REQ 62311

Description/Supplier Item Ordered Unit Cost UM Extension Request Date
Existing Infrastructure 4.000 150.0000 EA 600.00 11/8/2024

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES- EX
Implementation Fee

Solar 1.000 750.0000 EA 750.00 11/8/2024

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES- SO
Implementation Fee

Mash Tested Pole 3.000 1,250.0000 EA 3,750.00 11/8/2024

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES MAS
Implementation Fee

Existing Infrastructure 8.000 150.0000 EA 1,200.00 11/8/2024

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES EXI
Implementation Fee

Flock Safety Platform 1.000 66,000.0000 EA 66,000.00 11/8/2024

FLOCK SAFETY PLATFORM

Annual Recurring 1.000 66,000.0000 EA 66,000.00 11/8/2024
Total Order

NET DUE ON RECEIPTTerms 138,300.00

This purchase order encumbers funds in the amount of $138,300.00 awarded to Flock Group, Inc. of Dallas, TX, on
_________________, 2024. The following is incorporated into and made part of this purchase order by reference: Quote dated 
September 24, 2024, from Flock Group, Inc. of Dallas, TX, and Sole Source.

Resolution #____________________ 

CITY OF LUBBOCK: 

______________________________________

Mark McBrayer, Mayor

ATTEST: 

______________________________________

Courtney Paz, City Secretary

If you have any questions contact Lisa Pederson:  LPederson@mylubbock.us  Phone 806-775-2765



 

TO: SHIP TO: 

 INVOICE TO: CITY OF LUBBOCK  
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
P.O. BOX 2000 
LUBBOCK, TX 79457 BY: 

Marta Alvarez, Director of Purchasing & Contract Management 

2Page    -
Date    - 10/7/2024P U R C H A S E   O R D E R
Order Number 10027892 OP000
Branch/Plant         5731

FLOCK GROUP INC CITY OF LUBBOCK
P.O BOX 121923 POLICE DEPARTMENT

      

1401 15TH ST  DALLAS TX 75312
LUBBOCK TX 79401

Ordered .Freight10/7/2024
Taken ByRequested 11/8/2024 Y BUSBY

PUR 18380/SOLE SOURCEDelivery PER L PEDERSON REQ 62311

INSURANCE REQUIRED:

Workers Compensation and Employer Liability: 

*The City of Lubbock (including its officials, employees and volunteers) shall be afforded additional insured status on a primary
and non-contributory basis on all liability policies except professional liabilities and workers' comp. *Waivers of Subrogation are
required for CGL, AL, and WC. *To Include Products of Completed Operations endorsement. *Carrier will provide a 30-day
written notice of cancellation, 10-day written notice for non-payment. *Carriers must meet an A.M. Best rating of A- or better.
*Subcontractors must carry same limits as listed above.

Commercial General Liability:
Statutory. If the vendor is an independent contractor with no 
employees and are exempt from providing Workers' 
Compensation coverage, they must sign a waiver (obtained 
from COL Purchasing) and include a copy of their driver's 
license. Employer Liability ($1M) is required with Workers 
Compensation. 

Additional Policies: N/A

$1M occurrence / $2M aggregate (can be combined with an 
Excess Liability to meet requirement). CGL is required in ALL 
contracts. It is perhaps the most important of 
all insurance policies in a contractual relationship. It insures 
the Contractor has broad liability coverage for contractual 
activities and for completed operations.

Commercial General Liability to include Products – 
Completion/OP, Personal and Advertising Injury, Contractual 
Liability, Fire Damage (any one fire), and Medical Expenses 
(any one person). 

Automobile Liability:
$1M occurrence is needed.



  REV. 3/2022     

    Rev. 3/2022 
 

Seller and Buyer agree as 
follows: 

PURCHASE ORDER                                                                                        
TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

ACCEPTANCE OF THIS PURCHASE ORDER:  

CONTRACTOR ACKNOWLEDGES, by supplying any Goods or Services that the Contractor has read, fully 

understands, and will be in full compliance with all terms and conditions and the descriptive material contained herein 

and any additional associated documents and Amendments.  The City disclaims any terms and conditions provided by 

the Contractor unless agreed upon in writing by the parties.  In the event of conflict between the City’s terms and 

conditions and any terms and conditions provided by the Contractor, the terms and conditions provided herein shall 

prevail.  The terms and conditions provided herein are the final terms agreed upon by the parties, and any prior 

conflicting terms shall be of no force or effect. 

 

1. SELLER TO PACKAGE GOODS.   Seller will package goods in accordance with good commercial practice.   

Each shipping container shall be clearly and permanently marked as follows  (a)  Seller’s name and address, (b) 

Consignee’s name, address and purchase order or purchase release number and the supply agreement number if 

applicable, (c) Container number and total number of containers, e.g. box 1 of 4 boxes, and (d) the number of the 

container bearing the packing slip. Seller shall bear cost of packaging unless otherwise provided. Goods shall be 

suitably packed to secure lowest transportation costs and to conform with requirements of common carriers and any 

applicable specifications.  Buyer’s count or weight shall be final and conclusive on shipments not accompanied by 

packing lists. 

2. SHIPMENT UNDER RESERVATION PROHIBITED.  Seller is not authorized to ship the goods under 

reservation and no tender of a bill of lading will operate as a tender of goods. 

3. TITLE AND RISK OF LOSS.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to Buyer until Buyer actually 

receives and takes possession of the goods at the point or points of delivery. 

4. NO REPLACEMENT OF DEFECTIVE TENDER.  Every tender of delivery of goods must fully comply with all 

provisions of this contract as to time of delivery, quality and the like. If a tender is made which does not fully conform, 

this shall constitute a breach and Seller shall not have the right to substitute a conforming tender, provided, where the 

time for performance has not yet expired, the Seller may reasonably notify Buyer of his intention to cure and may 

then make a conforming tender within the contract time but not afterward. 

5. INVOICES & PAYMENTS. a. S e l l e r  shall submit separate invoices, in duplicate, one each purchase order or 

purchase release after each delivery.  Invoices shall indicate the purchase order or purchase release number and 

the supply agreement number if applicable.  Invoices shall be itemized and transportation charges, if any, shall be 

listed separately.  A copy of the bill of lading, and the freight waybill when applicable, should be attached to the 

invoice. Mail To: Accounts Payable, City of Lubbock, P. O. Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas 79457.  Payment shall not 

be due until the above instruments are submitted after delivery. 

6. GRATUITIES.  The Buyer may, by written notice to the Seller, cancel this contract without liability to Seller if 

it is determined by Buyer that gratuities, in the form of entertainment, gifts or otherwise, were offered or given by the 

Seller, or any agent or representative of the Seller, to any officer or employee of the City of Lubbock with a view to 

securing a contract or securing favorable treatment with respect to the awarding or amending, or the making of any 

determinations with respect to the performing of such a contract.  In the event this contract is canceled by Buyer 

pursuant to this provision, Buyer shall be entitled, in addition to any other rights and remedies, to recover or withhold 

the amount of the cost incurred by Seller in providing such gratuities. 

7. SPECIAL TOOLS & TEST EQUIPMENT.  If the price stated on the face hereof includes the cost of any special 

tooling or special test equipment fabricated or required by Seller for the purpose of filling this order, such special 

tooling equipment and any process sheets related thereto shall become the property of the Buyer and to the extent 

feasible shall be identified by the Seller as such. 

8. WARRANTY-PRICE. a. The price to be paid by the Buyer shall be that contained in Seller’s bid which 

Seller warrants to be no higher than Seller’s current process on orders by others for products of the kind and 

specification covered by this agreement for similar quantities under similar of like conditions and methods of purchase.  

In the event Seller breaches this warranty, the prices of the  items  shall  be  reduced  to  the  Seller’s  current  prices  

on  orders  by others, or  in  the alternative.  Buyer may cancel this contract without liability to Seller for breach 

or Seller’s actual expense. b. The Seller warrants that no person or selling agency has been employed or retained to 

solicit or secure this contract upon an agreement or understanding for commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent 

fee excepting bona fide employees of bona fide established commercial or selling agencies maintained by the Seller for 

the purpose of securing business.  For breach of viciation of this warranty the Buyer shall have the right in addition to 

any other right of rights to cancel this contract without liability and to deduct from the contract price, or otherwise 

recover without liability and to deduct from the contract price, or otherwise recover the full amount of such commission, 

percentage, brokerage or contingent fee. 

9. WARRANTY-PRODUCT.  Seller shall not limit or exclude any implied warranties and any attempt to do so shall 

render this contract voidable at the option of the Buyer.  Seller warrants that the goods furnished will conform to the 

specification, drawings, and descriptions listed in the bid invitation, and to the sample(s) furnished by the Seller, if any. 

In the event of a conflict or between the specifications, drawings, and descriptions, the specifications shall govern. 

Notwithstanding any provisions contained in the contractual agreement, the Seller represents and warrants fault-free 

performance and fault-free result in the processing date and date related data (including, but not limited to calculating, 

comparing and sequencing) of all hardware, software and firmware products delivered and services provided under 

this Contract, individually or in combination, as the case may be from the effective date of this Contract. The 

obligations contained herein apply to products and services provided by the Seller, its sub- Seller or any third party 

involved in the creation or development of the products and services to be delivered to the City of Lubbock under this 

Contract.  Failure to comply with any of the obligations contained herein, may result in the City of Lubbock 

availing itself of any of its rights under the law and under this Contract including, but not limited to, its right pertaining 

to termination or default. The warranties contained herein are separate and discrete from any other warranties 

specified in this Contract, and are not subject to any disclaimer of warranty, implied or expressed, or limitation of the 

Seller’s liability which may be specified in this Contract, its appendices, its schedules, its annexes or any document 

incorporated in this Contract by reference. 

10. SAFETY WARRANTY.  Seller warrants that the product sold to the Buyer shall conform to the standards 

promulgated by the U. S. Department of Labor under the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970.  In the event the 

product does not conform to OSHA standards, Buyer may return the product for correction or replacement at the 

Seller’s expense.  In the event Seller fails to make the appropriate correction within a reasonable time, correction 

made by Buyer will be at the Seller’s expense. 

11. NO WARRANTY BY BUYER AGAINST INFRINGEMENTS.  As part of this contract for sale Seller agrees 

to ascertain whether goods manufactured in accordance with the specifications attached to this agreement will give 

rise to the rightful claim of any third person by way of infringement of the like.  Buyer makes no warranty that the 

production of goods according to the specification will not give rise to such a claim, and in no event shall Buyer be 

liable to Seller for indemnification in the event that Seller is sued on the grounds of infringement of the like.  If Seller 

is of the opinion that an infringement or the like will result, he will notify the Buyer to this effect in writing within two 

weeks after the signing of this agreement.    If  Buyer  does  not  receive  notice  and  is  subsequently  held  liable  for  

the infringement or the like, Seller will save Buyer harmless.  If Seller in good faith ascertains the production of the 

goods in accordance with the specifications will result in infringement or the like, the contract shall be null and void. 

12. NON APPROPRIATION. All funds for payment by the City under this contract are subject to the availability of an 

annual appropriation for this purpose by the City.  In the event of nonappropriation of funds by the City Council of the 

City of Lubbock for the goods or services provided under the contract, the City will terminate the contract, without 

termination charge or other liability, on the last day of the then-current fiscal year or when the appropriation made for 

the then-current year for the goods or services covered by this contract is spent, whichever event occurs first.  If at any 

time funds are not appropriated for the continuance of this contract, cancellation shall be accepted by the Seller on 

thirty (30) days prior written notice, but failure to give such notice shall be of no effect and the City shall not be 

obligated under this contract beyond the date of termination. 

13. RIGHT OF INSPECTION.  Buyer shall have the right to inspect the goods at delivery before accepting them. 

14. CANCELLATION.  Buyer shall have the right to cancel for default all or any part of the undelivered portion of 

this order if Seller breaches any of the terms hereof including warranties of Seller or if the Seller becomes insolvent or 

commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of cancellation is in addition to and not in lieu of any other remedies which 

Buyer may have in law or equity. 

15. TERMINATION. The performance of work under this order may be terminated in whole, or in part by the Buyer 

in accordance with this provision.  Termination of work hereunder shall be effected by the delivery of the Seller of 

a “Notice of Termination” specifying the extent to which performance of work under the order is terminated and the 

date upon which such termination becomes effective. Such right or termination is in addition to and not in lieu of the 

rights of Buyer set forth in Clause 14, herein. 

16. FORCE MAJEURE.    Neither party shall be held responsible for losses, resulting if the fulfillment of any 

terms of provisions of this contract is delayed or prevented by any cause not within the control of the party whose 

performance is interfered with, and which by the exercise of reasonable diligence said party is unable to prevent. 

17. ASSIGNMENT-DELEGATION.  No right or interest in this contract shall be assigned or delegation of any 

obligation made by Seller without the written permission of the Buyer.  Any attempted assignment or delegation by 

Seller shall be wholly void and totally ineffective for all purpose unless made in conformity with this paragraph. 

18. WAIVER. No claim or right arising out of a breach of this contract can be discharged in whole or in part by a 

waiver or renunciation of the claim or right unless the waiver or renunciation is supported by consideration and is in 

writing signed by the aggrieved party. 

19. INTERPRETATION-PAROLE EVIDENCE. This writing, plus any specifications for bids and performance  

provided  by  Buyer  in  its  advertisement for  bids,  and  any  other  documents provided by Seller as part of his bid, 

is intended by the parties as a final expression of their agreement and intended also as a complete and exclusive 

statement of the terms of their agreement.   Whenever a term defined by the Uniform Commercial Code is used in this 

agreement, the definition contained in the Code is to control. 

20. APPLICABLE LAW.  This agreement shall be governed by the Uniform Commercial Code. Wherever the term 

“Uniform Commercial Code” is used, it shall be construed as meaning the Uniform Commercial Code as adopted in 

the State of Texas as effective and in force on the date of this agreement. 

21. RIGHT TO ASSURANCE.  Whenever one party to this contract in good faith has reason to question the other 

party’s intent to perform he may demand that the other party give written assurance of his intent to perform.  In the 

event that a demand is made and no assurance is given within five (5) days, the demanding party may treat this 

failure as an anticipatory repudiation of the contract. 

22. INDEMNIFICATION.  Seller shall indemnify, keep and save harmless the Buyer, its agents, officials and 

employees, against all injuries, deaths, loss, damages, claims, patent claims, suits, liabilities, judgments, costs and 

expenses, which may in anywise accrue against the Buyer in consequence of the granting of this Contract or which 

may anywise result therefrom, whether or not it shall be alleged or determined that the act was caused through 

negligence or omission of the Seller or its employees, or of the subSeller or assignee or its employees, if any, and the 

Seller shall, at his own expense, appear, defend and pay all charges of attorneys and all costs and other expenses 

arising therefrom of incurred in connection therewith, and, if any judgment shall be rendered against the Buyer in any 

such action, the Seller shall, at its own expenses, satisfy and discharge the same Seller expressly understands and 

agrees that any bond required by this contract, or otherwise provided by Seller, shall in no way limit the 

responsibility to indemnify, keep and save harmless and defend the Buyer as herein provided. 

23. TIME.   It is hereby expressly agreed and understood that time is of the essence for the performance of this 

contract, and failure by contract to meet the time specifications of this agreement will cause Seller to be in default 

of this agreement. 

24. MBE.  The City of Lubbock hereby notifies all bidders that in regard to any contract entered into pursuant to 

this request, minority and women business enterprises will be afforded equal opportunities to submit bids in response 

to this invitation and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, sex or natural origin in 

consideration for an award. 

25. NON-ARBITRATION. The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy to it by law, contract, equity, or 

otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all forms of relief in a court of competent 

jurisdiction. Further, the City shall not be subject to any arbitration process prior to exercising its unrestricted 

right to seek judicial remedy. The remedies set forth herein are cumulative and not exclusive, and may be exercised 

concurrently. To the extent of any conflict between this provision and another provision in, or related to, this document, 

this provision shall control. 

26. RIGHT TO AUDIT. At any time during the term of the contract, or thereafter, the City, or a duly authorized 

audit representative of the City or the State of Texas, at its expense and at reasonable times, reserves the right to 

audit Contractor's records and books relevant to all services provided to the City under this Contract. In the event such 

an audit by the City reveals any errors or overpayments by the City, Contractor shall refund the City the full amount 

of such overpayments within thirty (30) days of such audit findings, or the City, at its option, reserves the right to 

deduct such amounts owing the City from any payments due Contractor. 

27. The Contractor shall not assign or sublet the contract, or any portion of the contract, without written consent from 

the Director of Purchasing and Contract Management. 

28. Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist Organization Prohibited.  

Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, prohibits the City from entering into a contract with a 

vendor that is identified by The Comptroller as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or service 

with Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization 

29. Texas Government Code. Section 2252.908 requires a business entity entering into certain contracts with a 

governmental entity or state agency to file with the governmental entity or state agency a disclosure of interested parties 

at the time the business entity submits the signed contract to the governmental entity or state agency.  Instructions for 

completing Form 1295 are available at: http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-

websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information 

30. No Boycott of Israel.  Pursuant to Section 2271.002 of the Texas Government Code, Respondent certifies that 

either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2271.002; or (ii) it does not boycott Israel and will not boycott 

Israel during the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation. Respondent shall state any facts that make it 

exempt from the boycott certification in its Response.  

31. No Boycott of Energy Companies.  Pursuant to Section 2274 of the Texas Government Code, Respondent 

certifies that either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2274.002; or (ii) it does not boycott Energy 

Companies and will not boycott Energy Companies during the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation. 

Respondent shall state any facts that make it exempt from the boycott certification in its Response. 

32. No Boycott of a Firearm Entity or Firearm Trade Association.  Pursuant to Section 2274 of the Texas 

Government Code, Respondent certifies that either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2274.002; or (ii) it 

does not boycott a Firearm Entity or Firearm Trade Association and will not boycott a Firearm Entity or Firearm 

Trade Association during the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation. Respondent shall state any facts that 

make it exempt from the boycott certification in its Response. 

33.  Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist Organization Prohibited.  

Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, prohibits the City from entering into a contract with a 

vendor that is identified by The Comptroller as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or 

service with Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization 

34. TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT. The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code, 

may apply to this contract and the contractor or vendor agrees that the contract can be terminated if the contractor or 

vendor knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a requirement of that subchapter. 

35. Pursuant to Section 552.301(c) of the Texas Government Code, the City of Lubbock has designated the following 

email address for which public information requests may be made by an emailed request: orr@mylubbock.us. Please 

send this request to this email address for it to be processed

http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information
http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information
mailto:orr@mylubbock.us


�����������������	
������������������������������������������������� !�"�##$%�&�'(���)*���+,-�.�*/(�0#%�1/�2!/2-��1�3%3#4�����������������)1 5�67581689�62:(��!�;('*<��2:(��!"�('*<=>����<2>(/?"��:�4%@A$B%A$C%B��6�(2/(,�D2/(9�%BE0CE0%0C�FG�*�2/*�!�D2/(9�#%E3#E0%0C�H��/(�5�:I(�9�HA4344%�J7�5�:I(�9���� �



 

 
Quote 

 
 

Bill To: 1205 15th St Lubbock, Texas 79401 Ship To: 1205 15th St Lubbock, Texas 79401 
 

Billing Company Name: TX - Lubbock PD Subscription Term: 24 Months 
Billing Contact Name:  Payment Terms: Net 30 
Billing Email Address:  Retention Period: 30 Days 

Billing Phone:  Billing Frequency: Annual Plan - First Year Invoiced at 
Signing.              

    
Hardware and Software Products 
Annual recurring amounts over subscription term 
 
Item Cost Quantity Total 

Flock Safety Platform   $66,000.00 

Flock Safety LPR Products    

Flock Safety Falcon ® Included 7 Included 

Solar Falcon ® LR Included 9 Included 
 
 

Professional Services and One Time Purchases 
    

Item Cost Quantity Total 

One Time Fees    

Flock Safety Professional Services    

Professional Services - Existing Infrastructure 
Implementation Fee $150.00 4 $600.00 

Professional Services - Solar Implementation 
Fee $750.00 1 $750.00 

Professional Services - MASH Tested Pole 
Implementation Fee - Non-Coastal Region $1,250.00 3 $3,750.00 

Professional Services - Existing Infrastructure 
Implementation Fee $150.00 8 $1,200.00 

 
 

  Subtotal Year 1: $72,300.00 

  Annual Recurring Subtotal: $66,000.00 
  Estimated Tax: $0.00 

  Contract Total: $138,300.00 

 
 

Taxes shown above are provided as an estimate. Actual taxes are the responsibility of the Customer. This is not an invoice – this document is a non-binding proposal 
for informational purposes only. Pricing is subject to change. 

 
  



����������	
���
� �������������
����� ���������� ��!"#�"�#� $%&'())*))�������+
���������,�
���
����� $--')))*))�.��������/����� $0(1'())*))�23�4�����"� 56787��� �



��������	
��������������������
������������������� ����� !� �"�#$%&'�()*+,-�#)$&%.�/� 0)1�+.*%2&+3+.,�42)5+�6.*2)7,28&,82+9*2++�:7%$)2�;%1+2�<�0=>?�$6&+.7+�;$),+�2+&%4.6,6%.�&)3+2)�16,@�A+@6&$+�BCDEFGHGCDI�J�IFKLDMNMEO�PHGMHGCFIQGO�RQKLCDF�NFQGDCDE�SMTIUQGFV�QDW�GFQN9,63+�)$+2,7�*%2�8.$636,+5�87+27X�(%$)2�#)$&%.�/�0Y� 0)1�+.*%2&+3+.,�42)5+Z�$%.4�2).4+�).5�@64@�[+@6&$+�7;++5�$6&+.7+�;$),+�2+&%4.6,6%.�&)3+2)�16,@�\FLCKNF�BCDEFGHGCDI�J�IFKLDMNME-�:;2%;26+,)2-�3)&@6.+�$+)2.6.4�7%*,1)2+?�).5�2+)$9,63+�)$+2,7�*%2�8.$636,+5�87+27Z�16,@�0=>X�(%$)2�]%1+2�%.$-�]2%*+776%.)$�(+2[6&+7�9�>̂67,6.4�_.*2)7,28&,82+�_3;$+3+.,),6%.�#++� .̀+9,63+�]2%*+776%.)$�(+2[6&+7�+.4)4+3+.,X�_.&$85+7�76,+�).5�7)*+,-�)77+773+.,�%*�+̂67,6.4�[+2,6&)$�6.*2)7,28&,82+�$%&),6%.Z�&)3+2)�7+,8;�).5�,+7,6.4Z�).5�7@6;;6.4�).5�@).5$6.4�6.�)&&%25).&+�16,@�,@+�#$%&'�()*+,-�(,).5)25�_3;$+3+.,),6%.�(+2[6&+�a26+*X�]2%*+776%.)$�(+2[6&+7�9�(%$)2�_3;$+3+.,),6%.�#++� .̀+9,63+�]2%*+776%.)$�(+2[6&+7�+.4)4+3+.,X�_.&$85+7�76,+�).5�7)*+,-�)77+773+.,Z�&)3+2)�7+,8;�).5�,+7,6.4Z�).5�7@6;;6.4�).5�@).5$6.4�6.�)&&%25).&+�16,@�,@+�#$%&'�()*+,-�(,).5)25�_3;$+3+.,),6%.�(+2[6&+�a26+*X�]2%*+776%.)$�(+2[6&+7�9�bc(d�=+7,+5�]%$+�_3;$+3+.,),6%.�#++�9�e%.9f%)7,)$�Y+46%.� bc(d�,+7,+5�;%$+�,@),�3++,7�g̀ =�&2)7@1%2,@6.+77�2+h862+3+.,7X�_.&$85+7�3),+26)$7Z�6.7,)$$),6%.Z�).5�3)6.,+.).&+X�]2%*+776%.)$�(+2[6&+7�9�>̂67,6.4�_.*2)7,28&,82+�_3;$+3+.,),6%.�#++� .̀+9,63+�]2%*+776%.)$�(+2[6&+7�+.4)4+3+.,X�_.&$85+7�76,+�).5�7)*+,-�)77+773+.,�%*�+̂67,6.4�[+2,6&)$�6.*2)7,28&,82+�$%&),6%.Z�&)3+2)�7+,8;�).5�,+7,6.4Z�).5�7@6;;6.4�).5�@).5$6.4�6.�)&&%25).&+�16,@�,@+�#$%&'�()*+,-�(,).5)25�_3;$+3+.,),6%.�(+2[6&+�a26+*X���



 AI# 12949 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 1. 
10/22/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Board Appointments - City Secretary: Consider appointments to the Planning & Zoning Commission.

Item Summary
Consider appointments to the Planning & Zoning Commission.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Courtney Paz, City Secretary

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



 AI# 12940 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 2. 
10/22/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Business Development: Hold a public hearing to consider the creation of a Public
Improvement District for Highland Oaks, which covers a portion of an area in Lubbock County, Texas,
generally bounded by 146th Street to the north, Slide Road to the east, Woodrow Road to the south, and
Frankford Avenue to the west. 

Item Summary
The purpose of this public hearing is to present information to the City Council regarding the
advisability of establishing a Public Improvement District (PID) pursuant to Chapter 372 of the Texas
Local Government Code, and to provide an opportunity for property owners in the proposed public
improvement district to speak in favor of, or opposition to, the creation of a PID. 

The proposed PID is for the purpose of financing improvements and services related to:  

Funding a capital improvement project to engineer, procure, and construct water infrastructure
throughout the subdivision; and 

1.

Funding costs associated with developing and financing the public improvements listed in
subdivision (1) including the costs of establishing, administering, and operating the District. 

2.

The PID is to supplement and enhance services within the District, but not replace or supplant existing
City services provided within the District. 

The Highland Oaks PID will be a defined area providing specific types of services for that given area.
The City Council approved the calling of a Public Hearing at the September 24, 2024 City Council
Meeting. A notice of Public Hearing was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal, and notices were
mailed to the property owners on September 27, 2024, as required by the Statute. 

As a reminder, the City of Lubbock received a petition from property owners requesting that the City of
Lubbock establish a PID for the proposed Highland Oaks development area. The area covers
approximately 374.74 acres. PID establishment may only be initiated by a petition of property owners
meeting two tests outlined in the statute. The petition must be signed by:

(a) Owners representing more than 50% of the appraised value of the taxable real property liable for
assessment; and 
(b) Record owners of property liable for assessment under the PID petition who:  

Constitute more than 50% of all the record owners of property liable for assessment; or1.
Own taxable real property that constitutes more than 50% of the area liable for assessment within
the PID. 

2.

The petition received by the City of Lubbock was signed by authorized agents of the Highland Oaks
development, representing 62.48% of the appraised value for the area and 53.87% of the total land area
contained within the proposed PID. The petition was examined, verified, and found to meet the



contained within the proposed PID. The petition was examined, verified, and found to meet the
requirements of Section 372.005(b) of the Texas Local Government Code and to be sufficient for
consideration by the City Council of the City of Lubbock. 

The petitioners paid the application fee of $5,000, which should cover the cost of creating the PID, with
any remaining money being reimbursed to the petitioners. If the cost of creating the PID exceeds $5,000,
the petitioners will reimburse the City for the remaining cost. 

The creation of the Highland Oaks PID is dependent on annexation into the City of Lubbock. An
election for annexation will be held on November 5, 2024. Should the property owners elect not to
annex this area into the City limits of the City of Lubbock, the City Council will not take further action
on creation of the PID.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager 
Brianna Brown, Business Development Director 

Attachments
Public Hearing Notice 
Map 



 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING FOR THE PROPOSED HIGHLAND 

OAKS PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
 

Please take notice that on October 22, 2024, at 2:00 PM, the City Council of Lubbock, Texas, will conduct a public 

hearing in the City Council Chamber of Citizens Tower at 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, TX 79401. The purpose of this 

hearing is to consider the establishment of the Highland Oaks Public Improvement District (“District”) pursuant to 

Chapter 372 of the Texas Local Government Code (The “Act”). 

  

All interested persons will be given the opportunity to appear and be heard at such public hearing.  Written or oral 

objections will be considered.  The hearing may be adjourned from time to time until the City Council makes findings 

by ordinance as to the advisability of the District. 

 

The following information is hereby provided concerning the matters to be considered at such hearing: 

 

Nature of the Services and Improvements:  The general nature of the proposed public improvements is:  

(i) To fund a capital improvement project to engineer, procure, and construct water infrastructure throughout the 

subdivision; and (ii) To fund costs associated with developing and financing the public improvements listed in 

subdivision (i) including costs of establishing, administering and operating the District. 

 

Estimated Cost of the Services and Improvements:  The proposed assessment for the first year is for tax year 2025 

which will fund the budget for FY 2025-26.  The total estimated cost of services provided by the District is estimated 

at $3,662,812 over the next five years.  The estimated annual cost rises from $0 in the first year to $994,194 in year 

five (5).   The costs are based on a proposed assessment rate of $2.69 per $100.00 of valuation through tax year 2029.  

 

Boundaries: The proposed boundaries of the Highland Oaks Public Improvement District (PID) cover a portion of 

an area in the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, generally bounded by the 146th Street to the north, Slide 

Road to the east, Woodrow Road to the south, and Frankford Avenue to the west. 

 

Method of Assessment: The assessment methodology will result in an assessment amount that is equally divided 

between each lot.  

 

Apportionment of Cost:  The District is to supplement and enhance services within the District, but not replace or 

supplant existing City services provided within the District.  One hundred percent of any construction of new public 

improvements included in the Service Plan will be funded by the Public Improvement District. 

 

Public hearings are available to all persons regardless of disability.  If you require special assistance, please contact 

the City Secretary’s Office at 806-775-2025 or write to P.O. Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas, 79457, at least 48 hours in 

advance of the public hearing.  

 

Any questions concerning the matters described in this notice should be directed to: Brianna Brown, City of 

Lubbock Business Development Department at 806-775-3082.   

 





 AI# 12927 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 3. 
10/22/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning (District 1): Consider a request for Zone Case 3508, a request of 1585 &
Frankford/Discount RV, for a zone change from Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to Light
Industrial District (LI), at 12109 Frankford Avenue, located north of 122nd Street and east of Frankford
Avenue, Abbe Addition, Lot 1, and consider an ordinance.

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of this request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on October 3, 2024, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote of 5-0-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance 3508 
Staff Report 3508 
Documentation 3508 









Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 3508 
City Council Meeting October 22, 2024 

Applicant 1585 & Frankford/Discount RV 

Property Owner 1585 & Frankford/Discount RV 

Council District 5 

Recommendations 

 Staff recommends approval of the request.

Prior Board or Council Action 

 April 28, 2016, Ordinance No. 2016-O0054: The subject property was annexed into city limits and zoned

Transition District (T).

 May 9, 2023, Ordinance No. 2023-O0054 (effective October 1, 2023): The subject property was rezoned

from T to Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) with the adoption of the Unified Development Code.

 October 3, 2024, Zone Case 3508: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a

request for a zone change from SF-2 to Light Industrial District (LI), by a vote of 5-0-0.

Notification Summary 

 Notifications Sent: 28

 Received In Favor: 3

 Received In Opposition: 0

Site Conditions and History 

The subject property was originally platted as Abbe Addition, Lot 1 on September 27, 2005, and the plat was 

later corrected on November 21, 2005.  The structure on the property was built in 2005.  

Adjacent Property Development  

There are homes and a commercial building zoned SF-2 and Heavy Commercial District (HC) to the west, 
with vacant land to the north zoned Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC) and Industrial Park District (IP). 
Property to the south and east is outside city limits and developed with rental warehouses. 

Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The subject property is addressed as 12109 Frankford Avenue, located north of 122nd Street and east of Frankford 

Avenue, Abbe Addition, Lot 1. The applicant is requesting a zone change from Low Density Single-Family District 

(SF-2) to Light Industrial District (LI). 

Current zoning: Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) 

Requested zoning: Light Industrial District (LI) 

Intent Statements 

The purpose of the Low Density Single-Family (SF-2) District is to provide for two types of residential 

subdivisions: 

A. Conventional. Smaller to moderately-sized lots for dwellings on public utilities. Any open space is located 

on private lots. 



Page 2 of 2 

 

B. Cluster. Clustering of smaller-sized lots for dwellings with in increased percentage of common open space 

compared to cluster developments in the SF-1 district to maintain the intended character of the district 

while providing for buffering between lower and higher density adjacent neighborhoods, as well as for 

recreational amenities and resources protection. 

 

The intent of the proposed Light Industrial District (LI) is “to provide for industrial uses (non-retail) that are less 

intensive than what can be accommodated into General Industrial and that may include office, warehousing, 

distribution, and light assembly of parts, materials, and equipment, with operations conducted primarily indoors 

without the creation of smoke, gas, odor, dust, soot, or other noxious elements.” 

 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts  

The location is along Frankford Avenue, which is designated as a Minor Arterial by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 

2018. Arterials provide connectivity across the transportation network and are continuous routes whose function 

is to serve high volume needs to local traffic and regional traffic.  

 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 

existing development.  

 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The Future Land Use Map designates this area for Low Density Residential land uses. While this request does not 

conform to this designation, it would be appropriate along a thoroughfare and adjacent to existing zoning districts 

and land uses. Therefore, this request is in moderate conformance with the Comprehensive Plan principles. 

 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zone change is in conformance with the zoning ordinance. The property is located along a 

thoroughfare and is appropriate adjacent to nearby land uses. 

 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property may be suitable for the proposed use. 

 

Attachments 

A. Case Information 

B. Thoroughfare Plan Map 

C. Notification Map 

D. Aerial Map 

E. Zoning Map 

F. Future Land Use Map 

G. Photos 

H. Application and Supporting Documentation 

I. Notification Responses 

 

Staff Contacts 

Shane Spencer     Victor Escamilla 

Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 

Planning Department   Planning Department 

806-775-2103    806-775-3029 

sspencer@mylubbock.us   vescamilla@mylubbock.us 

 

 

 

mailto:sspencer@mylubbock.us
mailto:vescamilla@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3508 

 

Allowable Uses: Light Industrial District (LI) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has a point of access from Frankford Avenue. 

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Frankford Avenue, 
Minor Arterial, Partial 

R.O.W. 25 feet, 2 lane, 
undivided, paved. 

R.O.W. 110 feet, 5 lane, 
undivided, paved. 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes: 

District 5 

3.7 Zone Case 3508: 1585 & Frankford/Discount RV, request for a zone change from Low Density 

Single-Family District (SF-2) to Light Industrial District (LI), at: 

 12109 Frankford Avenue, located north of 122nd Street and east of Frankford Avenue, Abbe 

Addition, Lot 1. 

PLANNER SHANE SPENCER gave a presentation and answered questions from the Commission. Staff 

recommended approval of the request. 

APPLICANT JEFF TREVIÑO, 5625 County Road 7410, representative of Discount Storage, gave comments and 

answered questions from the Commission.  

No one appeared to speak in favor or in opposition. 

In the matter of Zone Case 3508, a motion was made by SUSAN TOMLINSON and seconded by TERRI MORRIS to 

approve the request as presented. The Commission voted 5 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the motion. 

The case will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-584












3508 

 

 

View east. Subject property. 

 

  

View north.  

View south.  

 

View west. 











 AI# 12923 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 4. 
10/22/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning (District 1): Consider a request for Zone Case 3487, a request of DLC
Designs, LLC for Children's Home of Lubbock, for a zone change from Low Density Single-Family
District (SF-2) to Residential Estates District (RE), at 4602 Idalou Road, located north of East Erskine
Street and east of Idalou Road, on 170.98 acres of unplatted land out of Block A, Section 25, and
consider an ordinance.

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of this request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on October 3, 2024, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote of 5-0-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance 3487 
Staff Report 3487 
Documentation 3487 

























Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 3487 
City Council Meeting October 22, 2024 

Applicant DLC Designs, LLC 

Property Owner Children’s Home of Lubbock 

Council District 1 

Recommendations 

 Staff recommends approval of the request.

Prior Board or Council Action 

 February 14, 1980, Ordinance No. 7991: The subject property was annexed into city limits and zoned
Transition District (T).

 May 9, 2023, Ordinance No. 2023-O0054 (effective October 1, 2023): The subject property was rezoned
from T to Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) with the adoption of the Unified Development Code.

 October 3, 2024, Zone Case 3487: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a
zone change from SF-2 to Residential Estates District (RE), by a vote of 5-0-0.

Notification Summary 

 Notifications Sent: 38

 Received In Favor: 6

 Received In Opposition: 0

Site Conditions and History 

The subject property remains unplatted and is mostly vacant with the development of farm structures, built in 

2020. 

Adjacent Property Development 

The properties to the north are zoned SF-2, Light Industrial District (LI), and High Density-Residential District 

(HDR), and are developed with a residential neighborhood, a manufacturing business, and the Children’s Home 

of Lubbock. The property to the east is zoned Residential Estates District (RE) and remains vacant. The property 

to the south is outside city limits and remains vacant. To the west, the property is zoned SF-2 and is developed 

with mobile homes, but is mostly vacant land.  

Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The subject property is addressed as 4602 Idalou Road, located north of East Erskine Street and east of Idalou 

Road. The applicant requests a zone change from Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to Residential Estates 

District (RE).   

Current zoning: Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) 

Requested zoning: Residential Estates District (RE) 

Intent Statements 

The purpose of the Low Density Single-Family (SF-2) District is to provide for two types of residential 

subdivisions: 



Page 2 of 2 

A. Conventional. Smaller to moderately sized lots for dwellings on public utilities. Any open space is 

located on private lots. 

B. Cluster. Clustering of smaller-sized lots for dwellings with an increased percentage of common open 

space compared to cluster developments in the SF-1 district to maintain the intended character of the 

district while providing for buffering between lower and higher density adjacent neighborhoods, as well 

as for recreational amenities and resources protection. 

The purpose of the Residential Estates (RE) District is to provide for two types of residential subdivisions: 

A. Conventional. Very low-density residential neighborhoods with on-site utilities, preserved rural low-
density character on private property, managed growth on the periphery of the City, and the ability of 
the property owner to keep large animals. 

B. Cluster. Residential neighborhoods with on-site utilities that have a high percentage of common open 
space to maintain rural character. 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 

The proposed rezoning location will be along East Erskine Street and Idalou Road. The Master Thoroughfare Plan, 

2018 designates East Erskine Street as a Principal Arterial (Modified) and Idalou Road as a Freeway. Arterials are 

continuous routes whose function is to serve high volume needs to local traffic and regional traffic. Freeways are 

intended to move high volumes of automobile traffic at relatively high speeds over long distances.  

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 

existing development.   

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The Future Land Use Map designates this area for “Residential Low Density” land use. The proposed zone change 

to RE would be in conformance with this designation. This request would be appropriate next to adjacent land 

uses and the RE zoning to the east.  

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zone change is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and will be appropriate at the proposed 

location.  

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property is suitable for the proposed use and may need additional public improvements to support the 

intensity of uses described in the Residential Estates District (RE), as the property remains unplatted.  

Attachments 

A. Case Information 

B. Thoroughfare Plan Map 

C. Notification Map 

D. Aerial Map 

E. Zoning Map 

F. Future Land Use Map 

G. Photos 

H. Application and Supporting Documentation 

I. Notification Responses 

Staff Contacts 

Ashley Padilla  Victor Escamilla 

Planner  Planning and Zoning Manager 

Planning Department Planning Department 

806-775-2107  806-775-3029 

ashleypadilla@mylubbock.us vescamilla@mylubbock.us  

mailto:ashleypadilla@mylubbock.us
mailto:vescamilla@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3487 

 

Allowable Uses:   Residential Estates District (RE) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has access points from Idalou Road and East Erskine 

Street.   

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Idalou Road, 
Freeway, Partially 

Completed  

R.O.W. 278 feet, four-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 300 feet, eight-
lane, undivided, paved 

East Erskine Street, 
Principal Artieral 

(Modified), Partially 
Completed  

R.O.W. 24 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, five-
lane, undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments.   

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes: 

District 1 

3.2 Zone Case 3487: DLC Designs, LLC, for Children's Home of Lubbock, request for a zone change 

from Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to Residential Estates District (RE), at: 

 4602 Idalou Road, located north of East Erskine Street and east of Idalou Road, on 170.98 

acres of unplatted land out of Block A, Section 25.  

PLANNER ASHLEY PADILLA gave a presentation and answered questions from the Commission. Staff 

recommended approval of the request. 

APPLICANT AMANDA KING, 1318 North King Avenue, with DLC Designs, LLC, noted that she was available for 

questions 

No one appeared to speak in favor or in opposition. 
 
In the matter of Zone Case 3487, a motion was made by SUSAN TOMLINSON and seconded by TANNER NOBLE 

to approve the request as presented. The Commission voted 5 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the motion. 

The case will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-562












3487 

 

Subject Property. View to the north. 

 

 

 View to the east.   

View to the south. 

 

View to the west. 

























 AI# 12924 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 5. 
10/22/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning (District 2): Consider a request for Zone Case 2565-H, a request of Indira
and Vipul Patel, for a zone change from Heavy Commercial District (HC) to Medium Density
Residential District (MDR), at 5930 Avenue Q South Drive and 5903 Avenue L, located east of Avenue
L and south of 58th Street, Carlton Heights Addition, Block A and approximately 8.16 acres of unplatted
land out of Block E, Section 2, and consider an ordinance.

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of this request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on October 3, 2024, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote of 5-0-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance 2565-H 
Staff Report 2565-H 
Documentation 2565-H 













Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 2565-H 
City Council Meeting October 22, 2024 

Applicant Indira and Vipul Patel 

Property Owner Indira and Vipul Patel 

Council District 2 

Recommendations 

 Staff recommends approval of the request.

Prior Board or Council Action 

 December 15, 1949, Ordinance No. 947: The subject properties were annexed into city limits and zoned

Heavy Manufacturing District (M-2).

 August 14, 1986, Zone Case 2565, Ordinance No.8947: The subject properties were rezoned from M-2 to

Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC).

 May 9, 2023, Ordinance No. 2023-O0054 (effective October 1, 2023): The subject properties were rezoned

from IHC to Heavy Commercial District (HC) with the adoption of the Unified Development Code.

 October 3, 2024, Zone Case 2565-H: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a

zone change from HC to Medium Density Residential District (MDR), by a vote of 5-0-0.

Notification Summary 

 Notifications Sent: 69

 Received In Favor: 0

 Received In Opposition: 0

Site Conditions and History 

The northern subject property is addressed as 5930 Avenue Q South Drive and was platted as Carlton Heights 

Addition, Block A on August 13, 1958. The southern property is addressed as 5903 Avenue L and consists of 

approximately 8.16 acres of unplatted land out of Block E, Section 2. 5930 Avenue Q South Drive was 
developed with a nursery, built before December 1955. The structure was demolished prior to 2022. 5903 

Avenue L is currently undeveloped vacant land. 

Adjacent Property Development  

The properties to the north are developed with a car wash and apartments, zoned HC and High Density Residential 

District (HDR) respectively. The properties to the east are developed with hotels, zoned HC. The property to the 

south is a hospital, zoned HC. The properties to the west are single-family homes, zoned Low Density Single-

Family District (SF-2).  

Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The subject properties are addressed as 5930 Avenue Q South Drive and 5903 Avenue L, located east of Avenue 

L and south of 58th Street, Carlton Heights Addition, Block A and approximately 8.16 acres of unplatted land out 

of Block E, Section 2. The applicant requests a zone change from Heavy Commercial District (HC) to Medium 

Density Residential District (MDR). 

Current zoning: Heavy Commercial District (HC) 

Requested zoning: Medium Density Residential District (MDR) 



Page 2 of 2 

 

Intent Statements 

The purpose of the current HC zoning is “to provide for development of heavy vehicle repair, wholesale trade, 

and warehousing and freight movement uses that typically are characterized by outside storage of materials or 

merchandise.” 

 

The intent of the requested MDR zoning is “to provide for a village neighborhood environment of smaller-sized 

lots, to include dwellings such as duplexes, townhouses, and multiplexes.” 

 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The property is located east of Avenue L, which is designated as a Local Street and west of Avenue Q South Drive, 
which is designated as a Principal Arterial by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Principal Arterials provide 
connectivity across the transportation network serving high volume needs of local and regional traffic. Local 
Streets typically provide access to smaller, destination-oriented areas, such as neighborhoods, subdivisions or 
local business districts. 
 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 

existing development. Currently the property is near low density and high density residential districts. The 

applicant is proposing an apartment complex. 

 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The Future Land Use Map designates this area for Commercial land uses. While this request does not conform to 

this designation, it would be appropriate as a buffer for the existing single-family homes from Avenue Q South 

Drive. Therefore, this request is in moderate conformance with the Comprehensive Plan Principles.  

 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zone change is in conformance with the Zoning Ordinance and will be appropriate at the proposed 

location. 

 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property is suitable for the proposed district, as it would not change the characteristics of the existing 

neighborhood. 

 

Attachments 

A. Case Information 

B. Thoroughfare Plan Map 

C. Aerial Map 

D. Zoning Map 

E. Future Land Use Map 

F. Photos 

G. Application and Supporting Documentation 

 

Staff Contacts 

Victoria Lewelling   Victor Escamilla 

Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 

Planning Department   Planning Department 

806-775-2021    806-775-3029 

vlewelling@mylubbock.us  vescamilla@mylubbock.us 

mailto:vlewelling@mylubbock.us
mailto:vescamilla@mylubbock.us


Attachment A   Page 1 of 1 

Case Information: Zone Case 2565-H 

Allowable Uses: Medium Density Residential District (MDR) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has access points from Avenue Q South Drive and Avenue L. 

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Avenue Q South 
Drive, Principal 

Arterial,
Completed  

R.O.W. 170 feet, eight-
lane, divided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, five-
lane, divided, paved 

Avenue L, 
Local Street, 
Completed 

R.O.W. 60 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

N/A 

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments: No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes: 

District 2 

3.3 Zone Case 2565-H: Indira and Vipul Patel, request for a zone change from Heavy Commercial 

District (HC) to Medium Density Residential District (MDR), at: 

 5930 Avenue Q South Drive and 5903 Avenue L, located east of Avenue L and south of 58th

Street, Carlton Heights Addition, Block A and approximately 8.16 acres of unplatted land out

of Block E, Section 2.

PLANNER VICTORIA LEWELLING gave a presentation and answered questions from the Commission. Staff 

recommended approval of the request. 

APPLICANT VINME PATEL, 501 Avenue Q, discussed the proposed apartment complex and answered 

questions from the Commission. 

No one appeared to speak in favor or in opposition. 

In the matter of Zone Case 2565-H, a motion was made by SUSAN TOMLINSON and seconded by ZACH SAWYER 

to approve the request as presented. The Commission voted 5 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the motion. 

The case will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-1322










2565-H 

 

 

View east. Subject property. 

 

 

View north.  

View west.  

 

View south. 



MDR



 AI# 12925 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 6. 
10/22/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning (District 4): Consider a request for Zone Case 1542-V, a request of
Lubbock Smoke Shop, LLC for Lubbock Commercial Buildings, Inc., for a zone change from
Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) to Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) Specific Use for a
smoke shop, at 7310 Quaker Avenue located west of Quaker Avenue and north of 74th Street, Furr Wolf
Addition, Block 2, Lot 2-A-1-B, and consider an ordinance.

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of this request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on October 3, 2024, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote of 5-0-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance 1542-V 
Staff Report 1542-V 
Documentation 1542-V 









Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 1542-V 
City Council Meeting October 22, 2024 

Applicant Lubbock Smoke Shop LLC 

Property Owner Lubbock Commercial Buildings, Inc. 

Council District 4 

Recommendations 

 Staff recommends approval of the request.

Prior Board or Council Action 

 September 11, 1958, Ordinance No. 002535: The subject property was annexed into city limits and
zoned Transition District (T). 

 June 11, 1959, Zone Case 0769, Ordinance No. 002813: The property was rezoned from T to Single-
Family District (R-1). 

 July 11, 1968, Zone Case 1542, Ordinance No. 005486: The property was rezoned from R-1 to Local
Retail District (C-2) with conditions. 

 May 9, 2023, Ordinance No. 2023-O0054 (effective October 1, 2023): The subject property was rezoned
from C-2 with conditions to Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) with the adoption of the Unified 
Development Code. 

 October 3,2024, Zone Case 1542-V: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a
request for Specific Use for a smoke shop on property zoned Neighborhood Commercial District (NC), by 
a vote of 5-0-0. 

Notification Summary 

 Notifications Sent: 29

 Received In Favor: 0

 Received In Opposition: 8 (1 outside of the notification boundary)

Site Conditions and History 

The subject property was originally platted on January 12, 1979 as Furr-Wolf Addition, Block 2, Lot 2.  The 
property was later replatted as Lot 2-A and Lot 2-A-1 on January 11, 1984 and April 29, 1986, respectively.  
The property was finally replatted on July 22, 1987, as Furr-Wolf Addition, Block 2, Lot 2-A-1-B and is currently 
developed with a commercial building, built in 2003.  

Adjacent Property Development 

To the north of the subject property is a restaurant zoned Heavy Commercial District (HC), to the east is 

commercial property zoned Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC), to the south is an apartment complex zoned 

High Density Residential District (HDR) and commercial property zoned NC, and to the west are commercial 

properties zoned NC.   

Zoning Request and Analysis  

Item Summary 

The subject property is addressed as 7310 Quaker Avenue, located west of Quaker Avenue and north of 74th 

Street, Furr-Wolf Addition, Block 2, Lot 2-A-1-B. The applicant is requesting a zone change from Neighborhood 

Commercial District (NC) to Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) Specific Use for a smoke shop.  

Current zoning: Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) 



Page 2 of 2 
 

Requested zoning: Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) Specific Use for a smoke shop 

 
Purpose Statements 
The purpose of the Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) is “to provide for small-scale retail and moderate 
density residential uses located away from major intersections (nodes), with building and site design standards 
that are compatible and have adjacent residential uses.”  
 
The purpose of a Specific Use approval is “to ensure that a use that generally deemed incompatible with 
permitted uses in a given zoning district can be considered for approval with certain conditions placed on the 
use as denoted in this Section [39.02.019].” 
 
Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The location is on Quaker Avenue, which is designated as a Principal Arterial, and 74th Street, which is 
designated as a Collector, by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Principal Arterials are continuous routes 
whose function is to serve high volume needs of local traffic and regional traffic. Collectors provide access and 
movement within residential, commercial, and industrial areas. 

 
Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed Specific Use is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 

existing development. The applicant is requesting the Specific Use to allow for a smoke shop. 

 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed Specific Use is in conformance with the Zoning Ordinance and will be appropriate at the proposed 

location.  

 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property is suitable for the proposed Specific Use, as it would not change the characteristics of the existing 
commercial development.  

 
Attachments 

A. Case Information 

B. Thoroughfare Plan Map 

C. Notification Map 

D. Aerial Map 

E. Zoning Map 

F. Photos 

G. Application and Supporting Documentation 

H. Notification Responses 
 
Staff Contacts 

Gregory Hernandez Victor Escamilla 

Planner Planning and Zoning Manager  

Planning Department Planning Department 

806-775-3147 806-775-3029 

ghernandez@mylubbock.us vescamilla@mylubbock.us 

mailto:ghernandez@mylubbock.us
mailto:vescamilla@mylubbock.us


Attachment A   Page 1 of 1 

Case Information: Zone Case 1542-V 

Allowable Uses: 

Transportation:  

Neighborhood Commercial District (NC); Specific Use for a Smoke Shop 

The proposed development has points of access from 74th Street and Quaker

Avenue.    

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Quaker Avenue,  
Principal Arterial, 

Completed 

R.O.W. 105 feet, seven-
lane, undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, seven-lane, 
undivided, paved 

74th Street,
Collector Street, 

Completed 

R.O.W. 60 feet, three-lane, 
Undivided, paved  

R.O.W. 64 feet, four-lane, 
Undivided, paved 

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments: No comments. 

Building Safety Comments: No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes: 

District 4 

3.4 Zone Case 1542-V: Lubbock Smoke Shop LLC for Lubbock Commercial Buildings, Inc., request for 

a zone change from Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) to Neighborhood Commercial 

District (NC) Specific Use for a smoke shop, at: 

 7310 Quaker Avenue located west of Quaker Avenue and north of 74th Street, Furr Wolf

Addition, Block 2, Lot 2-A-1-B.

PLANNER GREGORY HERNANDEZ gave a presentation and answered questions from the Commission. Staff 

recommended approval of the request. 

APPLICANT ABU GHALAIN, 8491 Elm Street, in Omaha, Nebraska, provided examples of current smoke shops 

their company owns and gave comments about the proposed smoke shop.  

No one appeared to speak in favor or in opposition. 

In the matter of Zone Case 1542-V, a motion was made by ZACH SAWYER and seconded by SUSAN TOMLINSON 

to approve the request as presented. The Commission voted 5 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the motion. 

The case will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-579
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-600












































 AI# 12926 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 7. 
10/22/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning (District 5): Consider a request for Zone Case 2651-B, a request of Westar
Commercial Realty for SPSM, LTD, for a zone change from Industrial Park District (IP) to Heavy
Commercial District (HC), at 5044 Frankford Avenue, located west of Frankford Avenue and north of
57th Street, Frankford Business Park Addition, Lot 6-B, and consider an ordinance.

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of this request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on October 3, 2024, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote of 5-0-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance 2651-B 
Staff Report 2651-B 
Documentation 2651-B 







Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 2651-B 
City Council Meeting October 22, 2024 

Applicant Westar Commercial Realty 

Property Owner SPSM, LTD 

Council District 5 

Recommendations 

 Staff recommends approval of the request.

Prior Board or Council Action 

 September 11, 1958, Ordinance No. 2535: The subject property was annexed into city limits and zoned 
Single-Family District (R-1).

 August 9, 1990, Zone Case 2651, Ordinance No. 9368: The subject property was rezoned from R-1 to
Industrial Park District (IDP).

 May 9, 2023, Ordinance No. 2023-O0054 (effective October 1, 2023): The subject property was rezoned
from IDP to Industrial Park District (IP) with the adoption of the Unified Development Code.

 October 3, 2024, Zone Case 2651-B: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a
zone change from IP to Heavy Commercial District (HC), by a vote of 5-0-0.

Notification Summary 

 Notifications Sent: 14

 Received In Favor: 0

 Received In Opposition: 0

Site Conditions and History 

The subject property was originally platted on August 7, 2001, as Frankford Business Park, Lot 6, and replatted 

on February 8, 2006, as Frankford Business Park, Lot 6-B. This property is developed with a shopping center that 

was built in 2003. 

Adjacent Property Development  

The properties to the north and south are zoned IP and are developed with a library and a fast-food restaurant. 

The properties to the east are zoned Light Industrial District (LI), and Heavy Commercial District (HC), and are 

developed with a self-storage facility and a Lowe’s Home Improvement Store. To the west, the property is zoned 

Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) and is a City park.  

Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The subject property is addressed as 5044 Frankford Avenue, located west of Frankford Avenue and north of 57th 

Street. The applicant requests a zone change from Industrial Park District (IP) to Heavy Commercial District (HC). 

Current zoning: Industrial Park District (IP) 

Requested zoning: Heavy Commercial District (HC) 

Intent Statements 

The intent of the current IP zoning is “…to provide for low-impact manufacturing, wholesaling, warehousing, 

and distribution activities that occur within enclosed buildings, typically within industrial park settings.” 



Page 2 of 2 

 

The intent of the requested HC zoning is “…to provide for development of heavy vehicle repair, wholesale 

trade, and warehousing and freight movement uses that typically are characterized by outside storage of 

materials or merchandise. The district should be located away from residential areas or, if unavoidable, 

should be heavily buffered.” 

 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 

The proposed rezoning location will be along Frankford Avenue. The Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018 designates 

Frankford Avenue as a Minor Arterial. Arterials are continuous routes whose function is to serve high volume 

needs to local traffic and regional traffic.  

 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 

existing development.   

 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The Future Land Use Map designates this area for “Commercial” land use. The proposed zone change to HC would 

be in conformance with the Commercial designation. This request would be appropriate next to adjacent land 

uses and the HC zoning to the east.  

 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zone change is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and will be appropriate at the proposed 

location.  

 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property is suitable for the proposed use and will not need additional public improvements to support the 

intensity of uses described in the Heavy Commercial District (HC).  

 

Attachments 

A. Case Information 

B. Thoroughfare Plan Map 

C. Aerial Map 

D. Zoning Map 

E. Future Land Use Map 

F. Photos 

G. Application and Supporting Documentation 

 

Staff Contacts 

Ashley Padilla    Victor Escamilla 

Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 

Planning Department   Planning Department 

806-775-2107    806-775-3029 

ashleypadilla@mylubbock.us    vescamilla@mylubbock.us  

mailto:ashleypadilla@mylubbock.us
mailto:vescamilla@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 2651-B 

 

Allowable Uses:   Heavy Commercial District (HC) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has an access point from Frankford Avenue.   

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Frankford Avenue, 
Minor Arterial, 

Completed  

R.O.W. 100 feet, five-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 100 feet, five-
lane, undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments.   

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes: 

District 5 

3.6 Zone Case 2651-B: Westar Commercial Realty for SPSM, LTD, request for a zone change from 

Industrial Park District (IP) to Heavy Commercial District (HC), at: 

 5044 Frankford Avenue, located west of Frankford Avenue and north of 57th Street, 

Frankford Business Park Addition, Lot 6-B.  

PLANNER ASHLEY PADILLA gave a presentation and answered questions from the Commission. Staff 

recommended approval of the request. 

APPLICANT KEVIN WATT, Westar Commercial Realty, 5709 79th Street, gave comments and answered questions 

from the Commission. 

No one appeared to speak in favor or in opposition. 

In the matter of Zone Case 2651-B, a motion was made by TANNER NOBLE and seconded by SUSAN TOMLINSON 

to approve the request as presented. The Commission voted 5 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the motion. 

The case will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-1620










2651-B 

 

Subject Property. View to the west. 

 

  

 View to the north.   

View to the east. 

 

View to the south. 




	Agenda
	1.03.__Executive Session Board Appointments
	4.01.__Minutes
	       ATT_9.24.2024
	       ATT_9.26.2024 S Joint PandZ Meeting
	5.01.__Budget Amendment 1
	       ATT_Budget Amendment 1
	5.02.__Cypress Ranch PID Interlocal Agreement
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_LCAD Interlocal Agreement
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	       ATT_Exhibit B
	       ATT_LCAD Board Resolution
	5.03.__Closure Easement Ranchland Terrace, Section 6, Block E-2
	       ATT_Ordinance - Ranchland Terrace,TrB
	       ATT_Easement Doc., V938, P451
	       ATT_Location Exhibit
	5.04.__Pipeline Easement Agreement - Atmos Energy
	       ATT_Resolution - Atmos Easement
	       ATT_Pipeline Easement.100124
	       ATT_Exhibit A - Atmos Pipeline Easement
	       ATT_GIS Maps - Atmos Pipeline Easement
	5.05.__82nd St. Parcel 30 - Street Use & ROW Deed
	       ATT_Resolution - 82nd St. Parcel 30
	       ATT_P30 Deed signed
	       ATT_GIS map - 82nd St. Parcel 30
	       ATT_CIP Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Project Detail
	5.06.__82nd St. Parcels 16 & 17 - Street, Public Use, & ROW Deed
	       ATT_Resolution 82nd St Parcel 16 and 17
	       ATT_Parcel 16 - Deed
	       ATT_Parcel 17 - Deed
	       ATT_GIS Map 82nd St Parcel 16 and 17
	       ATT_CIP Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Project Detail
	5.07.__82nd & MLK Parcel 34 Street Use Deed
	       ATT_Resolution - MLK - P34
	       ATT_P34_Deed_Signed
	       ATT_P34_GIS Map
	       ATT_CIP Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Project Detail
	5.08.__82nd St. Parcel 9 - Street Use & ROW Deed
	       ATT_Resolution 82nd - P9
	       ATT_P9_Deed_Signed
	       ATT_GIS Map 82nd - P9
	       ATT_CIP Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Project Detail
	5.09.__Fire Station #1, Tract B - Reject Bids
	       ATT_Resolution - Reject Bid ITB 24-18043-MA
	       ATT_Fire Station 1 Tract B - Plat
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	       ATT_GIS Map - Fire Station 1, Tract B
	5.10.__Sewer Line Easement - Milwaukee Ave & 114th St.
	       ATT_Resolution - Hillstone - Sanitary Sewer Easement
	       ATT_Hillstone - Sanitary Sewer Easement
	       ATT_GIS Map - Hillstone Sanitary Sewer Easement
	5.11.__Drainage Easement - Abbey Commercial
	       ATT_Resolution - Abbey Comm. Drainage Easement
	       ATT_Abbey Comm. Drainage Easement
	       ATT_GIS Map - Abbey Comm. Drainage Easement
	5.12.__Amendment 1 to Contract 17752 with Parkhill
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Amendment 1
	       ATT_Contract 17752
	       ATT_Location Exhibit
	       ATT_CIP Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Project Detail
	5.13.__Annual Progress Report on the Flood Plain Management Plan
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Flood Plain Management Plan
	5.14.__Ordinance - UDC - Landscape Amendments
	       ATT_Ordinance - UDC Landscape Amendments
	       ATT_Proposed UDC Landscape Amendments
	5.15.__ZBA Rules
	       ATT_Resolution - ZBA Rules of Procedure
	       ATT_ZBA Rules of Procedure
	5.16.__Water Utilities Security Deposit
	       ATT_Ordinance
	       ATT_RedLine Ordinance
	       ATT_LWAC Recommendation Letter
	5.17.__Lake Alan Henry Water District Amendment 6
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Amendment No. 6
	5.18.__DSHS - HHS001326300014-HIV Prevention Services Grant
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Contract
	5.19.__StarCare Specialty Health System MOU - Medication-Assisted Treatment
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Memorandum of Understanding
	5.20.__StarCare MOU for Outreach, Screening, Assessment, and Referral
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Memorandum of Understanding
	5.21.__StarCare MOU for Substance Use Disorder Treatment for Adults
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Memorandum of Understanding
	5.22.__StarCare MOU for Substance Use Disorder Treatment for Youth
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Memorandum of Understanding
	5.23.__BCBSTX Contract 153259 Addendum 
	       ATT_Resolution BCBSTX Contract Addendum
	       ATT_City of Lubbock Proposal
	       ATT_Stop Loss Quote
	Cover Page_1
	Stop Loss_1
	Fee Comparison-Per Capita(A)_1
	HCC Summary_1
	Conditions and Caveats(O)_1
	Conditions and Caveats(O)_2
	Conditions and Caveats(O)_3

	5.24.__Kimmel MOU Amendment 
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Amendment 1
	       ATT_Original MOU
	       ATT_Budget Detail 
	       ATT_CIP Detail 
	5.25.__Simflo / CBD TIF MOU
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_MOU - CBD TIF
	       ATT_Budget Detail 
	       ATT_CIP Detail 
	5.26.__PO 10027892- Flock Group, Inc.
	       ATT_Resolution- Flock Group INC
	       ATT_Purchase Order- Flock Group INC
	6.01.__Board Appointments
	6.02.__Highland Oaks PID Creation Public Hearing 
	       ATT_Public Hearing Notice 
	       ATT_Map
	6.03.__ZC 3508
	       ATT_Ordinance 3508
	       ATT_Staff Report 3508
	       ATT_Documentation 3508
	3.7 Zone Case 3508 Packet
	3508 case info
	3508_1locator
	3508_2imag
	3508_3zoning
	3508_4flup
	3508 Photos
	3508 Application


	6.04.__ZC 3487
	       ATT_Ordinance 3487
	       ATT_Staff Report 3487
	       ATT_Documentation 3487
	6.05.__ZC 2565-H
	       ATT_Ordinance 2565-H
	       ATT_Staff Report 2565-H
	       ATT_Documentation 2565-H
	6.06.__ZC 1542-V
	       ATT_Ordinance 1542-V
	       ATT_Staff Report 1542-V
	       ATT_Documentation 1542-V
	6.07.__ZC 2651-B
	       ATT_Ordinance 2651-B
	       ATT_Staff Report 2651-B
	       ATT_Documentation 2651-B
	Case Information 2651-B
	2651B_1locator
	2651B_2imag
	2651B_3zoning
	2651B_4flup
	Photo's 2651-B
	Application.pdf


